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The Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

“Indian Rayon
will continue to
focus on its key
businesses. The
growth driver will
be the Garments
business.
Insulators will
help strengthen
earnings further.
Alongside, stable
contributions from
the VFY sector
and recovered
earnings of the
Carbon Black
business will beef
up growth.”
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,
For all of us at Indian Rayon, the year has been indeed rewarding both strategically and
operationally. Value enhancing strategic moves in the branded apparels coupled with your
Company’s foray into the insurance sector made it a landmark year in more than one way.
The second buyback of shares which is on the anvil is a significant step in this direction.
Leveraging our strengths in the fast growing garments industry, we acquired global rights
for key brands such as Louis Philippe, Allen Solly (barring North America) and Peter
England (with the exception of U.K. and Ireland) from Coats Viyella Plc, U.K. These acquisitions
catapult Indian Rayon’s potential overnight to be a world player in the garment sector.
In yet another strategic move, we seized the opportunity in the newly opened up insurance
sector in India. The insurance business, offers enormous potential for profitable growth in
the long term.
Operationally, Indian Rayon has recorded an all-round superior performance, notwithstanding
the economic recession. This success is attributable to the growth that emanated from the
full year contribution of the Garments business, enhanced yield and profitability of the
Insulator business and an improved export performance of the VFY business. Our endeavours
to strengthen market position, improve efficiencies, tighten costs and sweat assets have paid
handsome returns. The Carbon Black business has suffered though, more notably during
last quarter of the year, due to an extremely challenging business environment resulting
from a slowdown in its major customer base, namely the tyre and automobiles segment.
Overall revenues have notched an impressive 32 per cent year-on-year growth to Rs.1416.2
Crores while operating profits have risen from Rs.205.8 Crores last year to Rs.230.2 Crores.
Better working capital management across businesses and a reduced debt burden have led
to a surge in pre-tax profits by 29 per cent to Rs.74.2 Crores. Net Profits at Rs.68.5 Crores
reflect a 19 per cent year-on-year growth, not factoring the exceptional loss emanating from
the exit of the sea water magnesia business.
OUTLOOK

Indian Rayon will continue to focus on its key businesses. The growth driver will be the
Garments business. Insulators will help strengthen earnings further. Alongside, stable
contributions from the VFY sector and recovered earnings of the Carbon Black business will
beef up growth.
Garments
The outlook for the Garment business remains extremely positive. The perceptible shift
among consumers from tailor-made to ready-made garments, changing aspirations, better
purchasing power, a rising standard of living coupled with the emergence of large scale
retailing will take this business to a new high. This augurs well for Madura Garments, who
is the market leader in branded menswear.
To continue to be a leading edge company, a well-crafted strategy has been put in place. It
entails capitalising on the strong brand equity, improving efficiencies and cost optimisation
processes. Among other measures to grow the market share further include launching a slew
of innovative collections in all the brands and line extensions, heightened marketing and
distribution efforts besides enlarging our footprint in the international arena.
Insulators
In the Insulator business, your Company has demonstrated a significant improvement largely
due to heightened efficiencies, focused marketing and an aggressive entry into new export
markets with a higher share of value added products. We will push for better yields in all
these areas.

Simultaneously, we will concentrate on bringing in several value-added products, including
high rating products. Successful penetration into the Equipment Porcelain market and
improving sales of high rating products will be ongoing.
Strengthening of exports will be yet another focus area for growth in future. To make our
mark in the export of high value-high ratings products, we will nurture strong relationships
with global OEMs and utility companies, and explore new markets.
Consequent to this, we will penetrate into the quality conscious markets of Europe and the
USA, besides the high rating product markets in China. Our recent efforts have already
started paying rich dividends. We are therefore confident of generating enhanced growth
from this business over the next few years.
Carbon Black
The Carbon Black industry is going through a difficult phase. Its biggest customer – the tyre
/ automobile industry is facing a recession. To grow, against this backdrop, we have evolved
a multi-pronged strategy. Firstly, we will continue to build upon our market position through
a widened product portfolio, backed with superior technical service. Secondly, to beef up
exports, we will recourse to the benefits that our coastal location offers. Finally, we will add
to the bottom-line through product development efforts especially high value speciality
grades of carbon black and products for non-tyre applications. We believe that new product
development will lead to the creation of niche segments. Collectively, these efforts will bring
in value addition and stave any reversal likely due to the competitive environment.
Viscose Filament Yarn
The Viscose Filament Yarn (VFY) industry was confronted with some major challenges. Of
these, changing fashion trends and continued competition from cheaper substitutes are
the issues to grapple with. We are confident of overcoming these through rising exports
while strengthening our presence in the domestic market. There is potential to grow
exports considerably with the closure of capacities overseas. Importantly, we will harness
the quality of our products, strengthen technical service and encash upon the
biodegradability of VFY to entrench into new export markets. Increasing our share in the
domestic market remains at the top of our agenda. We are aware that the sustainability
of strong cash flow from this business will depend on our ability to tighten cost structures
to its ultimate stretch. Better efficiencies and the optimisation of production of first
quality, knotless and spliced yarns should contribute significantly towards the improved
performance of the VFY division going forward.

“Our endeavours
to strengthen
market position,
improve
efficiencies,
tighten costs and
sweat assets have
paid handsome
returns.”

Textiles
In textiles, our ongoing endeavour will be to focus on the high value added worsted yarn
segment and those that our world class linen caters to. To enhance our overall profitability,
operations relating to synthetic yarn and fabrics will be scaled down.
SUMMARY

Going forward, our growth will continue to be driven by Garments, strongly complemented
by the Insulator and Carbon Black businesses. The anticipated positive outlook for our
businesses coupled with the benefits of a well-thought strategy should create significant
value.
Having said this, I would like to take the opportunity to record my sincere appreciation of
the employees and the management team at Indian Rayon. Only through their dedication
and commitment we have been able to deliver superior results despite the challenging
operating environment that prevailed during the year. Their partnering with us in an
exemplary manner will surely aid us in delivering value for our shareholders year after
year.
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The Aditya Birla Group  In Perspective

That said, let me focus on the proactive steps taken by us at the Group level, to attune to the
unrelenting pace of change that confronts Corporates today, and more importantly to ensure
the Group’s sustainable success. This is integral to fulfilling our avowed goal of relentlessly
pursuing the creation of value for our shareholders, customers, employees and society at
large. To do so, in the recent past, we have hinged on three focal points. Firstly; a distinctive
strategic architecture, secondly; novel structural processes and thirdly; adopting systems
which ensure that we remain a cutting-edge premium business conglomerate.
We have a proven track record in successfully managing different businesses, and we will
continue to remain a conglomerate at the Group level. The pre-condition for this is, of
course, that each of our businesses allows us dominance in that sector. Additionally, the
returns on financial resources and management time invested in each of them must be
commensurate with our expectations.
Over the last two years, I have apprised you of the developments on the business front. My
intent is to share the progress attained and the ways we have adopted to keep stoking
growth.
:
It is my firm belief that value-creation must course through all of our businesses.
Growth in our key businesses has been characterised by consolidation, acquisitions and
restructuring. Consolidation of the cement business, through the merger of Indian Rayon’s
Cement Division with Grasim, has yielded rich dividends for both of our Companies’
shareholders, apart from admirably elevating Grasim’s stature in the industry. The
amalgamation of Dharani Cements with Grasim and the intent to acquire cement companies
that strengthen our national footprint are steps that enable us further cement our position.
Similarly the acquisition of Indal by Hindalco fortifies our standing in the aluminium sector
manifold. Consequent to this linkage, synergies accrue through integration of logistics,
product rationalisation and marketing strategies, not to underscore the enhanced customer
reach it offers. In turn, this has led to significant value generation.
Hindalco’s brownfield expansion at Renukoot is yet another part of a well-conceived growth
strategy.
The acquisition of global rights for world-class brands such as Louis Philippe, Allen Solly
(barring North America), Peter England (with the exception of the UK and Ireland) marks a
turning point. It at once catapults Indian Rayon’s potential to become a global player in the
menswear brands. Incidentally, the branded apparel segment has been and continues to be
the major growth driver at Indian Rayon.
To accord the desired focus to the software sector, we have hived off Grasim’s Software
Division, Birla Consultancy Software Services, into a separate wholly owned subsidiary of
Grasim. This move also allows Grasim to stay focused on its two key businesses – Viscose
Staple Fibre and Cement.
In the Telecom sector, teaming up with Tata Telecommunications, has been a forwardlooking initiative. The acquisition of RPG and Vodafone’s stake in Madhya Pradesh by this
joint entity, has enlarged our geographic reach. Today we command 30 per cent of the
teledensity in the country.
Our foray into the Life Insurance sector in partnership with Sun Life of Canada is a measure
to step up our interests in futuristic knowledge-oriented growth businesses, which have the
potential to grow in revenues and earnings.
Divesting those of the businesses that destroy shareholder value is a natural corollary.
Scaling down of our spinning operations, the closure of the Pulp and Fibre business at
Our Strategic Architecture

“Our avowed goal
is to relentlessly
pursue the
creation of value
for our
shareholders,
customers,
employees and
society at large.”
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Mavoor, which were rendered unviable due to the non-availability of the raw material,
and the divestment of the Files business to Raymonds and our desire to exit from petroleum
refining, indicate our firm resolve to pare off those businesses which are not value
adding and our focus on focus.
Novel Structural Processes :

With CVA (Cash Value Added) as our measurement metric, we have been able to streamline
and refine management decision making processes so that these are totally aligned to
shareholder value. This has been accomplished under the umbrella of “Project Together”, a
Group-wide initiative to drum up support across all levels.
CVA serves as the sinew of our Organisation. Its roll out has been eminently successful. The
Group’s commendable results are partly the spin-off from CVA.
Our antenna is tuned in to the external world. We have been constantly sharpening our
wherewithal to channel and drive the forces of change. To do so we are moulding ourselves
into a quick response, market-driven people who are constantly innovating and designing
product delivery systems as customer solutions.
Infusion of fresh blood and grooming talent at all levels aids us in attaining the objective.
Increasingly professionals of a high caliber have been and continue to be recruited whenever
the required competence is not found internally. Alongside we have been moving talent
effortlessly across the Group. The senior positions that fell vacant consequent to the retirement
policy, have been largely filled in through the internal recruitment of talented, competent
professionals. The transition has been flawless.
I firmly believe that our people provide us with the cutting edge. They are the backbone of
our organisation. They breathe life into the business, endowing it with both character and
staying power. Therefore harnessing people power, breeding thought-leaders and creating
platforms from which every individual can contribute are priorities, in continuum.
Our endeavours to be a fluid, flexible and seamless Group backed by our strong values, and
a robust performance ethic are ongoing.
Institutionalising Systems :

Towards creating value, we have embedded systems and processes firmly. The Aditya Birla
Information Highway, rechristened as “Aditya Disha” ensures that learning and knowledge
sharing is genetically hardwired into our Group. Leveraging the immense networking
opportunities it offers, Aditya Disha, our intranet knowledge portal, assists employees at all
levels to work faster and smarter. In doing so, it accords us a competitive lever.
Gyanodaya, the Institute of Management Learning, is today a world-class training and
learning Centre, one in which we take great pride. Since its inception more than 65
management programmes have been conducted by top-notch professionals over 220
days, attended by 1300 managers. These are of immense value, honing as they do
people skillsets required in today’s competitive era. More importantly these programmes
foster our intellectual capital, so fundamental to our remaining on top of the League in
the sectors in which we operate.
All of our initiatives are strung together by one abiding dictum which is – to factor the
aspirations of our shareholders, and to ensure that total shareholder returns grow significantly
year on year.
Thank you,
Yours sincerely,

“I firmly believe
that our people
provide us with
the cutting edge.
They are the
backbone of our
organisation.
They breathe life
into the business,
endowing it with
both character
and staying
power. Therefore
harnessing people
power, breeding
thought-leaders
and creating
platforms from
which every
individual can
contribute are
priorities, in
continuum.”
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
OVERVIEW

The Indian economy is passing through a difficult phase. Though the year started on a positive note with expectations of pick-up in
consumer demand and industrial activity, these were belied due to an erratic monsoon, floods and droughts in parts of the country as well
as the meltdown of the capital markets. As a consequence, there was sagging consumer confidence, poor demand and sluggish industrial
activity. A sharp rise in global crude oil prices and fears of a slowdown in the US economy compounded the pressure. These macro
economic developments had adversely impacted practically all segments of the Indian economy.
Viewed in this context, Indian Rayon’s performance has been excellent during the year. Net revenues have gone up 32 per cent yearon-year (YoY) on the back of full year contributions from the Garments division and improved volumes of VFY and Insulators divisions.
The Garments, VFY and Insulator divisions have reported highest ever volumes, which is a significant achievement considering the then
prevalent challenging business environment.
Despite various proactive measures taken by the Company to improve internal efficiencies and cut costs, overall profitability remained
under pressure. Operating profits grew by 12 per cent from Rs.205.8 Crores last year to Rs.230.2 Crores in 2000-01 and pre-tax profits
have risen by 29 per cent from Rs.57.6 Crores to Rs.74.2 Crores during this period. This was possible due to the improvement in operating
efficiencies, aggressive marketing efforts and better working capital management. Despite tax charges of Rs.5.7 Crores, which were not
there in the earlier year, net profit has gone up by 19 per cent from Rs.57.6 Crores to Rs.68.5 Crores during the year
Such growth would not have been possible but for the superior performance of our key businesses during this period. The outlook for
the Company is positive, given the strong performance of the Garments business, strengthened operations at Insulators, better operating
environment for Carbon Black business and a favourable change in demand for VFY in local and export markets.
VALUE ENHANCING STRATEGIC MOVES
Global Brand Rights Acquired

The year has been extremely important strategically for Indian Rayon. To enhace shareholder value the Company leveraged upon
its strengths even further. It acquired global rights for Louis Philippe, Allen Solly (barring North America) and Peter England (with the
exception of U.K. and Ireland) through its wholly owned subsidiary, the Aditya Vikram Global Trading House Ltd., from Coats Viella Plc.,
U.K. The subsidiary invested US$ 2.26 mn towards the acquisition of these global rights. As you are aware, while acquiring Madura
Garments, the Company acquired these brands for Indian markets while its subsidiary obtained the brand rights for SAARC countries
along with marketing rights for the Middle East region. Indian Rayon is now on a much stronger footing. It aims to become a leading
global player in the garments business.
Foray into the Insurance Sector

A significant move has been the Company’s foray into the newly opened up Insurance sector. Insurance is viewed as a profitable and
growth business. While its premium market is pegged at Rs.24,000 Crores, it is expected to grow at 18 per cent annually. Given the
attractiveness of this sector, the Company has seized this growth opportunity and set up a joint venture titled Birla Sun Life Insurance, in
partnership with Sun Life Insurance of Canada.
A leading player in the Insurance industry, with over 125 years of experience internationally, Sun Life has assets of over C$330
billion under its management. Prior to the nationalisation of the Insurance sector, they had a sizable presence in India as well.
An investment of Rs.82.80 Crores towards 69 per cent of equity has been made by Indian Rayon in the joint venture. Sun Life of
Canada holds 26 per cent of the equity capital. Birla Global Finance Limited, our Group Company, has 5 per cent of the paid-up capital of
the joint venture company.
Birla Sun Life Insurance Company has obtained the licence from the regulatory authorities in February 2001. It commenced operations
from March 2001. We are confident that the Company’s entry into this growth sector will create significant value for shareholders in the
long run.

1236

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS AND REVIEW

The newly acquired garment business constitutes 23 per cent of the net turnover of the Company. Amongst the remaining businesses,
the trade-mix remained almost constant.

FY01
3%

24%

FY00
5%

9%

23%
30%

22%

13%
19%

14%
20%

18%
Garments

VFY

Carbon Black

Insulators

Textiles

Others

Garments

Volumes (Lac Pieces)
- Shirts
- Trousers
Net Turnover (Rs. Crores)
Operating Profit Before Advertisement and Royalty (Rs. Crores)
Operating Margin Before Advertisement and Royalty (%)
Advertisement Expenses (Rs. Crores)
Royalty Expenses (Rs. Crores)
Divisional Operating Profit (Rs. Crores)

2000-01

1999-00*

% Change**

47.2
11.6
325.5
59.7
18
39.0
8.2
12.5

9.6
1.7
57.4
9.4
16
6.4
1.4
1.6

23
71
42
52
46
-

* Business acquired on 1st January 2000. Figures mentioned above pertain to only 3 months of operations and cannot be compared directly.
**Annualised Growth
Review of Operations

In the first full year of its operations, the Garments business has been imminently successful. The Division has reported impressive
growth in revenues and profitability during the year. Our key brands have reported strong performance, retaining their leadership in the
respective market segments. Louie Philippe and Allen Solly have put in a splendid performance.
Growth backed by volumes
Divisional revenues have gone up by 42 per cent to Rs.325.5 Crores on annualised basis. The performance for the full year, inclusive
of the figures of this division, when it was a part of Madura Coats Limited have been impressive, registering a revenue growth of 30 per
cent. Improved market share and better sales volumes of Trousers and Shirts have been the growth drivers. More than 47.2 lac pieces of
shirts, reflecting a growth of 23 per cent YoY have been sold. Growth in the trouser segment was even more impressive with volumes
soaring to 11.6 lac pieces, which is over 71 per cent YoY.
7

A well-crafted marketing strategy, speedier response to changing customer preferences, through the launch of a slew of innovative
collections and brand extensions, coupled with consistent efforts to ensure sustainable leadership for its brands, have led to this commendable
performance.
•

Speed of innovation: A constant focus on innovation and design has and contunes to ensure that we are always on the cutting edge
of fashion. To keep in step, in this regard, our design studio at Bangalore has been contemporarised. Additionally for developing
new designs, Madura Garments have allied with leading technical professionals from Italy.
Consequent to these initiatives, the Company was able to launch a series of line extensions. Foremost among these have been Allen
Solly’s “Uncrushables”, Van Heusen’s “Durafresh”, “Super Permapress” from Louis Philippe and San Frisco’s “Zero Wrinkle”. The
“Louis Philippe stretch”, a first in the Indian market, proved a path-breaking innovation as well. Brand extensions such as “Spiritus”
from Louis Philippe and “Elements” from Peter England, aided the process.

•

Focused advertising support: To build a strong brand equity, entailed investing nearly 12 per cent of sales revenues towards
advertising and retailing. These promotional efforts have enabled our key brands maintain their leadership position and contribute
significantly towards enhanced volumes and revenues.

•

Launching revolutionary concepts in garment retailing and beefing up of the distribution network aided the Company in attaining
superior performance. During the year, retail space for its menswear, expanded by nearly 30 per cent.
Use of effective, innovative and contemporary retail concepts and strategies such as the launching of “Planet Fashion” and “Trouser
Towns” has helped fuel Madura Garment’s growth. Until now 8 “Trouser Towns” and 2 “Planet Fashions” in India, as well as 4
“Planet Fashions” in the Middle East have been set up.

•

Strengthening of supply chain and process management efforts by the Company also enabled it to improve dormancy and
reduce idle stock in the supply chain, in turn contributing further towards better divisional performance during the year.

•

Above all, a distinct people-oriented, performance driven strategy through the nurturing of its intellectual capital has paid rich
dividends. This is amply demonstrated not only by the superior performance of the Company, but importantly also an impressive
retention rate of over 95 per cent since the acquisition of the business.

Improved profitability
The garments division’s operating margins before considering the advertising expenses and royalty paid at 18 per cent, compare
favourably with the operating margin of 16 per cent, clocked in the previous year. Apart from investing 12 per cent of its revenues in
advertising, the Company paid a royalty of Rs.8.2 Crores towards technology and know-how supplied by its overseas subsidiary. As a
consequence the divisional operating profit stands at Rs.12.5 Crores. Given the high growth levels in this sector and the steps taken to
enlarge the markets for our brands manifold, coupled with heightened efficiency and cost optimisation, we believe that our profitability
will gain greater momentum in the years to come.
Sector outlook

The outlook for the Garments business is positive. The size of the men’s wear industry is estimated to be around Rs.6,000 Crores, of
which branded garments account for a 25 per cent share. Changing customer aspirations and life styles, better purchasing power, the
proliferation of brands and the emergence of large scale organised retailing in India has led to a shift towards the branded segment.
Industry experts believe that the branded garments sector will grow by 15 per cent annually over the next few years. In their view this
segment will have 40 per cent of the men’s wear industry by 2010. While growth may be more pronounced in the trouser segment, given
its nascent stage, the casual wear shirts markets is also expected to register handsome growth in the foreseeable future.
The imposition of excise duty on ready-made garments in the Union budget for 2001-2002 may prove to be an industry dampener,
at a time when the economy is in a roil.
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On the upside is the structural change, viz., the de-reservation of the industry from the Small Scale Sector. This provides an opportunity
to improve productivity, through modernisation of equipments at the supplier companies, which in turn will sharpen the competitive edge.
In its wake, it will enable the industry recoup part of the growth, lost due to the imposition of the excise duty.
Outlook for Indian Rayon Garment business

To grow in revenues and earnings and to enlarge its markets in an extremely competitive environment, Madura Garment will
leverage its brand equity optimally. Our growth strategy is multi-pronged:
• Strengthening of marketing and distribution efforts towards sustainable growth will be our primary focus, going forward.
Towards this end, the distribution network will be expanded significantly. The enlargement of our retail space by atleast 30 per cent
will be pursued as well. The geographic reach of new retail formats such as Trouser Towns and Planet Fashions into mini-metros and
smaller towns is on the anvil.
• Development of the market constitutes the second leg of our strategy. Our intent is to step up growth through accelerating
conversions from the ready-to-stitch mindset to the ready-to-wear customer delight. Intensifying of promotional efforts, launching
a slew of seasonal collections, coupled with brand extensions and innovative designs, will be the route to our ongoing progress.
Reinforcing the Peter England brand, through the launch of Peter England trousers and elevating it to a complete wardrobe brand,
will take us forward.
• Enhancing our presence in the international market is the next leg of our growth strategy. Our efforts to strengthen branded
exports are already yielding results. Acquisition of global rights for key brands will help us push our branded export volumes
aggressively. Contract exports will be a focal point. These aid us in fostering excellent relationships with large customers besides
exposure to technology, design and novel product ideas. Additionally, during slack seasons, when demand peters out locally, contract
exports will help us in achieving balanced volumes.
• Optimising cost is a priority to ensure superior returns from this business. Value analysis, controlling material costs, reduction of
waste and improved supply chain management will enable efficiency improvements. To zero in on areas of cost improvement, we
have initiated “Project SPARK”, aided by a renowned consulting firm. We are confident that the implementation of the
recommendations of their study will lead to achieving superior stock turnouts and cost reduction. To leverage technology for better
logistics management, we have made investments in hardware and software. Collectively these initiatives should result in the
improving of margins significantly over the next few years.
• Finally, towards ensuring growth in the medium term, the Company is tapping new growth segments. Launching Blazers and
Jackets in multiple brands and price segments, and exploring opportunities in the Women’s formal wear segment in the domestic
markets is on the cards. These endeavours, will enable Madura Garments achieve superior growth and returns, going forward.
VISCOSE FILAMENT YARN (VFY)

Installed Capacity (TPA)
Production (Tonnes)
Sales Volumes (Tonnes)
VFY Net Realisation (Rs./Kg)
Net Turnover (Rs. Crores)
- VFY
- Caustic Soda and Chlorine
Divisional Operating Margins (%)

2000-01
15,000
15,496
15,326
148
263.5
226.5
37.0
23

1999-00
15,000
12,621
13,507
155
235.0
209.3
25.7
23

% Change
23
13
(-) 5
12
8
44
9

Review of Operations

The continued sluggish demand in local markets and stiff competition from substitute materials, have impacted the VFY business adversely.
Against this backdrop, through aggressive marketing efforts and improved share of exports, the Division has put in a satisfactory performance.
Sales up by 13 per cent
Notwithstanding the fall in demand in the domestic market, sales volumes at 15,326 tonnes have grown by 13 per cent YoY, primarily
on the back of improved exports. Exports soared from 1,105 tonnes to 2,037 tonnes, reflecting a growth of 84 per cent YoY. A successful
entry into new markets and deeper penetration into existing markets have been the key drivers. The razor-sharp focus on product quality,
backed by superior customer service has enabled it to reposition its products amongst quality conscious customers. This, together with the
competitive pricing strategy led to achieving superior valume growths. Domestic volumes grew by 7 per cent YoY from 12,402 tonnes in FY
2000 to 13,289 tonnes in FY 2001. Besides aggressive marketing and promotional efforts, improved quality of yarns and a strengthened
distribution network have contributed to this encouraging result. The Division’s market share has also gone up from 27 per cent to 28 per
cent during the year.
Asset utilization at record high levels, margins maintained
Reflecting improved domestic volumes and recovery in exports, production volumes have risen significantly. The VFY Sector’s volumes
at 15,496 tonnes are 23 per cent higher over that of the earlier year. These reflect a cpacity utilisation of 103 per cent which is the highest
ever utilisation achieved so far.
Divisional margins maintained
The sluggish demand in the domestic market, increased supplies and intense price competition put realisations under pressure. VFY
prices continued to weaken throughout the first half of the current financial year. After having touched a low of Rs. 143/Kg in June 2000,
VFY prices recovered gradually on the back of a gradual recovery in demand and diversion of supplies towards exports. During the second
half of the current financial year VFY prices have been rising and hit Rs.153/kg levels by March 2001. Realisation for the full year thus
averaged around Rs.148/Kg, which is still lower than the average realisation for FY 2000.
Such a fall in realisation on a year-on-year basis against rising costs naturally impacted VFY margins adversely. These declined from
17 per cent in FY 2000 to 13 per cent in FY 2001. The sharp rise in costs of wood pulp, water and power could not be fully offset by
improved efficiencies. At Veraval, the impending water crisis, due to the drought could be avoided through the commissioning of the
desalination plant, but because of the cost involved, it had a negative impact.
Despite this erosion in VFY margins, divisional margins could be maintained at 23 per cent, largely due to the improved realisation
for caustic and chloric products as well as better operations at the captive power plant. A favourable change in the demand-supply for
caustic/chlorine products led to a quantum jump in prices of caustic soda, chlorine and hydrochloric acid. The reduced energy costs (better
efficiency, higher PLF and increased use of lignite at the captive power plant) also enabled the Division fully offset the impact of fall in VFY
margins. The margins could have been even better, but for planned shutdown of one-third of caustic soda capacities for membrane
replacement (for about 20 days) during the fourth quarter of the current financial year.
Sector Outlook

The outlook for the VFY business remains challenging. Changing fashion trends, competition from Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY), both
in the domestic and export markets are affecting its growth potential. The prevailing gap in prices of VFY and PFY is substantial and is further
compounding the issue, inducing as it does customers to shift from VFY to PFY. As a result, the recovery in domestic demand is slow.
In the interim period, volume growth will be driven by the Division’s ability to heighten export presence. The export markets offer
profitable opportunities for growth. Realignment of VFY capacities taking place abroad and several capacities in the West being closed
down for cost reasons, offer enormous growth opportunities for quality conscious producers like Indian Rayon.
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Benefiting from the shifting focus towards exports and the continued recovery in domestic demand, VFY prices are expected to
improve further from current levels, though substantial rise in VFY prices appears highly unlikely, at least in the short term.
Outlook for Indian Rayon VFY business

Indian Rayon is one of the two VFY producers in India with significant cost advantages. The Company is therefore well positioned to
take on any growth opportunities in the domestic market and is fully geared to capitalise on the emerging export opportunities.
To sustain growth in this mature industry, our strategy hinges on improving quality and efficiency further, strengthening our market
share in the quality conscious user segments, enhancing our presence in global markets and a continuing focus on cost reduction for
improved profitability.
A renewed thrust on marketing will be central to increasing the market share. To attain this goal we have revamped our marketing
structure and have re-oriented the sales force. Superior product quality and strengthening of customer service will be focused upon for
increasing our market share in India. Additionally, our emphasis will also be on upping our market share in the premium segments of the
industry, as these offer higher realisation due to their penchant for quality. Along with these initiatives, leveraging benefits of our recent
investments in technology, we feel reasonably assured of meeting with success on this front.
The closure of overseas capacity offers enormous growth for our VFY business. Towards capitalizing on such emerging opportunities
and changing the image of the poor quality of VFY exports from India, the Division is repositioning its products on the quality plank. It is
also leveraging on bio-degradability of VFY for better penetration. Armed with these measures, we are targeting exports to the tune of 18
per cent of sales volumes in next two years.
Bearing in mind, the domestic demand and continuing price competition, cost reduction becomes crucial to enhanced profitability.
The cost of wood pulp, energy and labour together account for 70 per cent of manufacturing costs. We are making serious efforts to firstly,
improve consumption norms further from the already stretched levels; secondly, ushering in better shop floor practices to improve efficiency
and thirdly, introduce innovative ways of reducing the unit cost of inputs. All these aim at reducing costs even further. Simultaneously, we
will concentrate on revenue enhancement measures through production of first quality, knotless and spliced yarns, which should yield
higher average realisation and contribute towards improved profitability in the years to come.
CARBON BLACK

Installed Capacity (TPA)
Production (Tonnes)
Sales Volumes (Tonnes)
Realisation (Rs./Ton)
Net Turnover (Rs. Crores)
Divisional Operating Margins (%)

2000-01

1999-00

% Change

110,000
89,739
91,735
27,719
254.3
21

98,750
95,828
94,656
23,121
218.9
23

11
(-) 6
(-) 3
20
16
-

Review of Operations

For the Carbon Black business this has been a difficult year. Afflicted with continued demand for automobiles and tyres, increased
import of cheaper tyres by automobile producers and a sharp rise in crude oil prices, the business environment turned extremely challenging
for the carbon black segment. The divisional performance has been satisfactory when viewed in this overall context.
Impressive export performance masks impact of fall in domestic volumes
Divisional sales volumes fell slightly from 94,656 tonnes in FY 2000 to 91,735 tonnes. The overall sales volume remained nearly flat
during the first three quarters of the current financial year, but a sharp decline (down 11 per cent) in sales volumes during the fourth
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quarter dragged overall volumes down marginally. Continued poor demand for tyres in the local market, which in turn is attributed to
lower production of automobiles during this year was the main cause. While the automobile industry registered a negative growth of 18
per cent, the heavy commercial vehicle segment, its biggest user industry, registered a fall of 18 per cent in production volumes during the
year. On top of this, demand for carbon black in the replacement tyre market also declined as a result of the lacklustre economic activity
and the resultant slowdown in goods movement across the country. Hence, domestic sales volumes at 76,019 tonnes were lower by almost
12 per cent vis-a-vis 85,887 tonnes attained in the previous year.
A phenomenal rise in exports at 15,716 tonnes, which is up by 79 per cent from 8,769 tonnes in FY 2000 offset the impact. Through
aggressive marketing efforts and a successful reach into the new export markets of Asia and Europe, the Division could achieve such
pathbreaking results. Towards this end leveraging the locational advantage of the Company’s Chennai plant has been a major contributor.
In keeping with market needs, overall production shrunk by 6 per cent from 95,828 tonnes in FY 2000 to 89,739 tonnes in FY 2001.
Rise in Global CBFS prices put further pressure
A sharp rise in input costs compounded the Division’s handicap. Carbon Black Feed Stock (CBFS) prices shot up form a level of
US$125 per tonne in March 2000 to a high of US$181 per tonne in September 2000. These started declining from the 4QFY 2001
onwards. CBFS prices which averaged around US$163 per tonne for the year, reflect an increase of 30 per cent YoY. CBFS prices
account for 83 per cent of the production costs. The sharp rise in global CBFS prices and the depreciation of the Indian Rupee against
the US$, affected costs severely.
Realisation up 20 per cent
Although the increase in cost was passed on to the customers, the markets could absorb only a part of it as demand in the local
markets was unfavourable along with competition in export markets. However even reflecting the partial passing of the cost increases, the
average realisation was up 20 per cent YoY, from Rs.23,121 per tonne to Rs.27,719 per tonne.
Margins under pressure, per ton profits maintained
Given the pass through nature of these price increases as well as the partial absorption of cost increases by the Company, divisional
operating margins declined from 23.2 per cent in FY 2000 to 20.6 per cent in FY 2001. The fall would have been steeper, but for higher
realisation (passing of costs) and the significant improvement in operational efficiency at both of its plants in Chennai and Renukoot. The
sourcing of CBFS from the domestic markets as well as the introduction of bulk packaging system which reduced packing costs, have
contributed towards arresting the margin fall. Despite lower operating margins, per tonne profits have been improved at Rs. 5,700 per
tonne in comparison to Rs.5,364 per tonne during the last year.
CBFS prices have softened now and are hovering around US$ 155 per tonne. This development, if sustained, will have a positive
bearing on the divisional margins in future.
Sector Outlook

The long-term outlook for the Carbon Black industry is positive, though it may have bumpy rides in the short term. The automobile
sector continues to reel under the pressures of economic recession. The reduced demand of the goods movement through heavy vehicles,
coupled with improved railway efficiency is affecting the need for tyres in the replacement markets. Cheaper import of tyres by automobile
manufacturers will stunt the demand for carbon black in India. In such an environment, the only viable alternative to remain profitable
is to concentrate on exports. The softening of global CBFS prices, which has started falling with the tempering of global crude oil prices,
should bring succour to carbon black manufacturers in terms of reduced pressure on costs and margins in future.
Outlook for Indian Rayons Carbon Black Business

Going forward, Indian Rayon’s strategy will be to focus on volume growth through increased share of exports, development of nontyre applications, improved realisations and tighten cost structure for enhanced profitability.
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Volume Enhancement: Efforts on widening the product range, upgrading the quality of service and ensuring competitive pricing for
a larger share in the domestic market will be our priorities. To amplify the product range, the Company will leverage its strong R&D
capabilities further and develop new grades of Carbon Black. A few grades, patented under the ADIT series are being launched in
the domestic market now. A focus on speciality grades of carbon black is another forward lookig initiative. These value added
products help us see a surge in volumes, create dominance in the niche segments and increase the customer base. These apart,
speciality products will also lead to higher realisation and improved profitability. The Company propose to capitalise on its relationship
with its existing customers and widen its customer base.
• Improving export focus: The Company will concentrate on exports for better volumes. Its coastal location offers it a distinctive
advantge, aided by a competitive cost structure. These factors will favour it in pursuing a robust growth in export markets. Bringing
in the new ADIT series of grades as well as new product development efforts, coupled with better penetration into existing and new
customers will stoke growth.
• Developing of non-tyre applications: To reduce dependence on the automobile sector and expand its markets, we are chanelising
energies in the development of new applications for carbon black, especially in the non-tyre segments. Our R&D efforts should yield
success in this direction. We are thus hopeful of increasing our share in overall volumes in future.
• Margin enhancement efforts: Your Company will benefit immensely from the forthcoming introduction of speciality grades of
carbon black, as these offer higher realisation. Efforts towards increasing the share of these value added products, which together
with advantages of split locations, enable the Company achieve optimum domestic-export mix, will result in improved realisations
in future. Simultaneously, we will also look at cost reduction, through tightening of consumption norms, lowering of distribution
costs (through better logistics management by taking advantage of split plant locations) and better operating efficiencies.
These revenue maximisation and cost reduction endeavours should facilitate superior margins, despite the forecast challenging
business environment over the next few years.

•

INSULATORS

2000-01

1999-00

% Change

Installed Capacity (TPA)

34,000

34,000

-

Production (Tonnes)

26,278

24,353

8

Sales Volumes (Tonnes)

25,691

23,701

8

Realisation (Rs./Ton)

71,480

65,398

9

183.6

155.0

18

17

15

-

Net Turnover (Rs. Crores)
Divisional Operating Margins (%)
Review of Operations

The insulator division has demonstrated significant improvement in its performance, driven largely by internal efficiencies and a
doubling up of marketing efforts.
Overall sales up 8%; Exports up 29%
Divisional sales at 25,691 tonnes grew by 8 per cent YoY vis-a-vis 23,701 tonnes in FY 2001. While volumes in the domestic markets
have been lower, an impressive growth in exports has been a booster. Exports at 13,348 tonnes have risen by 29 per cent. They stood at
10,382 tonnes in the previous year. The resumption of orders from a few global OEMs have contributed significantly towards improved
export volumes. Benefiting from aggressive marketing efforts and improved quality, the Company forayed into the competitive markets
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of Turkey and Jordan. A successful entry into the new export markets as well as a wider reach into existing global markets have been the
mainstay of this performance.
Consequently, overall volumes grew by 8 per cent YoY, despite a decline in domestic volumes. Insulator sales in the domestic markets
lessened by 7 per cent, from 13,319 tonnes in FY 2000 to 12,343 tonnes in FY 2001. The ongoing restructuring of SEBs and resource
constraints faced by many SEBs affected demand in the domestic markets.
Change in product and market mix enabled better realisation
Overall realisation at Rs.71,480 per tonne rose by 9 per cent YoY compared to Rs.65,398 per tonne in the earlier period. Greater
exports in the overall sales and a change in the product mix in favour of higher value added insulators provided for a satisfactory
growth in average realisations. While traditionally the export sector offers higher realisation, the Company witnessed a marginal
growth in domestic realisation as well. This emanated from a change in product mix in favour of high value, higher rating insulators.
But for continuing pressures on realisation in traditional product segments due to stiff competition from low cost manufacturers in
Asia, our margins could have been better. Divisional revenues at Rs.183.6 Crores mark a rise of 18 per cent as against Rs.155.0 Crores
in FY 2000.
Margins improved significantly
Divisional margins improved significantly during this period – up from 15 per cent to 17 per cent in FY 2001, primarily due to
benefits of better economies of scale, change in product mix in favour of high realisation products and above all a considerable improvement
in operating efficiencies. These have been amply demonstrated - be it in terms of recovery and yield, reduced consumption norms and
lower energy requirements. Collectively these had a telling impact on the overall cost of production and are evident in better operating
margins during the year. We expect this positive development to continue in the years to come.
The division has a healthy growth in its order book position as well. At the year end, the division carried forward outstanding orders
worth Rs. 82 Crores, equivalent to over 5 months of production. We are optimistic on the future outlook for this division.
Sector Outlook

The outlook for the Insulators business remains positive both in the short and long term. The slew of new policy measures announced
by the Government in the Union Budget beefs up its position even further. The recent policy announcements aim at ensuring speedier
reforms in the power sector. The Government has declared its intent of revamping and upgrading the transmission and distribution
systems, along with plans for the construction of new power highway. These measures, together with the continuing emphasis on rural
electrification should boost the demand for insulators in future. The 10th & 11th five-year plans target an addition of 1.6 lac circuit
kilometres of new lines. In addition, the scheduled completion of partial restructuring of SEBs and renewed demand from OEMs will spur
the growth for insulators in the short term.
The industry outlook is even more buoyant in the long run, due to the continuing thrust on the power sector and the likely entry of
the private sector in the Transmission and Distribution segments. The Government is also in the process of putting HVDC lines towards
reducing transmission losses. These measures augur well for the industry.
The outlook for global market is encouraging, offering as it does significant opportunities for enhancing volumes and realisation.
Traditionally, exports offers higher realisation and thus improving export prospects bodes well for volumes and profitability of domestic
manufacturers. In the global market, China comes across as an interesting case. On the one hand India faces severe competition from
China in the lower end of the insulator market, but on the other hand, it affords an excellent export opportunity in the higher end of the
insulator market. European markets also offer a strong growth potential. European manufacturers are scaling down production, on
account of costs. They are outsourcing volumes. Various multilateral agencies are committing large funds for electrification programmes
in developing countries. All these developments open up bright opportunities for quality conscious manufacturers from India, including
your Company, to raise volumes significantly in the export markets in future.
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Outlook for Indian Rayons Insulator business

We remain optimistic on the outlook for the insulator business, in the short term as well as long term. The Company carries a healthy
order book and sees tremendous opportunities in the marketplace now. Towards capitalizing on emerging opportunities in the domestic
as well as export markets, the Company is embarking on a three-pronged strategy:
• Improvement in operating efficiencies is a priority in our growth strategy. We have made tremendous efforts to improve plant
efficiency over the past year and a half. Our aim is to better yields and reduce rejections even further. The Company is amongst the
lower cost producers of insulators globally. On-going measures to further upgrade our proceses will position Indian Rayon on an
even more stronger footing internationally.
• To overcome competition and ensure profitable growth, our attention will be rivetted on high value products.. The Company is
focusing on the Equipment Porcelain markets. After having met with success in this market during the year under review, the
Company is entrenching further into the high value added products segments in these markets. Introduction of various high rating
products including 210 KN Insulators and High Strength Suspension Insulators for HVDC transmission lines is on our agenda. These
new products will contribute significantly towards enhancement of volumes, revenues and profitability.
• Finally, we will concentrate on strengthening our presence in the export markets. We have developed a strong relationship with global
OEMs and utility companies. We now aim to leverage these relationships to grow our export volumes. Entry into new export markets of
U.K, U.S.A. as well as China will grow volumes of high value and high rating products in future. The closure of insulator capacities in the
West offers tremendous opportunity. In all these markets, our focus will be on the profitable high rating product segments.
We feel certain that these measures will enable us boost volumes and revenues and ensure sustained high levels of profitability in future.
TEXTILES
Review of Operations

The textile division has reported superior performance on the back of significant improvements in the working of the Worsted Yarn
segment. Volumes here rose by 5 per cent and the average realisation increased by 13 per cent as a result of our focus on speciality yarn
and its intermediate product – “Wool Top”.
Aggressive marketing efforts have resulted in improved volumes in the Flax yarn segment. While they grew by 7 per cent, the overall
revenues remained flat due to a lower realisation of by-products. Stiff competition from overseas players led to a stagnation in the
average realisation of Flax yarn.
The turnover from other textile segments viz. synthetic yarn and fabrics declined marginally though that of the hose pipe increased
by 13 per cent. Structural issues in the industry have rendered these operations unviable. The Company has decided to right-size its
operations.
Divisional operating margins were encouraging, once again on the back of better contribution from the worsted yarn segment.
Worsted yarn profitability improved from 15 per cent to 19 per cent on account of better product mix, improved recovery and sale of
by-products and aggressive cost reduction measures. The effect of this qualitative change could not be factored in the divisional
operating margins, which were marginally higher from 12 per cent in FY 2000 to 13 per cent in FY 2001 due to margins squeeze in
the other segments.
Outlook for Indian Rayons Textile Division

The worsted yarn segment will drive growth in the textile division. The return of wool as a fashion fabric in the domestic and export
markets, coupled with the renewed attention on speciality and high value added yarns will be strong growth drivers in the worsted yarn
segment. The flax yarn segment should recover to some extent with an improvement in the domestic demand and the Company’s stress
on quality, consequent to the completion of the equipment modernisation programme. The ongoing efforts on improving operating
efficiencies, cost reduction and better working capital management together with the effect of balancing of equipments will bring in
superior performance of the textile division in the future.
15

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
Highlights

(Rs. in Crores)

Gross Turnover
Net Turnover
Other Income
Operating Profit (PBDIT)
Royalty
Interest
Depreciation
Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Items
Exceptional Items
Tax
Net Profit

2000-2001
1526.0
1416.2
31.7
230.2
8.2
74.7
73.1
74.2
5.7
68.5

1999-2000
1187.1
1072.1
52.2
205.8
1.4
74.3
72.5
57.6
298.8
(-)241.2

% Change
29
32
(-)39
12
1
1
29
-

The Financial for the year 2000-01 is strictly not comparable with that of previous year since the financial of the last year includes
performance of the Garment Division for only 3 months.
Revenues
Aggregate net revenues have increased by 32 per cent from Rs.1072.1 Crores to Rs.1416.2 Crores due to the contribution for the full
year from the Garments business, better performance of Insulators, VFY and Carbon Black businesses. In fact, all key businesses of the
Company, with the exception of Carbon Black, have achieved “highest ever revenues” during the year.
Operating Profit
Operating profit has improved by 12 per cent YoY from Rs.205.8 Crores to Rs.230.2 Crores on the back of improved contribution from
its key businesses and more notably on account of the full year contribution of Garments and enhanced profitability of the Insulator
business. That despite fall in other income, due to the complete utilisation of surplus funds for the acquisition of Madura Garments and the
recent investment in the insurance joint venture during the year, Indian Rayon has eported a strong growth in operating profits, is indeed
encouraging.
Interest
Interest charges remained almost flat at Rs.74.7 Crores, despite short-term debt raised for the acquisition of Madura Garments
during the fourth quarter of last year. The company has however repaid these short term debt, using internal cash. Better resource and
working capital management across businesses have also contributed towards flat interest charges, despite improved level of operations.
Depreciation
Depreciation charges were kept at Rs.73.1 Crores. Additional depreciation charges associated with the first full year operations of
the Madura Garments were neutralised by reduced charges on account of the exit from the Sea Water Magnesia business.
Income Tax
The Company had made a tax provision of Rs.5.7 Crores against a zero provision last year. The Company remains under MAT
provisions and did not make any provision last year due to losses arising out of the exit from the Sea Water Magnesia business.
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Net Profit
Net Profit has gone up from Rs. 57.6 Crores last year (before exceptional items) to Rs.68.5 Crores, reflecting an increase of 19 per
cent YoY. The Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) has also soared up by 19 per cent to Rs.11.4 while Cash Earning Per Share (CEPS) has
increased by 9 per cent to Rs.23.7.
Cashflow Analysis

(Rs. in Crores)
2000-01
SOURCES OF CASH
Cash flow from operations (Net of Tax)
Non-operating cash-flows
Proceeds from Borrowing
Proceed from sale of Sea water magnesia business assets held for disposal
Net inflow from Investment actvity
TOTAL

190.4
17.6
12.0
23.5
119.9
363.4

USES OF CASH
Net Capital Expenditure
Repayment of Borrowings
Investment in Insurance Joint Venture
Increase in Working Capital
Interest
Dividend (including Dividend Tax)
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
TOTAL

21.4
140.2
82.8
31.0
78.0
6.7
3.3
363.4

Sources of Cash
Cash from operation
Operating cash flows improved by Rs.190.4 Crores on the back of improved contributions from the Company’s key businesses,
inclusive of the full year contributions of the garment division against only 3 months’ contribution last year.
Non operating Cash Flows
Non operating cash flows primarily consisted of dividend and interest receipts and have accounted for only 4.8 per cent of gross cash
flows. The reduced share of non-operating cash flows is primarily on account of full utilisation of surplus proceeds for acquisition of
Madura Garments last year and the recent investment in the insurance joint venture.
Borrowings
The Company has raised long-term loan of Rs.12 Crores at 7.5 per cent under TUF Scheme of the Govt. of India to finance its
Desalination plant at Veraval set up, to overcome water crisis in the region.
Investments
The Company has liquidated short-term investment during the year. It has thus generated a net inflow of Rs.119.9 Crores, which was
utilised for repayment of short term debt raised towards end of last financial year. Part of proceeds were also used for investment in the
Insurance joint venture during the year.
Sale of Sea Water Magnesia assets
During the year the Company has received Rs.23.5 Crores from sale of assets of Sea water magnesia business.
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Uses of Cash
Capital Expenditure
The Company has invested Rs.21.4 Crores in its normal capital expenditure plan in its all the business segment. However the major
amount was spent on the installation of Desalination Plant.
Debt Repayment
The Company has repaid long term debt of Rs.19.2 Crores and a short term borrowing of Rs.121 Crores during the year.
Dividend
The Company paid a sum of Rs.6.7 Crores towards dividend for the year 1999-00. The Board has proposed a dividend of Rs.3 per
share for the year 2000-01.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to risks from market fluctuations of foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity prices.
Foreign Exchange Risk
The Company’s policy is to hedge its foreign exchange risk for long term as well as short term exposures. Currently, Company do es not
have long term forex liability and short term is covered time to time. The Company’s exports during the year were Rs.397.15 cro res
and imports were Rs.264.79 Crores. Due to excess of exports over imports the Company is long on US $ and this position at times
remains unhedged. However, considering the rupee depreciation in the past there seems no risk in keeping exports un-hedged.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s long-term borrowings are at fixed interest rates and short term borrowings are at floating interest rates. Accordingly,
Company does not perceive any Interest Rate Risk.
Commodity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to risk on raw material as well as finished goods price of all its products. As presently there is no hedging
mechanism available, the Company is exposed to price fluctuation of input as well as output.
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

Our investments in our joint venture companies total Rs.292.08 Crores. These encompass Indo Gulf Corporation Limited, Mangalore
Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited, Birla AT&T Communications Limited, Bina Power Supply Company Limited, Rosa Power Supply
Company Limited and Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Limited.
Indo Gulf Corporation Ltd.
Indo Gulf’s “SHAKTIMAN UREA” continues to be the preferred choice of farmers in its entire marketing territory. The
performance of its Copper Smelter Plant has been exemplary. During the year, D-Ammonium Phosphate (DAP) was
commissioned along with the Precious Metal Refinery (PMR) at its Copper Smelter plant at Dahej. The operations at both
these plants have been fully stabilised. Consequently the Company expects a significant increase in the profit and revenue in
the coming years.
Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL)
To curtail losses, the restructuring of MRPL is on the anvil. Two alternate strategies are being seriously explored. Firstly, scouting
for a third strategic partner, besides HPCL and the Aditya Birla Group and secondly divesting of the Group’s stake and exiting the
business.
Birla AT&T Communications Limited
The year 2000-01 witnessed Birla AT&T Communications Limited (BACL) emerge as one of the dominant Cellular Operations in
India through its merger with Tata Cellular Limited (TCL) and the acquisition of RPG Cellcom Limited, the Cellular Service Provider in
Madhya Pradesh Telecom Circle. On completion of the merger with TCL, the operations of the company would extend to four Telecom
Circles – Maharashtra, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh. This would cover about 28% of total population of India and
nearly 30% of potential cellular market of the country.
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Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Ltd.
Insurance Regulatory Development Authority (IRDA) has granted licence to Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Ltd in February 2001.
The life insurance business has started towards end of March 2001.
Bina Power Supply Company Limited
Bina Power Supply Company Ltd. is setting up a 578 MW coal based Power generation facility at Bina in Madhya Pradesh in a joint
venture with M/s. Power Gen of U.K.
Consequent to division of the State of Madhya Pradesh and formation of Chattisgarh State Electricity Board, CRISIL has been
requested to undertake a fresh study on the availability and allocation of Escrow Circles. In the meantime, Bina Power has been granted
Escrow Circles worth Rs.38 Crores monthly on a provisional basis.
The project will gather momentum once the payment security mechanism is finalised by Ministry of Power.
Rosa Power Supply Company Limited
Rosa Power Supply Company Limited is setting up a 567 MW coal based thermal power plant at Rosa, Dist. Shahjahanpur, U.P. All
the major project contracts and agreements have been executed / in an advanced stage of execution. The Company is targeting to achieve
financial closure within this calendar year.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Management Information Systems (MIS) is the backbone of our control mechanism. Clearly defined roles and responsibilities down
the line for all managerial positions have been institutionalised. All operating parameters are monitored and controlled. Regular
internal audits and checks ensure that responsibilities are executed effectively and that the MIS is flawless among a well-conceived annual
planning and budgeting system.
Any material change in the business outlook is reported to the Board. Material deviations from the annual planning and budgeting
are reported on a quarterly basis to the Board. An effective budgetary control on all capital expenditure ensures that actual spending is
in line with the capital budget.
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Company presently has 11,002 employees on its rolls. These – its human resource assets, are integral to the Company‘s ongoing
success. They have been instrumental in uplifting the Company to its performance levels. The Company‘s Human Resource processes have
been explained in depth in the Director‘s Report.
CONCLUSION

To sum up, all our key businesses except carbon black have demonstrated significant improvement in performance during the year.
Going forward, the Garments business will continue to be the key driver of growth, despite short-term challenges faced by the Company.
Insulators business has demonstrated improvement during the year under review and is expected to report further improvement in
operations next year. VFY should regain its past glory as well. However, the carbon black business is witnessing sharp fluctuations in the
domestic and export markets, but softening of global oil prices is a positive development for the business. With focus on all round
improvements in marketing, assets utilizations and cost control, we are confident of delivering superior results in the years to come and
enhancing shareholder value.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations
or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include
global and Indian demand supply conditions, finished goods prices, feed stock availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the
Company’s principal markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries
within which the Company conducts business and other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations.
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Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance pertains to systems, by which companies are directed and controlled, keeping in mind long-term interests of
stakeholders. It refers to a blend of law, regulation and voluntary practices, which enable the Company to attract financial and human
capital, perform efficiently, and thereby perpetuate it into generating long-term economic value for its shareholders, while respecting
interests of other stakeholders and the society as a whole.
It aims to align interests of the Company with its shareholders and other key stakeholders. The incentive for companies, and those who own
and manage them, to adopt global governance standards, is that these standards will help them to achieve a long-term partnership with
its stakeholders and achieve its corporate objectives efficiently. The principal characteristics of corporate governance are:
• Transparency
• Independence
• Accountability
• Responsibility
• Fairness
• Social Responsibility
In sum, corporate governance focuses on equitable treatment of all shareholders and reinforces that it is “Your Company” as it belongs
to you, the shareholders. The Chairman and Board of Directors are your fiduciaries and trustees pushing the business forward in
maximising long term value for its shareholders.

Corporate Governance at Indian Rayon
Indian Rayon and Industries Limited, a member of the Aditya Birla Group, believes that the foundation of the structure of corporate
governance is disclosure. Transparency and Openness are the basis of public confidence in the corporate system, and funds will flow to
the centers of economic activity that inspire trust.
It is with this belief, Indian Rayon initiated the process of making substantial disclosures on the Company and its Board of Directors(Board)
in the Annual Report for 1999-2000. While continuing to make similar disclosures, we have benchmarked Your Company’s corporate
practices with the guidelines recommended by the SEBI Committee on Corporate Governance. We believe, this report points the way to
the establishment of trust and marks an important milestone in the development of corporate governance at Indian Rayon.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

Indian Rayon’s Board consists fully of non-executive and independent directors. Four directors on the Board are Independent i.e ., they
have no business relationship with the Company and one director represents Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Director

Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla
Mrs. Rajashree Birla
Mr B L Shah
Mr B R Gupta
Mr H J Vaidya
Mr P Murari
Ms Tarjani Vakil2
Mr Siddhartha Sen2
Mr D. S. Dahanukar3
Mr Ashwini Kumar Kanoria3
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Executive/
Non-executive

Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive4
Non-Executive5
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent

Outside Committees#

No. of Outside Directorship Held
Public

Private

Member

14
8
4
8
1
13
3
4
$
$

1
1
1
1
4
$
$

1
7
6
2
1
$
$

Chairman/
Chairperson
1
3
1
$
$

1 Independent director means director who apart from receiving director’s remuneration, do not have any other material pecuniary relationship
or transactions with the company, its promoters, its management or its subsidiaries, which in judgement of the board may affect independence
of judgement of the director.
2 Joined the Board on 27th July 2000
3 Resigned from the Board on 27th July 2000
4 An employee of one of the Group Company
5 Representative of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)
$ Latest data not available since they have ceased to be the Directors of the Company.

# Includes all Committees of the Board across all Companies in which Directorships are held.
Directors interests in the company and Attendance Record

Indian Rayon believes that the shareholders must know the details of their Director’s interest in the Company, their attendance record
as well as contributions made by them. Indian Rayon has, accordingly, decided to make full disclosure on the Board Meetings as well
as attendance record of all Directors on the Board.
Director

Relationship with
other Directors

Sitting fees
paid during
the year

No. of Board Meetings

Attended
Last AGM
held on
26th May, 2000

Son of
Mrs Rajashree Birla

10,000

Held
5

Mother of
Mr Kumar Mangalam Birla

8,000

5

4

No

Mr B L Shah

-

16,000

5

5

Yes

Mr B R Gupta

-

13,000

5

4

Yes

Mr H J Vaidya

-

15,000

5

4

No

Mr P Murari

-

14,000

5

3

No

Mr Siddhartha Sen*

-

4,000

4

2

No

Ms Tarjani Vakil*

-

10,000

4

3

No

Mr D. S. Dahanukar**
Mr Ashwini Kumar Kanoria**

-

3,000
2,000

1
1

1
1

No
Yes

Mr Kumar Mangalam Birla
Mrs Rajashree Birla

NOTE:

Attended
5

No

None of the Directors have any business relationship with the Company
The Company has a policy of not advancing any Loans and paying any commission from profits to Directors
The Board does not comprise of any Executive Directors and thus no Salary & Perks were paid to any Directors
* Joined the Board of Indian Rayon on 27th July, 2000
** Resigned as Directors of the Company on 27th July, 2000.
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Corporate Governance Disclosures

The SEBI Committee on Corporate Governance, headed by Mr Kumar Mangalam Birla, submitted its report in November 1999 and the
report was accepted by SEBI in December 1999. The recommendations of the Committee are mandatory for some companies effective
from current financial year, including your company. Ahead of the mandatory deadline, from the financial year 1999-2000 onwards,
your company had endeavoured to benchmark itself with the guidelines recommended by the SEBI Committee. We continue this
process forward even during the year and are glad to inform you that the Company has complied in all material respects the
mandatory recommendations made by the SEBI Committee, as highlighted in this section.
Mandatory Recommendations Complied Already

1.

The Board should have an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors and at least 50% of the Board should
comprise of non-executive directors. Further, at least one-third of the Board should comprise of independent directors where
Chairman is non-executive and at least half of the Board should be independent in case of an executive Chairman.
Ø The Board consists fully of non-executive and independent directors, with considerable experience in their respective fields.
Independent directors account for 50% of the Board at present and they have no business and/or professional relationship
with the Company, its promoters, its management and its subsidiaries.

2.

The Board should set up a committee under the chairmanship of a non-executive/independent director to specifically look into
shareholder issues including like share transfer and redressing of shareholder complaints.
Ø Indian Rayon has an Investor Relations & Finance Committee at the Board level. The Committee comprises of Mr P. Murari
(Chairman of the Committee), Mr B.L.Shah and Mr H.J.Vaidya, all of whom are Non-executive/Independent directors of the
Company.
The Committee meets at frequent intervals to look after the approval of share transfers and other related matters.

3.

To expedite the process of share transfers, the Board should delegate the power of share transfer to an officer or a committee or to the
registrar and share transfer agents. The delegated authority should attend to share transfer formalities at least once in a fortnight.
Ø The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in the dematerialised form and have to be delivered in the dematerialised
form in all Stock Exchanges. To expedite the transfer process in the physical segment, authority has been delegated to the
Share Transfer Committee. Officers of the Company have been authorised to approve transfers of up to 5,000 shares/
debentures each in physical form under one transfer deed.
Ø The Board has designated the Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer.
Ø Details of shareholders complaints received, number of shares transferred as well as average time taken for effecting these
transfers are highlighted in the “Shareholder Information” section of the Annual Report.

4.

The Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report should make disclosures on remuneration paid to directors in all forms
including salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension and other fixed as well as performance linked incentives paid to the
Directors.
Ø Details of remuneration paid to the Directors are highlighted at the beginning of this section. Indian Rayon has a policy of
not paying commission on profits to any director of the Company.
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5.

The Board meetings should be held at least four times in a year, with a maximum time gap of four months between any two
meetings and all information recommended by the SEBI Committee should be placed at the Board.
Ø The Board of Indian Rayon met 5 times during the year, as detailed aforesaid. The gap between any two meetings was not
more than 3½ months. Agenda papers were circulated to the members well in advance of each meeting. The Company
places before the Board the working of all divisions and statements containing status of various matters pursuant to
Corporate Governance practices as recommended by the SEBI Committee on Corporate Governance and as required by
Clause 49 of the Stock Exchange Listing Agreement.

6.

As part of disclosures related to the Management, the Company should, in addition to the Director’s Report, provide a detailed
Management’s Discussion and Analysis in its Annual Report to shareholders.
Ø From 1998-99 onwards, the Company has been providing a detailed Management’s Discussion and Analysis in its Annual
Report.

7.

All company related information like quarterly results, presentation made by Companies to analysts may be put on company’s
web-site or may be sent in such a form so as to enable the stock exchange on which the company is listed to put it on its own
web-site.
Ø Indian Rayon makes presentation to investors and analysts following the announcement of quarterly results. A copy of the
Press Release and Presentations made to analysts are made available on the web-site of the Company (www.indianrayon.com)
as well as of the Aditya Birla Group (www.adityabirla.com).

8.

There should be a separate section on Corporate Governance in the Annual Report, with details on the level of compliance by the
Company. Non-compliance of any mandatory recommendation with reasons thereof and the extent to which the non-mandatory
recommendations have been adopted should be specifically highlighted.
Ø Indian Rayon introduced a separate section on Corporate Governance in its Annual Report for the year 1999-2000 and the
practice has been continued even during the year under review.

9.

The Non-Executive Chairman of the Company should be entitled to maintain an office at the Company’s expense and also
allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties. This will enable him to discharge the responsibilities
effectively. (This is a non-mandatory recommendation)
Ø At present, the Chairman does not have separate office in the Company. The Corporate Finance Division of the Company
supports the Chairman in discharging the responsibilities.

10. A qualified and an independent “Audit Committee” should be set up by the Board. This would go a long way in enhancing the
credibility of the financial disclosures of a company and promoting transparency.
Ø Indian Rayon has an active Audit Committee, comprising of the following Independent/Non-Executive Directors:(1) Ms Tarjani Vakil, Chairperson — Ex-Chairperson and Managing Director of Exim Bank.
(2) Mr P. Murari, Member — IAS (Rtd.).
(3) Mr B.R. Gupta, Member — Ex-Executive Director of Life Insurance Corporation of India.
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Ø The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee include various matters in conformity with the Statutory guidelines and inter
alia include the following:
w

Overview of Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

w

Recommending appointment and removal of external auditors, fixing their remuneration, fixation of audit fees etc.

w

Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board.

w

Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems.

w

Reviewing the adequacy of the Internal audit functions including the structure of the Internal Audit Department etc.

w

Discussion with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon.

w

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

w

Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences of nature and scope of audit as well as post audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

w

Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management policies.

w

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

Ø Four Audit Committee meetings have been held during the year ended 31st March, 2001 to deliberate on the aforesaid
matters from time to time, the details of which are given in the table below.
Name of Director

No. of Meetings
Held

Attended

Ms Tarjani Vakil

4

3

Mr P. Murari

4

4

Mr B.R. Gupta

4

4

11. The Board should set up a “Remuneration Committee” to determine on their behalf and on behalf of the shareholders with
agreed terms of reference.
Ø Indian Rayon does not have any Executive and/or Whole-time Director on the Board. Hence a separate Remuneration
Committee is not required.
12. No Director should be a member in more than 10 committees or act as chairman of more than five committees across all
companies in which he is a Director. Furthermore it should be a mandatory annual requirement for every director to inform the
company about the committee positions he occupies in other companies and changes.
Ø As per the representations made by each of the directors, no Director of the Company is a member in more than 10
Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all companies in which he/she is a Director.
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13. The Company should provide a brief resume, expertise in specific functional areas and names of Companies, in which the person
also holds the directorship and the membership of Committees of the board, while appointing a new director or re-appointing an
existing director. These should form part of notice to shareholders.
Ø Relevant details form part of the explanatory statement of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, annexed to this
Annual Report
14. Disclosures to be made to the Board by the management relating to all material, financial and commercial transactions, where
they have personal interest, that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. These include dealing in
company shares, commercial dealings with bodies, which have shareholding of management and their relatives, etc.
Ø All financial and commercial transactions, where the directors have personal interest, are being disclosed to the board on
regular basis in accordance with the provision of Section 301 of the Companies Act. There are no transactions of material
nature that have been entered into by the Company with the Promoters, Directors or the Management, their subsidiaries or
relatives etc, that may have a potential conflict with interests of the Company.
15. The half-yearly declaration of financial performance including summary of the significant events in last six-months, should be
sent to each household of shareholders. (This is a non-mandatory recommendation).
Ø Half-yearly declaration of Financial Performance as well as a detailed Management Discussion and Analysis for the first half
year ended 30th September 2000 was sent to all shareholders of the Company. The Company initiated the process from
2000-01 onwards and intends to continue this process even in future.
16. The financial institutions should under normal circumstances have no direct role in the decision making of the board of the
company. They should normally not have nominees on the board, merely by virtue of their financial exposure in the Company.
There is however a ground for the term lending institutions to have nominees on the Boards of the borrower companies, to
protect their interests as creditors. In such cases, the nominee directors should take an active interest in the activities of the board
and assume equal responsibility, as any other director on the board. (This is a non-mandatory recommendation).
Ø Mr B.R. Gupta represents Life insurance Corporation of India.
Ø This recommendation does not pertain to the Company.
Other disclosures recommended by the SEBI Committee

1.

Details on Annual General Meetings
1.1. Location and time, where last three AGMs held
Ø The Company holds AGMs at its Registered Office at Veraval, Gujarat and details of the Meeting held during the last
three years are as follows:
Year

Date of AGM

Time

1999-2000

26th May, 2000

10.00 a.m.

1998-1999

17th September, 1999

2.00 p.m.

1997-1998

6th August, 1998

11.00 a.m.

1.2. Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year?

NO

1.3. Are votes proposed to be conducted through postal ballot this year?

NO
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2.

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the company of material nature, with its
promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests
of company at large.
Ø There are no transactions of material nature that have been entered into by the Company with the Promoters, Directors or
the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc, that may have a potential conflict with interests of the Company.

3.

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any
statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.
Ø None

4.

Means of communication
Half-yearly report sent to each household of shareholders:
Ø Yes, performance Update for the half year ended 30th September, 2000 has been sent to all the shareholders.
Quarterly results
Which newspapers normally published in
Ø

Newspaper

Cities of Publication

Business Standard

Bangalore, Mumbai, Kolkata,
New Delhi, Hyderabad, Chennai
Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Mumbai, Kolkata,
Kochi, New Delhi, Chennai

Financial Express

Any website, where displayed
Ø

www.indianrayon.com, www.adityabirla.com
Whether it also displays official news releases and presentations made to investors/ analysts

Ø

Yes
Whether MD&A is a part of annual report

Ø

Yes
Whether Shareholder Information section forms part of the annual report

Ø
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Yes

Social Report
Beyond Business  Reaching Out to the Communities

For more than 30 years now, we have been and continue to be committed to the
welfare of the communities that live in proximity to our plants. We have chosen to mesh our
social vision into our business vision. As a Group with a human face, therefore working for
the weaker sections of communities, forms a part of our core values.
Our social projects are carried out under the aegis of the Aditya Birla Centre for
Community Initiatives and Rural Development, which is stewarded by Mrs. Rajashree Birla,
who is a Director on your Board.
The footprint of our social work straddles across 600 villages surrounding our plants at
Veraval in Gujarat, Renukoot in Uttar Pradesh, Rishra in West Bengal and Gummidipoondi
in Tamil Nadu. Our work touches the lives of more than 2,50,000 people.

Our medical camp at Rishra

Under Mrs. Birla’s guidance, we endeavour to lead social progress through our focus
on health-care, spreading literacy and sustainable livelihood.
Health-care :
To provide health care to the populace we organise medical camps in the village
interiors. This year, nearly 100 medical camps have been conducted and more than 10,000
villagers were examined. These camps, teem with patients, afflicted with all kinds of problems,
from polio to leprosy, to tuberculosis, to blood related issues, to visual impairment. Here
they are offered two distinct benefits – treatment with medicines and hope of a better life.

To alleviate the lot of the physically impaired,
given their poor economic conditions and to
reduce their high dependency levels, we provide
them with supportive aids. At Veraval, in Gujarat,
fifteen year old, Vali Hussain Ismail Jikani,
armed with crutches and calipers, seems much
more confident now.

In many of these camps, our team of doctors have provided restorative surgery to the
physically impaired. This has not only put their lives back on track but has helped restore
their self-confidence as well. Where surgery has not been possible, patients have been given
supportive aids, such as tricycles, calipers, crutches and artificial limbs.
The Intensive Care Unit set up by Jayashree Textiles at Rishra Seva Sadan in Hooghly,
has been a boon to the local population. More than 800 patients have been its beneficiaries.
Additionally, we have evolved a population control strategy, hinged on a holistic
approach which encompasses education, women and their development, maternal and child
health areas, apart from sensitising men to the need for small families. We have forayed
into this field because we believe that as a corporate house we have a responsibility to
support efforts made in this direction by the Government. Until now we have been able to
persuade 1800 couples to recourse to family planning, adopting the two-child family norm.
In our own small way we have begun an Aids Awareness Campaign at Rishra as well.
To secure the health of animals, we are engaged in conducting vetinerary camps at
Veraval. In these camps apart from examining the animals, artificial insemination is also
encouraged. Around 15,000 animals have benefited so far.
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SPREADING LITERACY
Deep in the interiors, endeavouring to raise the literacy levels is indeed a challenge.
We espouse adult education and support balwadis which are non-formal education centres,
apart from helping schools run by the District Authorities.. At Pethikuppam Village in
Gummidipoondi, we aid the local school run by the Government. Through our efforts, a
Science Block in the Serampur Girls College, West Bengal, has been set up.

Kumbhars (Potters) at work in Gujarat. Their clay-ware adoms
houses in large parts of Western India.
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TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE LIVELIHOOD
To create sustainable employment opportunities for the youth and others, extensive
training is being provided in various skills, particularly tailoring, running of provision
stores, bee-keeping. Every year we select a small group of farmers for training in beekeeping. They are sent specially for training in this skill to experts in Rajkot. Upon their
return, they impart the knowledge gained to their ilk. Bee-keeping has become quite a
lucrative profession in Veraval.
Farmer training programmes that enable them remain in sync with the most modern
agricultural practices, demonstration plots, soil testing facilities, providing quality seeds,
teaching them inter-cropping – forms the spectrum of our work. This we do towards aiding
farmers attain optimum farm productivity. Tens of thousands of farmers have been trained
by our teams and many more continue to enlist with us.
To aid the farmers further, we have begun a systematic programme of farm-well
recharging, which has facilitated the irrigation process immensely.
Our teams continue to act as catalysts, enabling farmers access resources that are
available to them through various schemes launched by the Government. This process lifts
the farmers ability to earn well, given a normal monsoon.
VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT SCHEMES
Our endeavours to equip the village with basic amenities, such as supporting
infrastructure through better roads, check dams, drains and panchayet buildings, are ongoing.

‘‘Assessing the unfulfilled needs of the
communities in which we operate, discussing
these with the village Panchayats, and then trying
to see how best we can make a difference —
is at the heart of all our community initiatives.”
Mrs. Rajashree Birla — Chairperson
The Aditya Birla Centre for Community Initiatives
and Rural Development.

GARNERING DEVELOPMENTAL AID
For the year 2000-2001 we were able to mobilise over Rs.410 lacs through various
development programmes, apart from our own contribution. In doing so, we ensure the
well-being of thousands of people.
MAKING A DIFFERENCE
Today, in the villages that we operate, our involvement has made a palpable difference
to the lives of its inhabitants. And as we see their transition from helplessness to selfassurance, from pain and servitude to self-reliance, from illiteracy to a craving for education,
we experience an inner sense of fulfillment ourselves. Our commitment is unrelenting.
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Environment Report
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION – A WAY OF LIFE AT INDIAN RAYON

Indian Rayon — Green at heart. Our Carbon Black Plant.

At Indian Rayon, we firmly believe in sustainable development. We deeply appreciate
the fact that the earth’s resources and its capacity to absorb pollution and regenerate are
finite. Therefore, operations at all of our units are conducted in an eco-efficient way.
Naturally then, the environment dimension forms an integral part of all business
decisions.
At all of our Plants viz, the Rayon Plant at Veraval, the Insulator units at Halol and
Rishra, the Textile Plant at Rishra, coupled with the Carbon Black Plants at Renukoot and
Gummudipoondi, environment protection is a key priority. Through pursuing pollution
prevention, product stewardship and clean technologies, we endeavour to attain our goal of
sustainable development.
Our Plants are ISO 14001 EMS certified. State-of-the-art Industrial Effluent Treatment
Plants are in operation at all of our locations. A major quantity of the treated effluent is
recycled to meet the diverse needs of our Plants.
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES
We make concerted efforts to ensure a dust-free atmosphere in and around our Plant
at Veraval, and to see that dust does not escape into the environment. To do so steam
generating boilers with electrostatic precipitators and bag filters have been instituted.
Additionally the coal crusher house is fitted with a dust extraction system.
At our carbon black plants, air pollution control measures have been embedded at the
design stage itself. Apart from wet and dry scrubbing systems, which control the flying out of
carbon black particles into the atmosphere, we have converted the gases released into
steam, for the generation of power. Besides using it for our captive consumption, power so
generated is sent to the state grid station.
At Jayashree Textiles, to arrest the fly ash coming out of the boiler stack, a cyclonic bag
filter in the exhaust of the coal fired boiler has been installed. A mechanical Ash Conveying
29

Carbon Black: An environmentally friendly product
High temperature manufacturing generates energy, which in turn is
efficiently used by heat exchangers during the various stages of the
process. The calorific potential of the waste gases is utilized in the
process and boilers as a Non-Conventional source of energy. Hi-Tech
Carbon is thus produced as an environmentally friendly product.
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System in the boiler division has been set up as well. This has helped suspended particulate
matter in the boiler reduce by 50%. In the dust prone Flax spinning department, we have
introduced a centralized Dust Extraction System, which has arrested the suspended fine flax
fibres in the air and improved the quality of ambient air.
EFFLUENT TREATMENT PLANTS IN ACTION
To better our environment conservation efforts, at Veraval we have made several
modifications. To cite a few for instance:
• To control suspended solids in the treated effluent, we have segregated the acidic
effluent from the viscose effluent stream.
• To check the pH of the effluent as specified by the State Pollution Control Board, we use
black lye (an alkali solution) from the viscose.
• Changes in the causticizer, zinc clarifier and the suspended solid clarifier, basically the
pollution control equipments, have helped upscale their performance.
• The use of steam and process condensate from MSFE for the washing of the sandfilter
in the spin bath has proved beneficial.
Most of the carbon black processes do not produce any effluents. An oily water treatment
Plant and settling Ponds take care of effluents generated through usage of water for
cleaning and domestic purposes. To treat the demineralised Plant effluents, a highly
sophisticated Reverse Osmosis Plant has been instituted. This process purifies the effluent.
The entire treated water is then recycled into the process, so ultimately there is virtually zero
discharge.
Novel measures towards environmental protection have been afoot at Jayashree Textiles.
After the expansion of the inprocess house and wool-combing capacities at Rishra, we have
added a new flocculator, to ensure that the Effluent Treatment Plant capacity is beefed up to
meet with our requirements.
To raise the level of our waste-disposal methods, at the Jayashree Textile Plant, we
have installed two grease recovery plants. These enable recover grease from the wool
scouring effluent. Grease so obtained is then provided to the pharmaceutical and cosmetics
industry sectors, who use it as a raw material input.
Currently Jayashree Textiles is also engaged in an innovative process modification in
the Effluent Treatment Plant. This process entails treating the wool combing effluent through
a dissolved air floatation mechanism, followed by bacterial treatment. In collaboration with
the Jadavpur University, we have successfully installed a Prototype Plant.
So also at both the Insulator Plants, all environmental conservation processes are in
place.
MEASURING OUR WORK
Importantly we have our environment protection systems constantly audited. At Veraval,
the Environment audit is effected by the Central salt and Marine Chemical Research Institute,
(Bhavnagar), a Gujarat Pollution Control Board recognized Institute. At the Carbon Black
Plants, a surveillance audit by KPMG is carried out every six months. Similarly at our Textile
Plant in Rishra, the Bureau of Indian Standards carries out bi-annual audits. Besides this we
have trained environmental systems auditors, who conduct periodic audits. These audits are
a validation of the high environment management norms adhered to by us.
GREEN AT HEART
As we are green at heart, we have embarked on an ongoing afforestation drive. More
than 5400 trees were planted during the year in the Gummudipoondi Plant. Infact at the
Carbon Black Units, every year one thousand trees are rooted in the soil. All of our Plants
have a wooded look, given the thousands of trees that ring them. They add grace and
beauty and lend a tranquil ambience. For us, it is “walking the talk.”

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors are pleased to present the 44th Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2001
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company has recorded an all round superior performance during the year. Turnover, gross profit and net profit have
increased substantially. Enhanced volume growth in the key businesses of Garments, Insulators and Viscose Filament Yarn have
enabled your Company to post a healthy growth in its net profit. Sales achieved in all of its core businesses has been an all time high
barring Carbon Black. In the Carbon Black business, performance has been constrained due to the ongoing rise in the oil prices and its
impact on the auto sector – which is its major customer segment.
OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Your Company’s operational performance continues to be encouraging. Key figures are summarised as indicated.
VOLUMES
Products

Unit

FY 2001

:Viscose Filament Yarn
MT
15496
Carbon Black
MT
89739
Insulator
MT
26278
Sales :Garments
- Shirts
Nos.
47.2 lacs
- Trousers
Nos.
11.6 lacs
Viscose Filament Yarn
MT
15326
Carbon Black
MT
91735
Insulator
MT
25691
* Three months operations from January 2000 to March 2000

FY 2000

Variation

12,621
95,828
24,353

23%
(-) 6%
8%

9.6 lacs*
1.7 lacs*
13,507
94,656
23,701

N.A.
N.A.
13%
(-) 3%
8%

Production

TURNOVER (RS IN CRORES)

Products
FY 2001
Garments
325.5
Viscose Filament Yarn
263.5
Carbon Black
254.3
Insulator
183.6
Textiles
341.1
Trading & Others
48.2
Total
1416.2
* Three months operations from January 2000 to March 2000

FY 2000
57.4*
235.0
218.9
155.0
323.2
82.6
1072.1

Variation
NA
12%
16%
18%
6%
(-) 42%
32%
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The operational performance of each of your Company’s division has been explained in great depth in the chapter on Management
Discussion and Analysis Report.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The table below gives the results:
(Rs. in Crores)

Operating Profit
Less: Interest
Gross Profit before payment of Royalty to wholly owned subsidiary

Current
Year ended
31.3.2001
230.20
74.69

Previous
Year ended
31.3.2000
205.81
74.33

155.51

131.48

Less: Royalty
Less: Depreciation/Amortisation
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax
Less: Exceptional Loss due to exit from Sea Water Magnesia Business
Less: Provision for Taxation

8.26
73.08
74.17
5.65

1.39
72.50
57.59
298.82
-

Profit/(Loss) after Exceptional items & Tax

68.52

(241.23)

Add: Transfers from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance brought forward

30.55

71.11
207.32

Profit available for appropriation

99.07

37.20

17.96
1.83
14.91
6.85
57.52

5.99
0.66
30.55

99.07

37.20

Appropriations

Proposed Dividend
Corporate Tax on Dividend
Debenture Redemption Reserve
General Reserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

Your Directors would like you to bear in mind the fact that the results for the year 2000-2001 are not comparable with those of
the previous year. This is because the previous year’s result includes the working of Madura Garments for three months which as you
are aware was acquired on 1st January, 2000.
DIVIDEND

Your Directors recommend for your consideration a dividend of 30% on the face value of each Equity Share which after your
approval at the Annual General Meeting will be paid in accordance with the regulations applicable at that time.

On 5,98,76,742 fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs.10 each,
@ Rs. 3/- per share (Previous year @ Rs.1 per share)
Corporate Tax @ 10.20% (Previous Year 11%)
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Current Year
Rs. Crores

Previous Year
Rs. Crores

17.96
1.83

5.99
0.66

19.79

6.65

Forays Into New Business Segments and Acquisitions in the existing business

During the year, your Company ventured into the Life Insurance business teaming up with Sunlife of Canada as strategic partner,
having a 69% stake. Your Company has invested Rs.83 crores towards it.
Insurance Regulatory Development Authority (IRDA) has granted licence to Birla Sunlife Insurance Co. Ltd in February 2001. The
life insurance business has started towards end of March 2001.
To make its mark on the world map, your Company through its wholly owned subsidiary at Mauritius, acquired the global rights
for Louis Philippe, Allen Solly and Peter England at a cost of US $ 2.26 Million.
FINANCE

Emanating from healthy cash flows, no fresh borrowings have been made by your company during the year, barring a concessional
loan of Rs.12 crores for the desalination plant at Rayon Division, Veraval. In the Insurance business the investment of Rs.83 crores was
also met from internal accruals. This was accomplished without affecting the existing Capex and growth plans. Most of the short term
borrowings have been repaid during the year. Your Company now enjoys a healthy Debt Equity Ratio of 0.28 : 1.
FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING

In the interest of the shareholders, your Directors considered a proposal to buyback shares as a way to return the surplus cash.
Your Company expects to generate cash in excess of its requirements. There are limited growth opportunities available to meet the
company’s hurdle rate of return on investment, given the extremely difficult market environment. Your Directors therefore felt that a
share buyback would be the most tax-efficient way to return surplus cash to you. This would provide an exit route from the stock to
those of the shareholders who wish to exit, without substantially impacting either the price at which the shareholders exit, or adversely
affecting the interest of ongoing shareholders.
Consequently your Directors have decided to seek your approval in an ensuing Annual General Meeting, so that the company can
buyback up to 15% of the equity shares at a price not exceeding Rs. 95/- per Share. The details of the buyback programme will be
finalised after seeking your approval and considering the then prevailing market conditions.
HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company firmly believes that intellectual capital and people power will see organisations through successfully in today’s
highly competitive global environment. Therefore employees of the Organisation will be a source of competitive advantage.
To make this happen, your Company has put in place a forward-looking human resource policy that factors people, their skill sets
and the business needs of the organisation in a holistic manner.
Building, developing and upgrading employee competences is an ongoing endeavour. At Gyanodaya, the Aditya Birla Institute of
Management Learning, your Company’s managers and executives undergo structured training aimed at further enhancing their skills
and equipping them to become globally competitive.
As part of a proactive strategy, one that envisages a continual process of renewal, your Company has been inducting fresh talent
and new skills at different management levels, attuned to the needs of the businesses.
Alongside your management is ensuring more of delegation, empowerment and decentralisation in a meaningful manner, to
foster the sense of ownership among its people.
To gauge employee perception of these processes and their implementation, your Company enlisted its participation in an Organisation
Health Survey conducted by a reputed external agency on behalf of the Aditya Birla Group. The Group’s Corporate HRD facilitated the
process. Based on the survey feedback, your management put together new and enhanced people-centric work measures.
At the end of the day, people relations continue to be harmonious at all of your Company’s plants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company has always taken lead and is fully committed to good corporate governance practices. Your Directors are pleased to
confirm that your company endeavors to adhere to the standards set out by the Securities And Exchange Board of India’s (SEBI) Corporate
Governance practices and accordingly has implemented all the major stipulations prescribed. Your Company’s Statutory Auditors Certificate
dated 26th April, 2001 in line with Clause 49 of the Stock Exchange Listing Agreement, validates our claim. This certificate is annexed to
and forms part of the Directors’ Report.
As stipulated in Section 217(2AA) of Companies Act, 1956, your Directors subscribe to the “Directors Responsibility Statement” and
confirm that:
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;
ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit or loss of the company for that period;
iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care of the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
iv) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

In line with Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, the audited statements of accounts along with the report of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors Report of the following Subsidiaries are annexed.
Aditya Vikram Global Trading House Ltd.
Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Ltd.
Laxminarayan Investments Ltd.
Rajnidhi Finance Ltd.
PARTICULARS AS PER SECTION 217 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

The particulars of employees, as required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, are given in a separate Annexure
to this Report. This annexure, however, is not sent with the Report and Accounts to the shareholders of the Company in keeping with
the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956. Those of the Shareholders who are interested in obtaining these
particulars may please write to the Company Secretary, at the Company’s Registered Office.
Information relating to the conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, required
under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956, is set out in a separate statement attached to this report and forms part of it.
DIRECTORS

During the year, your Board has been further strengthened with the induction of two well-regarded professionals Ms. Tarjani
Vakil and Mr. Siddhartha Sen. Ms. Tarjani Vakil is Ex-Chairperson and Managing Director of Exim Bank and Mr. Siddhartha Sen is ExGroup Marketing Advisor of Unilever Group of Companies in India.
They fill up the causal vacancies caused by the resignation of Mr. D.S.Dahanukar and Mr. Ashwini Kumar Kanoria from the Board
of Directors of the Company. Your Directors record their sincere appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr. D.S.Dahanukar
and Mr. Ashwini Kumar Kanoria during their tenure in the office.
Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla and Mr. B.L.Shah retire from office by rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

During the year under review, your Company was the proud recipient of the following awards and recognition.
•

ISO 9002 Certification by KPMG, Mumbai for providing Investor and Secretarial Services

•

IMAGES APPAREL AWARD for Madura Garments who were named as the “Most Admired Apparel Company of the year”.

•

IMAGES ORG MARG CONSUMER SURVEY AWARD for “Peter England” Shirt Brand of Madura Garments as the “Most Admired Shirt
Brand of the year”.

•

National Safety Award bestowed upon Rayon Division by the Government of India (Ministry of Labour) for “Outstanding Performance
in Industrial Safety, in achieving Lowest Average Frequency Rate”

•

National Energy Conservation Award – 2000, Certificate of Merit in Petro Chemicals Sector for Hi-Tech Carbon, Renukoot Division.

•

IQRS Level 7 Certification for Hi-Tech Carbon, Chennai, making it among the first plants in India to have won this distinction.

•

Top Exporter Award for the year 1999-2000 conferred upon Jayashree Insulator by the Chemicals & Allied Products Export Promotion
Council under category Ceramics and Refractories.

•

Export Performance Awards from Wool & Woollen Export Promotion Council for highest Export Performance in yarn and second
highest Export Performance in Wool Tops/ Noils conferred upon Jayashree Textiles.

•

The Third Best overall Export Performance Award from Synthetic & Rayons Textiles Export Promotion Council for export of
Synthetic Yarns & Fabrics to Jayashree Textiles.

AUDITORS

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments under
Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.
Your Directors request you to appoint Auditors for the current year and fix their remuneration.
APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to acknowledge and thank the Central and State Governments and all Regulatory bodies for their support
and guidance.
Your Directors thank our esteemed shareholders, customers, business associates, Financial/Investment Institutions and Commercial
banks for the faith reposed in your Company and its management.
Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation of the dedication and commitment of your company’s employees. They
have been and continue to be instrumental to your Company’s ongoing success.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mumbai
26th April, 2001

Chairman
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Annexures to Directors’ Report
Auditors Certificate on Compliance with Mandatory Recommendations of Kumar Mangalam Birla Committee Report on
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the implementation of the Corporate Governance Procedures and the Report of the Corporate Governance. On the
basis of the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company and furnished to us for our review and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied in material respects, the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.
For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO
Chartered Accountants

N.KISHORE BAFNA
Partner

SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

Mumbai
Date: 26th April, 2001

Information under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosures of Particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2001.
A.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy Conservation measures taken
The Company is engaged in the continuous process of further energy conservation through improved operational and
maintenance practices:
i) Rayon Division
• Use of Ext-II Steam of Power Plant Turbine in Continuous Spinning Machines.
• Replacement of Impellers in Air Circulation Fans of After Treatment dryers by Energy Efficient impellers requiring
lower HP motors.
• Replacement of old motors of higher capacity by the motors of desired capacity and inefficient motors by energy
efficient motors
• Installation of Inverter for the drives of various equipment in Rayon Plant and Power Plant
• Use of Electroflow Energy Saving System in Power Plant Load Centre.
• Use of better insulation for the steam line from Power Plant to Caustic Soda Plant to reduce steam losses.
ii) Carbon Black Division
• Modification of Annular furnace of rotary Dryer Line, from Refractory lining to ceramic wool lining
• PGF timer replaced to reduce inst air consumption saving 30KWH/hr
iii) Insulator Division
• Installation of power saving starting devices on higher HP rating motors
• Use of Waste heat from kilns by realignment of hot air ducting employing single blower
• Reduction of oil consumption significantly by reducing the firing cycle time in Kilns.
iv) Textile Division
• Variable speed drive in Humidification Plants for seasonal variation
b) Additional Investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
i) Rayon Division
• Use of Furnace Oil in place of Light Diesel Oil (LDO) in the SKODA DG Sets.
• Replacement of inefficient motors by Energy Efficient motors
• Energy Saver for Cooling Tower Fans
• Replacement of Combustion air blowers by Energy Efficient Blower a Caustic Flaking Unit
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ii) Insulator Division
• Installation of AC drives in compressors.
• Relining of Kiln with fuel efficient ceramic fibre in place of refractory bricks & tiles.
• Significant fuel saving by controlling the Tunnel Kiln parameters by installing PLC system.
iii) Textile Division
• Installation of Automiser in Air Washer in place of Conventional Nozzle
c) Impact of measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on the cost of
production of goods:
The above measures have resulted/will result in Energy Saving and consequent decrease in the cost of production.
d) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per Unit of Production as per prescribed Form - A:
As per Annexure attached
B.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

e)

Efforts made in Technology Absorption in Form “B”
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)
1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company:
i) Rayon Division
• Developing new shades of Spun Dyed Yarn
ii) Carbon Black Division
• Development of the new generation of Carbon Black for low rolling resistance for truck tyre named as
“ADIT 379” which helps in reducing the cost of operation and increase life of the tyre.
iii) Insulator Division
• Optimisation of design of insulators & metal parts.
• Development of high creepage insulators for use in highly polluted environments for prevention of line &
grid outages.
• Development of new recipes for insulators using indigenous ball clays and minerals and higher rating
products.
• Successful designing, developing & testing of insulators for extra high voltage AC & DC transmission lines.
• Development of new recipes for insulator body to improve strength.
• Development of pyrophylite body suitable for fast firing leading to better recovery.
• Optimisation of design of insulators & metal parts.
iv) Textile Division
• Development of 100% Polyester Sewing Thread yarns for export.
•- Development of in-house process to substitute Imported Nitril/PVC blended rubber by indigenous compound
in Permaline Hose production.
2. Benefits derived as a result of R&D
Process improvement, better quality and Marketability, New Range and Market, Value addition, Improved Customer
satisfaction, Eco friendly products and Cost Reduction
3. Future Plan of Action
i) Rayon Division
• Developments of new applications for products
• Cationic Softner for Soft finishing
• Development of micro filament yarn/trilobal yarn
• Development of Pilot Plant facilities and study of various pulp blends
• Development of waste water recycle system for zero effluent discharge
• Morphology studies of Speciality Yarn by Skincore Ratio Analysis
• Eco-auditing
ii) Insulator Division
• Production of pitcher based, quartz free alumina body for manufacturing 400 KV & other critical Insulators.
• Phasing out of low realisable product by specialized product mix of solid core & critical Hollow Insulators.
• Modification of Kiln & Cycles to suit high rated insulators manufacturing process.
• De bottle necking process for the manufacture and handling of higher rated Hollow and solid core insulators
for better realisation.
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4.

5.

C.

• Carry out tests on HVDC insulator strings at foreign testing labs
• Better product mix by introducing Line Post Insulator yielding high realisation & exports.
• To improve strength of insulator by standardization of process parameters and raw materials.
iii) Textile Division
• Development of Easy-Care Wool by Eco-friendly Chemicals: In house development of easy care wool
(Shrink resist) by substituting chlorine by other eco-friendly chemicals.
Expenditure on R & D
(i) Capital Expenditure
— Rs. 45.62 lacs
(ii) Recurring Expenditure
— Rs. 60.11 lacs
(iii) Total Expenditure
— Rs.105.73 lacs
(iv) Total R&D Expenditure as a
percentage of total turnover — 0.07%
Technology Absorption, Adoption and Innovation
i) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
a) Rayon Division
• Developed improved types of Yarn, including parallel and sized Yarn
• Adoption of Continuous Spinning Technology
• Use of Splicer for knot-free yarn
• Reverse Osmosis for Sea Water Desalination
• Distributed Control System (DCS) for control of Process parameters
b) Carbon Black Division
• Incorporation of in-house Reactor design
• Latest dryer design adopted
c) Insulator Division
• Modification of Drying process for Higher rated solid core & Hollow Insulators resulting better
recovery & quality
• Introduction of ceramic coated parts in extraction mill for better productivity
• Extension of Dryers for slow drying leading to high recovery & better quality
d) Textiles Division
• Installation of Ultra Filter on compress air line
• Inter connection between Cooling Towers and Humidification Plant
• Development of Dyeable Package on TFO Machine to offer value added products in export market
ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:
• Quality improvement in existing Range, development of new market segments, improvement in process,
Productivity and cost control.
iii) Information regarding Technology imported during the last years:
a) Technology Imported during last 5 years:
i) Rayon Division
• Membrane Cell Technology from M/s. UHDE GmbH, Germany for manufacture of Caustic Soda.
(Year of Import 1996-97)
• Caustic Flaking Technology from M/s. Bertrams, Switzerland (Year of Import 1997-98)
• Continuous Spinning Technology from M/s Snia Engineering Italy for Continuous Viscose Filament
Yarn. (Year of Import 1997-98)
ii) Textile Division
• Airjet Spinning Machines from Japan, Autoconer from Italy and Japan, Hara Cherry Draw Frame
from Japan and Cross Roll Cards from U.K. (Year of Import 1995-96 and 1996-97).
• Auto Winding Machine (Year of Import 1996-97)
b) Has Technology been fully absorbed : Yes. fully observed in all cases

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo is contained in Note No. 17 and the annexure thereto.

123
38

ANNEXURE
Form-A
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy.
(A)

Power and Fuel Consumption:

1.

2.

1.

1,186.51
4,250.81
3.58

1,074.04
3,835.52
3.57

KWH in Lacs
—
Rs.
KWH in Lacs
—
Rs.

636.58
2.70
4.64
2108.84
391.73
2.43

731.80
2.61
3.40
1861.28
406.73
2.29

‘000 Tonnes
Rs.in Lacs
Rs.per tonne

183.59
2637.49
1436.61

146.10
2210.94
1513.31

K.Ltrs.
Rs.in Lacs
Rs.per K.Ltr

10535.74
1326.69
12592.28

9027.47
810.57
8978.95

Furnace Oil

Consumption per unit of production :

Production

Standards,

Current

Previous

Unit

if any

Year

Year

MT
MT
MT
‘000 Mtr
‘000 Mtr
MT
SM3
MT

—
—
—
936.00
757.00
—
3.78
—

6072.00
4637.45
2452.00
1203.60
809.60
508.00
3.87
842.06

6471.00
4810.50
2428.00
1337.70
944.50
494.50
3.77
965.03

MT
MT
‘000 Mtr
‘000 Mtr
MT
MT

—
—
—
—
—
—

0.001
13.30
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.48

0.000
12.30
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.52

MT
MT
‘000 Mtr
‘000 Mtr

—
—
—
—

3.47
138.20
23.00
29.30

3.32
213.20
25.60
41.70

Electricity (KWH)

Furnace Oil (Kilo Ltr.)

Viscose Filament Rayon Yarn
Other Yarns
Fabrics
Hose Pipes
Carbon Black
Insulator
3.

KWH in Lacs
Rs.in Lacs
Rs.

Coal (Grade B,C and D)

Viscose Filament Rayon Yarn
Other Yarns (Average)
Caustic Soda
Fabrics
Hose Pipes
Carbon Black
Liquid Argon
Insulator
2.

Year

(A) Purchased - Units
Total Amount
Rate per Unit
(B) Own Generation
(i) Through Diesel Generator - Units
Unit per Ltr. of Diesel Oil
Cost Per Unit
(ii) Through Steam Turbine/Generator - Units
Unit per ton of steam coal
Cost Per Unit

Quantity
Total Amount
Average Rate
(B)

Previous

Year

Units

Quantity
Total Cost
Average Rate
3.

Current
Electricity

Coal (Grade B,C and D)

Viscose Filament Rayon Yarn
Other Yarns
Fabrics
Hose Pipes
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Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
We have examined the attached Balance Sheet of INDIAN RAYON AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at 31st March, 2001 and also the Profit and Loss
Account annexed thereto for the year ended on that date, which are in agreement with the Company’s books of account and with the audited
returns from the branches.
As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 1988 issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227
(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, in our opinion and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of the audit, we state on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5
of the said Order as under:i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets. The
Fixed Assets were physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification were
not material and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
ii) None of the Fixed Assets have been revalued during the year.
iii) The stocks of finished goods, stores, spare parts and raw materials have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. Stocks lying with third parties and in transit have been verified by the management with reference to the confirmations
received/subsequent receipt of goods.
iv) The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and nature of its business.
v) No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records.
vi) On the basis of our examination of stock records, the valuation of stocks is fair and proper in accordance with the normally accepted
accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the preceding year.
vii) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of secured or unsecured loans taken from companies and other parties listed in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. In
terms of Section 370(6) of Companies Act, 1956 provisions of the Section 370 are not applicable to a company on or after 31 st October,
1998.
viii) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of unsecured loans granted to companies listed in the register maintained under
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to other parties listed in the said register.
ix) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loan given by the Company, the parties have repaid the principal amounts as stipulated
and have also been regular in the payment of interest, where applicable.
x) There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the
purchase of stores, raw materials including components, plant and machinery, equipment and other assets and for the sale of goods.
xi) The transactions of purchase of goods and materials and sale of goods, materials and services made in pursuance of contracts or
arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year to
Rs.50,000 or more in respect of each party have been made at prices which are reasonable, having regard to prevailing market prices for
such goods, materials and services or the prices at which transactions for similar goods or services have been made with other parties.
xii) The Company has a regular procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged stores, raw materials and finished goods.
Adequate provisions have been made in the accounts for the loss arising on the items so determined.
xiii) The Company has with regard to the deposits accepted from the public complied with the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act,
1956 and the rules framed thereunder.
xiv) The Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of realisable scrap and by-products, wherever applicable.
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xv) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
xvi) The books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under Section 209(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 have broadly been reviewed and prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, these are not required to be examined by us in detail with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.
xvii) The Company is regular in depositing Provident Fund dues and Employees State Insurance dues with the appropriate authorities.
xviii) No undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty and Excise duty were outstanding as at 31st
March, 2001 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
xix) No personal expenses of employees or directors have been charged to revenue account other than those payable under contractual
obligations or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.
xx) The Company is not a Sick Industrial Company within the meaning of clause (o) of sub-Section (1) of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.
xxi) In respect of the service activities, the Company has a reasonable system of recording receipts, issues and consumption of materials and
stores commensurate with its size and nature of its business. In our opinion, the system provides for a reasonable allocation of materials
consumed and man hours utilised to the relative jobs. Further, there is a reasonable system of authorisation at proper levels and an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business on the issue of stores and
allocation of stores and labour to jobs.
xxii) In respect of trading activities, damaged goods which were not significant have been determined and necessary provision for losses have
been made in the accounts.
Further to the above, we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books
and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us. The Branch Auditors’ Reports
have been forwarded to us and are appropriately dealt with.
In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have prepared in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred in Section
211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
On the basis of confirmations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the director is disqualified from
being appointed as a director as on the dates certified by the directors under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read together with the notes
appearing in Schedule “19” and elsewhere in the accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account give a true and fair view, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at the close of the year and
of the profit for the year, respectively.
For LODHA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

N.KISHORE BAFNA
Partner

SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

Mumbai, Date: 26th April, 2001
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2001
Rs. in Crores

As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

59.88
1096.05

59.88
1047.69

1155.93

1107,57

451.13
16.82

450.03
146.14

467.95

596.17

TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED

1623.88

1703.74

‘5’

1244.58
438.01

1213.05
371.15

806.57
1.07
807.64
19.58
343.82

841.90
14.53
856.43
43.07
344.16

276.45
214.25
14.07
0.05
108.03

266.65
200.38
32.46
1.95
112.03

612.85

613.47

154.96
19.79

165.41
6.65

174.75

172.06

438.10

441.41

14.74

18.67

1623.88

1703.74

As at 31st

Schedule

March, 2001

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves & Surplus

‘1’
‘2’

LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

‘3’
‘4’

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less : Depreciation
Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress
ASSETS HELD FOR DISPOSAL
INVESTMENTS
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES:
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
Interest accrued on Investments
Loans & Advances

‘6’
‘7’
‘8’
‘9’
‘10’

Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS:
Current Liabilities
Provisions

‘11’

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent
not written off or adjusted)
Marketing/Technical know-how
TOTAL FUNDS UTILISED
Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes on Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the accounts
As per our attached Report of even date.
For LODHA & CO.,
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Chartered Accountants
N. KISHORE BAFNA
Partner
Mumbai, 26th April, 2001
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SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

‘19’

ADESH GUPTA
President & CFO
ASHOK MALU
Company Secretary

Chairman : KUMAR MANGALAM BIRLA
Directors :
B. R. GUPTA
SIDDHARTHA SEN
B. L. SHAH
H. J. VAIDYA
TARJANI VAKIL

Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2001
Schedule

Rs. in Crores

1999-2000
Rs. in Crores

‘12’
’13’

1525.95
31.73
6.45
1564.13

1187.14
52.21
21.24
1260.59

648.28
241.34
118.51
224.30
109.76
—
74.69

507.81
186.11
108.24
137.97
115.05
0.99
74.33

1416.88

1130.50

147.25
69.52
0.37
3.93
74.17
—
5.65

130.09
71.90
0.38
0.98
57.59
298.82
—

Profit/(Loss) after Exceptional items
Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve
Balance brought forward

68.52
—
30.55

(241.23)
71.11
207.32

Profit Available for Appropriation

99.07

37.20

17.96
1.83
14.91
6.85
57.52

5.99
0.66
—
—
30.55

99.07

37.20

2000-2001

INCOME
Sales
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Materials
Manufacturing Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits
Selling and Other Expenses
Excise Duty
Shares buy-back expenses
Interest and Other Finance Expenses

‘14’
‘15’
‘16’
‘17’
‘18’

Profit before Depreciation/Amortisatiion and Exceptional items
Depreciation/Amortisation
Less : Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
Marketing/Technical knowhow expenditure written off
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax
Exceptional loss due to exit from Sea Water Magnesia business
Provision for Income Tax

APPROPRIATIONS

Proposed Dividend
Corporate Tax on Proposed Dividend
Debenture Redemption Reserve
General Reserve
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the accounts

‘19’

As per our attached Report of even date.
For LODHA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

ADESH GUPTA
President & CFO

N. KISHORE BAFNA
Partner

SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

ASHOK MALU
Company Secretary

Chairman : KUMAR MANGALAM BIRLA
Directors :
B. R. GUPTA
SIDDHARTHA SEN
B. L. SHAH
H. J. VAIDYA
TARJANI VAKIL

Mumbai, 26th April, 2001
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SCHEDULE ‘1’
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each

Numbers

Rs. in Crores

As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

8,50,00,000
15,00,000

85.00
15.00

85.00
15.00

100.00

100.00

59.88

59.88

59.88

59.88

As at 31st
March, 2001

Total
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up*

1.

2.

5,98,76,742

* Includes:
- 13,75,500 shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration other than cash.
- 2,33,69,797 shares issued as Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Reserves and Share Premium.
- 40,15,022 (Previous Year 41,47,512) shares represented by Global Depositary Receipts.
Issue of 39,281 (Previous Year 41,941) equity shares and bonus shares thereon are held in abeyance pursuant to the provisions of Section
206A of the Companies Act, 1956.

SCHEDULE ‘2’
Balance
as at
31st March,
2000
Rs. in Crores

Addition
During
the year
Rs. in Crores

Deductions/
Adjustments
During
the year
Rs. in Crores

Balance
as at
31st March,
2001
Rs. in Crores

RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Securities Premium Account
General Reserve
Investment Allowance Reserve (Fully utilised)
Surplus as per Profit & Loss Account

Previous Year
* Deduction on account of depreciation provided on revalued amount
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1.44
13.63
7.61
92.34
373.36
491.76
37.00
30.55

0.37*
14.91
6.85
26.97

1.44
13.26
7.61
107.25
373.36
498.61
37.00
57.52

1,047.69

48.73

0.37

1,096.05

1,359.81

7.61

319.73

1,047.69

Schedules
SCHEDULE ‘3’
SECURED LOANS

Rs. in Crores

As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

288.50
12.00
150.63

307.75
—
142.28

451.13

450.03

Nil

(802)

4.12

3.51

—
12.70

128.46
14.17

16.82

146.14

1.19

134.91

As at 31st
March, 2001

Debentures
Term Loans from Financial Institutions
Working Capital Borrowings from Banks
Debentures held by Directors and Manager

SCHEDULE ‘4’
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed Deposits
Other Loans from :
Banks
Others
Includes amounts repayable within one year

SCHEDULE ’5’
FIXED ASSETS

(Rs. in Crores)
Gross Block

Depreciation/Amortisation

Net Block

As at 31st
March 2000

Additions

Deductions

As at 31st
March, 2001

Upto at 31st
March, 2000

For the
year

Deduction/
Adjustments

Upto 31st
March, 2001

As at 31st
March, 2001

As at 31st
March, 2000

20.35

—

—

20.35

—

—

—

—

20.35

20.35

8.11
5.45
132.20
892.90

—
0.04
10.99
20.94

—
—
0.25
2.33

8.11
5.49
142.94
911.51

—
0.31
27.78
327.66

—
0.09
3.44
55.13

—
—
—
1.65

—
0.40
31.22
381.14

8.11
5.09
111.72
530.37

8.11
5.14
105.86
563.78

23.86
123.60
6.50
0.08

3.00
—
2.23
—

1.71
—
1.38
—

25.15
123.60
7.35
0.08

11.20
2.05
2.07
0.08

2.03
8.24
0.59
—

0.43
0.01
0.57
0.00

12.80
10.28
2.09
0.08

12.35
113.32
5.26
0.00

12.68
121.55
4.43
0.00

Total

1,213.05

37.20

5.67

1,244.58

371.15

69.52

2.66

438.01

806.57

841.90

Previous year

1,451.18

183.54

421.67

1,213.05

395.35

71.90

96.10

371.15

841.90

Goodwill
Land
Freehold
Leasehold
Buildings
Plant & Machinery
Furniture, Fixtures &
Equipments
Trade mark/Brands
Vehicles
Livestock

Notes:
1. Execution/renewal/registration of documents pending in respect of freehold land - Rs. 0.06 crores (Previous year Rs. 0.06 crores) and Buildings of Rs. 0.30 crores (Previous year
Rs. 0.30 crores).
2. Assets of Rs. 2.20 croeres (Previous Year Rs. 2.16 Crores) are jointly owned with other Corproates.
3. The Company has made an application for exemption under section 20 of the Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 for excess land of 12.63 acres at Rishra.
4. Buildings include Rs. 8.12 Crores being cost of Debentures of and shares in a Company entitling to an right of exclusive use and occupancy of certain office premises.
5. Plant & Machinery include Rs. 1.51 crores (Previous Year Rs. 1.51 crores) being assets not owned by the Company.
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SCHEDULE ‘6’
INVESTMENTS
Face Value
Rupees

As at 31st March, 2001

Numbers

Rs. in Crores

As at 31st March, 2001
Numbers R s . i n c r o r e s

A. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Government Securities (Unquoted):

6 & 7 Years National Savings Certificates
12 Years National Defence Certificates
Indira Vikas Patra

76,000
500
500

0.01

0.01

(500)

(500)

(500)

(500)

Other Investments:
Non Trade, Fully paid-up
QUOTED

Units of Unit Trust of India (UTI) (1964 Scheme)

10

1,00,000

0.13

1,00,000

0.13

1,70,000

0.69

1,70,000

1.03

2,50,000

0.98

Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds (NCD/NCB):

16% NCD of Indian Petreochemicals
Corporation Ltd.
40
17.5% NCD of Mangalore Refinery and
Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL)
40
17.5% NCD of Gujarat Ambuja Cement Ltd.
33
Secured Redeemable Deep Discount Bonds of
Reliance Capital Ltd.
1,00,00,000
13.5% Omni Regular return Bond of Industrial
Development Bank of India (IDBI)
1,00,000
14% Omni Bond of IDBI
25,000



2,50,000
35,000



10




500
1,200

1.95
0.12

5.29

5.06
3.00

Equity Shares:

IDBI
HGI Industries Limited

10
10

5,38,593
4,32,322

3.46

3,36,621
4,32,322

45

55,00,000

25.70

55,00,000

10
10
10
10

3,46,850
3,65,750
3,51,700
3,41,600

3.69

3.69
3.46

UNQUOTED
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD):

11.0 % NCD of Grasim Industries Ltd.

38.55

Equity Shares:

Gwalior Properties and Estates Ltd.
Seshashayee Properties Ltd.
Trapti Trading & Invesments Ltd.
Turquoise Investments & Finance Ltd.
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1.45
1.64
3.77
3.66

3,46,850
3,65,750
3,51,700
3,41,600

1.45
1.64
3.77
3.66

Schedules
SCHEDULE ‘6’ (Contd.)
INVESTMENTS
Face Value
Rupees

As at 31st March, 2001

Numbers

Rs. in Crores

As at 31st March, 2001
Numbers R s . i n c r o r e s

Trade Investments-Fully paid-up
QUOTED
Equity Shares:

Indo-Gulf Corporation Ltd.
Mangalore Refinery And Petrochemicals Ltd.
Century Enka Ltd.

10
10
10

1,95,79,357
4,10,12,461
62,500

10

8,88,16,400

1.25

1,95,79,357
4,10,12,461
62,500

88.82

8,88,16,400

45.85
65.10

45.85
65.10
1.25

UNQUOTED
Equity Shares:

Birla AT&T Communication Ltd. (Birla AT&T)

88.82

Investment in Subsidiary Companies (fully paid up) :
UNQUOTED
Equity Shares:

Laxminarayan Investment Ltd.
Rajnidhi Finance Ltd.
Aditya Vikram Global Trading House Ltd.,
Mauritius
Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Ltd.

10
10

1,10,93,000
40,000

US$1
10

8,50,000
8,28,00,000

Total A

B.

11.09
0.04

3.70
82.80

1,10,93,000
40,000
8,50,000
–

343.82

11.09
0.04

3.70


288.66

CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Trade Investments-Fully paid-up
UNQUOTED
Units of Mutual Funds

Alliance Liquid Income (Growth Scheme)
Birla Gilt Plus - Liquid Plan
Birla Income Plus (Growth Scheme)
DSP Merrill Lynch Bond Fund (Growth Scheme)
Prudential ICICI Income Fund (Growth Scheme)
Total B

TOTAL (A & B)

10
10
10
10
10







17,34,906
1,73,04,307
1,29,22,281
42,10,526
48,93,451

2.50
18.50
22.50
6.00
6.00



55.50

343.82

344.16
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SCHEDULE ‘6’ (Contd.)
INVESTMENTS
Face Value
Rupees
Aggregate Book Value — Quoted
Unquoted
Aggregate Market Value — Quoted
1.

As at 31st March, 2001
Numbers R s . i n c r o r e s

As at 31st March, 2001

Numbers

Rs. in Crores
121.14

135.93

222.67

208.23

103.87

155.03

Debentures and Mutual Fund Units purchased and sold
during the year:

a) Debentures
Own NCD’s ( of face value of Rs. 5 crores each)
b) Mutual Fund Units (of face value of Rs. 10 each)
Birla Cash Plus
Prudential ICICI Liquid Plan
DSP Merrill Lynch Liquidity Fund
Alliance Cash Manager (of face value of
Rs. 1000 each)
2.

Nos.

5

Nos.
Nos.
Nos.

59,36,349
1,30,49,094
51,44,953

Nos.

21,446

The investment in certain Equity Shares are subject to the following transfer restrictions:

(a) 26012461 Equity Shares of MRPL shares are non-transferrable till 26th June, 2002 as per the terms of the issue [also refer restrictions in
clause (b) & (c)]
(b) Investments in Indo Gulf Corporation Ltd./MRPL/ Birla AT&T/Birla Sunlife Insurance can be transferred only as per the terms of their
respective joint venture agreements.
(c) Investments in Indo Gulf and MRPL can be transferred only after obtaining permissions from the certain financial institutions who have
extended loans to them.
3.

The investment in Birla AT&T shares are pledged with the bankers for securing the loans advanced by them to Birla AT&T.

SCHEDULE ‘7’
INVENTORIES

As at 31st
March, 2001
Rs. in Crores

(As valued and certified by the Management)
Finished Goods
Stores & Spares
Raw Materials
Materials-in-Process
Waste/Scrap
*Excluding stocks shown under Assets held for disposal
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As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

117.90
23.80
117.16
17.47
0.12

112.33*
30.46
107.15
16.51
0.20*

276.45

266.65

Nil

0.53
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SCHEDULE ‘8’
SUNDRY DEBTORS

As at 31st
March, 2001
Rs. in Crores

(Unsecured, considered good except otherwise stated)
Over Six Months
(Doubtful, fully provided Rs. 8.67 Crores
- Previous Year Rs. 9.33 Crores)
Others

As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

16.35

16.85

197.90

183.53

214.25

200.38

6.44

3.40

1.35
6.16
0.12

1.36
5.09
22.61

(3973)

(3973)

14.07

32.46

(3,973)

(3,973)

65.90

53.73

13.30
8.82

38.65
5.24

20.01

14.41

108.03

112.03

Nil

0.05

0.05
0.32

0.06
0.67

SCHEDULE ‘9’
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash & Cheques in hand and remittances in transit
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
Dividend Accounts
Current Accounts
Deposit Accounts
Balances with Non-Scheduled Banks: #
Veraval Mercantile Co-op. Bank Limited

# Maximum amount due at any time during the year

SCHEDULE ‘10’
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good, except otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received +
(Doubtful fully provided Rs. 2.09 Crores
- Previous Year Rs. 2.04 Crores)
Deposits
Balances with Central Excise, Customs & Port Trust
(Doubtful fully provided Rs. 8.64 Crores
- Previous Year Rs. 10.09 Crores)
Advance Payment of Taxes (Net of Provision)

+ Includes
(a) Amount due from Officers of the Company
(b) Maximum amount due from Officers at any time
during the year
(c) Due from Subsidiary companies
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SCHEDULE ‘11’
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

As at 31st
March, 2001
Rs. in Crores

Current Liabilities:
Acceptances
Sundry Creditors
Advances from Customers
Interest accrued but not due on loans
Unclaimed Dividends
Other Liabilities
Provisions:
Proposed Dividend
Provision for Corporate Tax on Dividend
Total

SCHEDULE ‘12’
OTHER INCOME

4.24
85.61
5.17
5.50
1.35
53.09

0.83
98.81
2.62
8.82
1.36
52.97

154.96

165.41

17.96
1.83

5.99
0.66

19.79

6.65

174.75

172.06

2000-01
Rs. in Crores

On Long Term Investments :
Dividends from :
Subsidiary Company
Trade Investments
Other Investments

Rs. in Crores

—
4.55
0.01
3.82
1.84

7.17
5.66
10.22

On Current Investments :
Interest on Government & Other Securities
(Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil Crores - Previous Year Rs. 0.34 Crores)
Profit on sale of Investments (Net)
Others:
Interest
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 1.53 Crores - Previous Year Rs. 2.52 Crores)
Miscellaneous Income (Net)
Total
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1999-2000
Rs. in Crores
(36000)
4.31
0.82
5.13
5.26

4.56
Interest on Government & Other Securities
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 1.01 Crores - Previous Year Rs. 1.64 Crores)
Profit on sale of Investments (Net)

As at 31st
March, 2000
Rs. in Crores

—

12.43
17.56
1.51

3.44
3.44

10.98
12.49

7.35

14.67

10.72

7.49

18.07

22.16

31.73

52.21

Schedules
SCHEDULE ‘13’
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCKS

2000-01
Rs. in Crores

Closing Stocks:
Finished Goods
Materials-in-Process
Waste/Scrap

Rs. in Crores

117.90
17.47
0.12
135.49

Less:
Opening Stocks:
Finished Goods
Materials-in-Process
Waste/Scrap

112.33*
16.51
0.20*

Increase/(Decrease)

1999-2000
Rs. in Crores
112.77
16.51
0.29
129.57
95.78
12.02
0.53

129.04

108.33

6.45

21.24

0.53

Nil

602.76
45.52
648.28

448.29
59.52
507.81

84.61
120.33
36.40
241.34

72.87
103.34
9.90
186.11

118.13

89.18
12.52
6.29
107.99

0.38
118.51

0.16
0.09
(19113)
0.25
108.24

*Excluding stocks shown under Assets held for disposal in the previous year

SCHEDULE ‘14’
COST OF MATERIALS
Raw Material Consumption
Purchase of Finished Goods

SCHEDULE ‘15’
MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores & Spares
Power & Fuel
Labour and Processing Charges

SCHEDULE ‘16’
SALARIES, WAGES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payments to & Provisions for Employees:
Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
Other Benefits
Payments to & Provisions for Manager:
Salary
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
Other Benefits

97.72
13.68
6.73
0.34
0.04
(28313)
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SCHEDULE ‘17’
SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES
SELLING EXPENSES:
Commission to Selling Agents
Cash Discount
Brokerage
Export Expenses
Advertisement
Transportation & Handling Charges (Net)
Other Selling Expenses (Net)

2000-01
Rs. in Crores

Rs. in Crores

43.61
4.41
2.96
11.35
38.41
28.04
24.16

22.77
1.47
2.01
7.73
6.92
18.43
12.97
152.94

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Payments to Statutory Auditors:
Audit Fees
For Taxation Matters
For Tax Audit
For Certification Work
Reimbursement of Expenses
Payments to Branch Auditors:
Audit Fees
For Certification Work
Reimbursement of Expenses
Payments to Cost Auditors:
Audit Fees
Reimbursement of Expenses

72.30

0.07
0.01
0.03
0.01
0.03

0.07
0.02
0.05
0.01
0.02

0.06
0.02
0.01

0.05
0.02
0.01

0.01
(21750)
0.25
2.80

0.01
(41415)
0.26
3.16

68.31
224.30

3.66
15.86
1.70
4.23
0.69
4.60
0.02
0.04
0.43
1.16
29.86
62.25
137.97

44.39
24.11
6.19
74.69

47.93
20.62
5.78
74.33

Nil

(9,294)

BAD DEBTS & PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS & ADVANCES
OTHERS:
Repairs & Maintenance of:
Buildings
Plant & Machinery
Others
Rent
Rates & Taxes
Insurance (Net)
Donations
Directors’ Fees & Travelling Expenses
Research & Development Expenses
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Miscellaneous Expenses

1999-2000
Rs. in Crores

4.89
15.06
1.57
3.53
0.82
3.70
0.59
0.05
0.60
0.71
36.79

SCHEDULE ‘18’
INTEREST AND OTHER FINANCE EXPENSES
Interest
On Debentures and Fixed Loans
Others
Finance Expenses
Interest paid/payable to Manager
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SCHEDULE ‘19’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
•

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention (except for certain fixed assets which have been revalued), on
an accrual basis and in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

•

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed assets are stated at cost adjusted by revaluation in case of certain land and buildings

•

DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION
Depreciation on Fixed Assets (including revalued assets) is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. “Continuous process plants” have been classified on technical assessment and depreciation
provided accordingly.
Depreciation on the Fixed Assets added/disposed off/discarded during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to
the month of addition/disposal/discarding.
Depreciation on the amounts capitalised on account of foreign exchange fluctuation is provided prospectively over residual life of the
assets.
Intangible and certain other assets are amortised as under :
Goodwill - Not amortised
Trademarks/Brands - 15 years
Capital Expenditure on assets not owned - 5 years
Leasehold Land - Over the period of the lease

•

BORROWING COST
Borrowing Costs attributable to acquisition and construction of assets are capitalised as a part of the cost of such asset upto the date
when such asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to Profit & Loss Account.

•

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY ITEMS

•

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange in force at the date of transactions. Foreign currency assets (except
investments) and liabilities other than for financing fixed assets are stated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the year end and
resultant gains/losses are recognised in the profit and loss accout. Premium in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts is
recognised over the life of the contracts. Foreign currency loans for financing fixed assets are stated at the contracted/ prevailing rate of
exchange at the year end and the resultant gains/losses are adjusted to the cost of assets

•

INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investments are stated at cost after deducting provision, if any, made for permanent diminution in its values. Current
Investments are stated at lower of cost and market/fair value.

•

INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost of inventories is computed on a weighted
average/FIFO basis. Finished goods and work-in-progress include costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Proceeds in respect of sale of raw materials/stores are credited to the respective heads.
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SCHEDULE ‘19’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
•

GRATUITY/LEAVE ENCASHMENT
Provision/Contribution to gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment are made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

•

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue expenditure is charged to the Profit & Loss Account and Capital expenditure is added to the cost of Fixed Assets in the year in
which it is incurred.

•

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Revenue grants are recognised in the Profit and Loss account. Capital grants relating to specific fixed assets are reduced from the gross
value of the respective fixed assets. Other capital grants are credited to capital reserve.

•

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

•

Marketing/Technical know-how expenses are deferred and are written-off over a period of five years.

B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1.
2.

3.

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account
and not provided for (Net of advances)
Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
(a) Claims for taxes and other items not acknowledged as debts, estimated at
(b) Bills/Cheques discounted with Banks
(c) Corporate Guarantees given to Banks/Financial Institutions for loans taken by wholly
owned overseas subsidiary/associates companies.

Rs. in Crores
4.71

Previous Year
Rs. in Crores
18.43

64.87
64.03
48.59

52.50
46.37
43.81

DEBENTURES AND SECURED LOANS :(a) Non Convertible Debentures (NCD) are secured by way of first charge created by mortgage of the immovable properties of the
Company situate at Veraval, Halol, Rishra, Jagdishpur, Renukoot and Sakhar Bhavan,Mumbai and hypothecation of moveables
(except book debts) situated at the above locations and at Midnapur, subject to prior charge(s) created on certain assets in favour
of a Financial Institution and on inventories in favour of the Company’s bankers for the working capital borrowings, ranking paripassu inter-se.
15.5% Sixteenth Series (Redeemable at par in three equal annual instalment
commencing from 31st July, 2000)

38.50

57.75

17% Seventeenth Series (Redeemable at par in three equal annual instalments
commencing from 24th January, 2002)

80.00

80.00

14.25% Nineteenth Series (Reedeemable at par on 17th July, 2002)

40.00

40.00

13.20% Twentieth Series (Reedeemable at par on 8th October, 2003)

30.00

30.00

13.50% Twenty First Series (Reedeemable at par on 1st August, 2003)

50.00

50.00

10.85% Twenty Second Series (Redeemable at par on 10th March, 2006)

50.00

50.00

12.00

—

150.63

142.28

(b) Term Loan from a Financial Institution is secured by exclusive charge of the
assets acquired thereagainst
(c)
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Working Capital Borrowings are secured by hypothecation of inventories and book
debts

Schedules
SCHEDULE ‘19’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
4.

5.

Certain Land and Buildings were revalued in the years 1982 and 1987 on the basis of reports of approved valuers on market value/
replacement cost basis using standard indices. The following revalued amounts (net of withdrawals) remain substituted for the historical
cost in the gross block of fixed assets:
Land
6.92
6.92
Buildings
21.76
21.76
Capital Work in Progress includes advances against Capital Expenditure
0.05
5.76

6.

The Company has taken some assets on Finance Lease basis. Future Lease Rental obligations in respect of these assets is Rs. 0.52 Crores
(Previous Year Rs.0.75 Crores) and Lease Rent payable within a year is Rs.0.26 Crores (Previous Year Rs.0.30 Crores).

7.

Considering the strategic and long term nature of the investments and asset base of the investee companies,in the opinion of the
management, the decline in the market value of certain quoted Investments and the book value of certain unquoted Investments is of
temporary nature and requires no provisioning.

8.

In view of exit from Sea Water Magnesia business, the unsold assets at the end of previous year were brought down to their realisable
value of Rs.43.07 crores and were shown under “ASSETS HELD FOR DISPOSAL”account. The amount realised on disposal of such assets
during the year amounting to Rs.23.49 crores (Net of dismantling and other direct cost of selling and necessary adjustments for Modvat)
has been credited to the aforesaid account. As disposal of assets is still under progress, net surplus as may eventually arise (amount
presently not ascertainable) will be accounted for on substantial completion thereof. The management does not expect any deficit on
final disposal.

9.

Loans & Advances include advance towards Equity of the following companies as one of the co-promoters, the respective amounts being
intended to be adjusted against the value of the equity shares to be issued by such co-promoted Companies on substantial progress in
implementation of the relative projects after procuring all regulatory approvals etc.
Rosa Power Supply Co. Ltd.
1.23
1.05
Bina Power Supply Co. Ltd.
8.28
8.21
Birla Telecom Ltd.
0.05
0.05

10. Based on the information/documents available with the Company Sundry creditors includes
amounts due to small scale industrial undertakings:
(a) of which no amount was overdue on account of principal and/or interest
(b) Of which the parties to whom amount exceeding Rs.1 Lac are outstanding for more than
30 days but not overdue are Amtech Electronic Ind., Rai & Sons Pvt. Ltd.

0.64

0.80

11. Interest on Government and other securities is net of Rs. 0.29 crores (Previous Year 3.62 crores) in case of long term current
investments, being the reversal of income accrued in the earlier years on certain securities sold during the year and the difference
between the sale price and cost is realised and accounted as profit on sale of investments.
12. Sales include Export Incentives
13. Amount of exchange difference (net) :
– included in additions to the fixed assets
– debited/(credited) to the Profit and Loss account
– to be debited/(credited) in the Profit and Loss accounts of subsequent
year in respect of forward contracts
14. Miscellaneous Income include unspent liabilities, excess provisions and unclaimed
balances in respect of earlier years written back (net of short provisions and sundry
balances written off)

41.02

36.02

—
(3.97)
0.03

0.16
(1.45)
1.69

3.61

2.37
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SCHEDULE ‘19’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
15. The following are included under other heads of expenses in the Profit & Loss Account :
Raw Materials cosumed
Stores & Spares consumed
Salaries, Wages and Contribution to P.F. & other funds
Insurance
Rent
Rates & Taxes
Technical Know-how fees

0.03
10.00
0.56
0.04
0.02
—
8.26

—
10.19
0.56
0.07
0.02
0.02
1.45

16. The Company is one of the promoter member of Birla Management Corporation Limited, a company limited by guarantee which has
been formed to provide a common pool of facilities and resources to its members, with a view to optimise the benefits of specialisation
and minimise cost for each member. The Company’s share of expenses under the common pool has been accounted for under the
appropriate heads.
17

(a) Additional information required under paras 3,4C and 4D part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 is as per Annexure I.
The details as required under para 3(i)(a) & 3(ii)(a) of Part II of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956, have not been given in
respect of Insulator Division of the Company, the exemption having been obtained from the Ministry of Law, Justice and Company
affairs (Department of Company affairs) Government of India, vide their order No. 46/88/2001/CL III dated 9.4.2001
(b) All the figures have been rounded off to Rupees in Crores with two decimals as approved by the Central Government under
Section 211(1) of the Companies Act, 1956. Figures of Rs.50000 or less have been shown at actuals in brackets.
(c)
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Figures of previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary. Current year’s figures are not comparable with
those of the previous year, interalia, since previous year’s figures includes only three months operations of the acquired Madura
Garments business.

Schedules
ANNEXURE I
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPHS 3, 4C AND 4D OF PART II OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
(a) Details of Products Manufactured, Opening stock, Turnover, Closing stock etc.
(Rs. in Crores)
Particulars
Unit
Viscose Filament Rayon Yarn

MT

Sulphuric Acid

MT

Carbon-di-sulphide

MT

Anhydrous Sodium sulphate

MT

Sodium Sulphide

MT

Yarn

Spdl/MT

Cloth

Lm/’000Mtr

Hose Pipes

Lm/’000Mtr

High & Low Tension Insulators $
and Bushings
Lightning & Surge Arrestors $

MT
NOS.

Carbon Black

MT

Liquid Argon

‘000 SM3

Caustic Soda

MT

Chlorine

MT

Hydro Chloric Acid

MT

Traded goods
Processing charges
Garments
Others

Nos./000

Year ended
31st March
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000
2001
2000

Installed
Capacity
Per Annum
15000
15000
35700
35700
10000
10000
9300
9300
300
300
84040
84968
33
33
19
19
34000
34000
25000
25000
110000
110000
3000
3000
33000
33000
29370
29370
9900
9900

Opening Stock

Production

Turnover

Closing Stock

Quantity

Amount

Quantity#

Quantity @

Amount

Quantity

Amount

682.75
1569.37
757.20
476.45
377.32
278.72
48.85
25.10
2.20
2.79
623.52
1151.71
850.05
1299.12
104.30
99.35

9.12
18.84
0.13
0.03
0.50
0.31
0.03
0.01
(21677)
(25511)
13.23
14.48
7.88
9.08
0.56
0.63

15325.80
13507.29
32122.14
33512.25
7019.60
5910.47
8527.55
7321.00
390.09
307.62
13257.67
14641.41
5645.66
6350.73
1869.45
1427.01

246.61
229.64
2.07
3.23
5.26
4.65
4.59
4.13
0.97
0.71
247.77
235.46
57.65
65.91
15.86
13.89

853.00
682.75
323.06
757.20
241.43
377.32
82.50
48.85
2.16
2.20
1198.75
623.52
511.03
850.05
166.83
104.30

11.89
9.12
0.03
0.13
0.31
0.50
0.04
0.03
(23397)
(21677)
16.43
9.38
5.11
7.88
0.96
0.56

6995.00
5823.00
88.46
56.28
777.09
874.55
0.19
139.50
50.67
67.11

15.69
9.55
0.18
0.10
0.52
0.57
(2876)
0.02
0.01
0.01
6.93
40.62

15496.05
12620.67
31688.00
33793.00
6883.71
6009.07
8561.20
7344.75
390.05
307.03
13832.90
14113.22
5306.64
5901.66
1931.98
1431.96
26277.61
24353.00
21414.00
20856.00
89739.00
95828.00
1687.62
2099.44
30620.44
27418.79
23960.41
21750.49
10068.60
8348.04

91735.00
94656.00
1750.62
2067.26
31104.11
27516.25
23833.60
21889.80
9973.93
8364.48

4999.00
6995.00
25.46
88.46
293.42
777.09
127.00
0.19
145.34
50.67

13.24
15.69
0.06
0.18
0.24
0.52
0.02
(2876)
0.01
0.01
0.16
1.40

1314.46

72.59
40.56
6.72
2.73

5735.50
2444.51

5883.62
1130.05

287.86
258.26
4.16
4.58
27.87
21.60
12.97
7.34
1.35
0.57
9.03
45.50
4.18
3.96
326.66
52.33
84.14
75.59

1166.34
1314.46

38.25
36.45
5.89
6.72

The Installed Capacity is as Certified by the Management
The licensed capacity is not given as licencing has been abolished.
# After adjusting departmental consumption, excesses, shortages etc.
@ Turnover includes captive consumption, damages,sample sales and shortages.
Production quantity of Yarn and Garments includes purchases of 343.17 MT and 571667 numbers respectively (Previous Year 72.45 MT and 140609 numbers)
Amount of opening Stock of Yarns, traded goods and Garments includes purchases of Rs. 3.85 crores, Rs.5.53 crores and Rs. 36.14 crores respectively
(Previous Year Rs. 0.78 crores, Rs. 18.18 crores and Rs. 40.56 crores respectively)
$ Read with Note no. 17(a)
Garment production includes items produced on job work basis by outside parties and purchases.
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ANNEXURE I (Contd.)
(b) Raw Materials Consumed :
Current Year
Total
Quantity
MT
Wood Pulp
Wool Fibre
Flax Fibre
Staple & Synthetic Fibre
Cotton Staple & Synthetic Yarn
Carbon Black Feed Stock/Coal Tar
Fabrics in
Others

‘000 Mtrs.

16548
2542
1409
11728
1579
157802
9431

Value
(Rs.in Crores)
51.72
50.96
19.46
69.36
24.27
144.95
105.92
136.13

Previous Year
Total
Quantity
MT
13633
2463
1285
12182
2259
165861
2542

(c) Value of Imports calculated on C.I.F. Basis
Raw Materials
Stores & Spare Parts
Capital Goods
(d) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on actual
payment basis) :
Technical know-how fees
Interest and Commitment Charges
Professional Charges
Others
(e) Value of Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials,
Spare Parts & Components consumed and
percentage thereof to the total consumption :
(i) Raw Materials :
Imported
Indigenous

Percentage
46.12%
53.88%

Stores, Spare Parts & Components :
Imported
Indigenous

14.78%
85.22%

Previous Year
Rs. in Crores

250.59
11.74
2.46

178.22
10.14
4.26

6.56
4.47
0.12
16.35

–
0.16
0.23
9.97

277.99
324.80

13.98
80.63
94.61

(f) Amount remitted in Foreign Currency
on account of Dividend :
Dividend in respect of Accounting Year 1999-2000
[186 Shareholders holding 77,497 Equity Shares]
Dividend in respect of Accounting Year 1998-1999
[186 Shareholders holding 79,472 Equity Shares]
(g) Earnings in Foreign Exchange :
(i) On export of goods (F.O.B.Basis) :
(a) Foreign Currency
(b) Rupee Payments
(c) Export through Merchant Exporters
(ii) Interest
(ii) Others
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35.24
43.04
15.51
65.08
27.09
121.34
26.85
114.14

Rs. in Crores

Percentage
50.81%
49.19%

602.79
(ii)

Value
(Rs.in Crores)

227.78
220.51
448.29

12.35%
87.65%

10.26
72.80
83.06

0.01
0.03

367.28
27.71
2.16
0.19
0.05

276.58
18.81
0.61
0.20
0.10

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE:
I

II

Registration Details
Registration No.
Balance Sheet Date

1107
31
Date

State Code
03
Month

Capital Raised during the Year (Amount in Rs.Crores)
Public Issue
Nil
Bonus Issue
Nil

III

04

2001
Year

Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Fund (Amount in Rs.Crores)
Total Liabilities
1623.88
Source of Funds
Paid-Up-Capital
59.88
Secured Loans
451.13
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
807.64
Net Current Assets
457.68

IV

Performance of Company (Amount in Rs.Crores)

Turnover
1525.95
Profit Before Tax
74.17
Earning per share
11.44

V

Generic Names of Three Principal products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)
Item Code No.(ITC Code)
620000
5403110.09
2803
854620

As per our attached Report of even date.
For LODHA & CO.,
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Chartered Accountants

ADESH GUPTA
President & CFO

N. KISHORE BAFNA
Partner

ASHOK MALU
Company Secretary

SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

Right Issue
Nil
Private Placement
Nil
Total Assets
1623.88
Reserve & Surplus
1096.05
Unsecured Loans
16.82
Investments
343.82
Misc. Expenditure
14.74
Total Expenditure
1414.36
Profit After Tax
68.52
Dividend rate %
30%

Product Decription
Garments
Viscose Filament Rayon yarn
Carbon Block
Insulator

Chairman : KUMAR MANGALAM BIRLA
Directors :
B. R. GUPTA
SIDDHARTHA SEN
B. L. SHAH
H. J. VAIDYA
TARJANI VAKIL

Mumbai, 26th April, 2001
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2001
(Rupees in Crores)
PARTICULARS
A

2000-01

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax & extra-ordinary items
Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Marketing & Technical know-how written-off
Foreign Exchange Loss
Interest Expenses
Loss on Fixed Assets sold
Profit on Sale of Investments
Interest Income
Dividend Income

74.17
69.15
3.93
—
74.69
0.71
(5.28)
(11.17)
(4.56)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Income Taxes paid

127.47

(14.10)
(9.80)
(7.13)

103.24
161.82

14.86
(56.36)
48.02

(31.03)
170.61
(11.25)

6.52
168.34
(11.15)

159.36

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Assets held for disposal
Proceeds from Sale/Redemption of Investments
Interest Received
Dividend Received
Decrease in Advances to third parties
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Investments
Investment in equity of subsidiary @
Acquisition of Madura Garments Division @

2.31
23.49
147.34
13.07
4.56
31.50
(23.75)
(58.92)
(82.80)
—-

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C

58.58
71.52
0.98
0.06
74.24
1.16
(18.15)
(21.44)
(5.13)

201.64

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B

1999-00

157.19

4.53
—
325.49
27.71
5.13
138.70
(38.80)
(207.61)
(3.70)
(166.11)
56.80

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital
Proceeds from Borrowings
Shares Buyback
Repayment of borrowings (including premium on repayment)
Dividends paid (including Tax thereon)
Interest and Finance Charges paid

—20.96
—(149.18)
(6.65)
(78.01)

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

85.34

—
209.55
(65.64)
(271.25)
(29.96)
(82.19)
(212.88)

(239.49)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
CAHS AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE)

3.28
10.79

3.04
7.75

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANCE)

14.07

10.79

@ acquired by paying cash
Notes:
1) Cash and cash equivalents include:Cash, cheque in hand and remittance in transit
6.44
Balance with Scheduled Bank #
7.63
Unrealised translation loss on foreign currency balances
—Total
14.07
(# Excludes Rs.21.73 Crores kept as margin money towards corporate guarantee in previous year)
2) The Company has undrawn working capital facilities of Rs.229.37 Crores as on 31.3.2001 (Previous Year - Rs.127.72 Crores)

3.40
7.33
0.06
10.79

Chairman:
Directors:

Mumbai, 26th April, 2001

Ashok Malu
Company Secretary

Adesh Gupta
President & CFO

Kumar Mangalam Birla
B. R. Gupta
Siddhartha Sen
B. L. Shah
H. J. Vaidya
Tarjani Vakil

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Statement of INDIAN RAYON AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2001. The Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the listing agreements of the various stock exchanges and is based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet of the Company covered by our
report of even date to members of the Company.
For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
N.KISHORE BAFNA
Partner
Mumbai 26th April, 2001
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For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
SHIVJI K.VIKAMSEY
Partner

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

1 The period of the Subsidiary Company
2 Extent of interest in Subsidiary Company

Aditya Vikram
Global Trading
House Limited

Birla Sunlife
Insurance
Company Limited

Laxminaryan
Investment
Limited

Rajnidhi
Finance
Limited

21st December, 1999
to 31st December, 2000
Entire paid-up Equity
Capital of
US$ 8.50 lacs

4th August, 2000
to 31st March, 2001
Holding 69% of paid-up Equity Capital
of Rs.12000 lacs

1st April, 2000
to 31st March, 2001
Entire paid-up Equity
Capital of
Rs.1109 lacs.

1st April, 2000
to 31st March, 2001
Entire paid-up Equity
Capital of Rs.29 lacs
held by the Company
and its subsidiary
Laxminarayan
Investment Ltd.

3 Net aggregate amount of the profits/(losses)
of the Subsidiary Company for the period,
so far as it concerns members of Indian
Rayon And Industries Limited
US$ in lacs
a) not dealt with in the Accounts of the
Company
(i) For the financial year of the subsidiary
3.78
(ii) For the previous financial years
since it became the
subsidiary of the Company
Not Applicable
b) dealt with in the Accounts of the
subsidiary Company
(i) For the financial year of the subsidiary
Nil
(ii) For the previous financial years
since it became the
Nil
subsidiary of the Company
4 Additional information u/s 212 (5)
a) Change in the interest of the Company
between the end of the Subsidiary
Nil
Company and of the Company’s
financial year ended 31st March 2001
b) Material changes between the end of
the Financial Year of the Subsidiary
and the Company’s financial year
ended 31st March 2001
i) Fixed Assets
Nil
ii) Investments
Nil
iii) Money lent
Nil
iv) Money borrowed for any purpose
other than that of meeting current
liabilities
Fresh Borrowings from Bank
22.50
Amount Repaid to Bank
33.61

Mumbai, 26th April,2001

ASHOK MALU
Company Secretary

Rs. in lacs

Rs. in lacs

Rs. in lacs

-574.07

44.11

1.24

Not Applicable

85.90

4.39

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

ADESH GUPTA
President & CFO

Chairman : KUMAR MANGALAM BIRLA
Directors : B. R. GUPTA
SIDDHARTHA SEN
B. L. SHAH
H. J. VAIDYA
TARJANI VAKIL
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ADITYA VIKRAM GLOBAL TRADING HOUSE LTD

DIRECTORS REPORT
The directors present their first report and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period ended 31 December 2000.

•

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statements.

The principal activity of the Company is to acquire brand, technical know-how and undertake
other activities, carry on business of general merchant and traders, manufacturers’ agents
and representatives to enhance the global presence of the holding company.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1984. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Company’s profit for the period ended 31 December 2000 is USD 377,884.
With a view to conserve the cash for repayment of debt, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the period ended 31 December 2000.

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and of the profit or loss of the Company.
In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

By Order of the Board
International Financial Services Ltd.
SECRETARY
Mauritius, 9 April, 2001.

AUDITORS REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ADITYA VIKRAM GLOBAL TRADING HOUSE LTD
We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 2 to 8 (Page 63 & 64).
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and for ensuring that
the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1984 in so far as applicable to Offshore Companies. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. It
is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial
statements and to report our opinion to you.
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by directors in the preparation of financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reason-
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able assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatements. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2000, and of its results and cash flows for the period then
ended, and comply with the Companies Act 1984 in so far as applicable to Offshore Companies and in accordance with internationally accepted accounting standards.

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants

Mauritius, 9 April, 2001.

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 21 DECEMBER 1999, THE DATE OF
INCORPORATION, TO 31 DECEMBER 2000

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2000

2000
Note

INCOME

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets

2000
USD

USD

4

12,340,000

Interest Income

17,831

Agency Commission
Royalty Income

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments

1,634,817
2,450,397

3,500

Receivables

453,881

Interest accrued

8,165

Cash at bank

EXPENSES

1,139,222
1,604,768

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accruals
Payables

797,749

22,470

Agency Commission

209,704

Interest and other finance charges

773,981

Design Consultancy Charges

75,962

463,684

Salary

56,057

466,884

Audit Fees

3,200
5

Establishment and Administrative expenses

2,750

Amortisation of intangible assets
NET CURRENT ASSETS

720,000

1,137,438

1,860,924

13,477,884
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

6

Profit and loss account

850,000

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD BEFORE TAXATION

377,884

Foreign taxation

589,473
(213,237)

Foreign Exchange Gain
SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST
Loan

1,227,884
7

12,250,000

1,648

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

377,884

13,477,884

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 21 DECEMBER 1999, THE DATE OF
INCORPORATION, TO 31 DECEMBER 2000

Issue of share capital
Net profit for the period
Balance as at 31 December 2000

Share
capital
USD

Profit and
loss account
USD

Total
USD

850,000

-

850,000

-

377,884

377,884

850,000

377,884

1,227,884

Approved by the Board of Directors
Kapil Dev Joory
Couldip Basanta Lala
DIRECTORS
Mauritius, 9, April, 2001
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
F O R T H E P E R I O D F R O M 2 1 D E C E M B E R 1 9 9 9 , T H E DAT E O F
INCORPORATION, TO 31 DECEMBER 2000
1.

INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITY

5.

The company is incorporated in Mauritius under the Companies Act 1984 as a private company
with limited liability. The main activity of the Company is to acquire brand, technical knowhow and undertake other activities, carry on business of general merchant and traders,
manufacturers’ agents and representatives to enhance the global presence of the holding
company.

PAYABLES
2000
USD
Upfront fee on term loan
Interest accrued

2.

11,250
366,960

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Licensing support services payable

58,995

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable International Accounting
Standards. A summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently, is set out below.

Design consultancy fee payable

26,479
463,684

(a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accruals
basis and is in accordance with International Accounting Standards.

6.

SHARE CAPITAL

(b) Intangible assets

2000

Intangible assets are stated at cost and permanent impairment, if any, is provided for.
Intangible assets are amortised in accordance with IAS 38.

USD
Authorised

(c) Transactions in foreign currencies
1,000,000 Ordinary shares of USD 1.00 each

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in United States dollars at
the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
at the balance sheet date which are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into United States dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences
are taken to the income statement.

1,000,000

Issued and fully paid
850,000 Ordinary shares of USD 1.00 each

850,000

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

7.

Loan of USD 10 million is guaranteed by the holding company and the balance of USD 2.25
million is unsecured. Both loans are repayable in full in nine equal semi-annual instalments
and carry interest payable accrued from 1% to 1.3% over Libor payable on half yearly basis.

(e) Preliminary expenses
The preliminary expenses of the Company are written off to the profit and loss account in
the year in which they arise.
(f) Interest income

8.

Interest income is recorded on an accruals basis.
3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values
The carrying amounts of debtors, cash at bank and creditors are approximate to their fair
values. Financial assets and liabilities which are accounted for at historical cost are carried at
values which may differ materially from their fair values.

TAXATION
The Company is liable to income tax in Mauritius at a rate of 15% against which foreign tax
credit is available in respect of tax withheld in India on payments of income to the Company.
For the period ended 31 December 2000, no provision for Mauritian taxes has been made due
to the availability of foreign tax credit.

4.

LOAN

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Company had acquired ownership / permanent / exclusive rights to use of brands / trademarks along with the technical know-how.

9.

REPORTING CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in United States dollars. The Company has been granted
an Offshore Certificate under the Mauritius Offshore Business Activities Act 1992 which requires that the company’s business or other activity is carried on in a currency other than the
Mauritian Rupee.

In accordance with IAS 38, the intangible assets will be amortised over 15 years.
2000
USD
Intangible assets
Less: Amortisation
Net book value of intangibles assets
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13,060,000
(720,000)
12,340,000

10. HOLDING COMPANY
The directors regard Indian Rayon And Industries Limited, a company incorporated in India,
as its holding company.

BIRLA SUN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT
April 16, 2001
The Members of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
The Board of Directors of your Company are pleased to present the first audited accounts,
auditor’s report, Management Report and the report of the Board of Directors to the
members of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited from August 4, 2000 to March 31,
2001. The Company was incorporated on August 4, 2000 for selling life and group insurance
products in the Indian market. It has been promoted by the Aditya Birla Group of India
and Sun Life Financial of Canada. The Aditya Birla Group is a premium conglomerate with
interests in aluminium, fibre, cement, telecommunications, fertilisers, textiles, financial
services, etc and has operations in India, South-east Asia and Canada. Sun Life Financial
offers life assurance products and wealth management services to individuals and groups.
Its main operations are in North America, Europe and Asia. The Aditya Birla Group and
Sun Life already operate one of the largest mutual fund in India and other companies in
the financial services sector which distribute financial products and provide broking services
to customers.
Both partners intend that the Company should be a significant player in the insurance
sector via this Company. You will be pleased to note that the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (‘IRDA’) has permitted your Company to sell life insurance products
in India. The Certificate of Registration to transact life insurance business in India was
granted by the IRDA on January 31, 2001. Prior to the grant of this Certificate, the
members of the Company had subscribed to 120,000,000 (120 million) shares of Rs 10
each amounting to Rs 1,200,000,000 (1.2 billion). The IRDA has also approved the initial
products that the Company plans to offer in the market. The Company has commenced
selling these products on March 19, 2001. By March 31, 2001, the Company had sold 286
policies in the cities of Mumbai and Delhi.
Since life assurance profits take a number of years to emerge and since the Company has
had a very short time to operate in the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company has
incurred a loss amounting to Rs 83.19 million. A summary of the financial results of the
Company is as under:
Particulars
Rs million
Premium Income (net)
3.19
Income from investments
15.65
Less : Expenses
Commission
0.64
Operating expenses
94.90
Depreciation
4.58
Provision for actuarial liability
1.63
Loss for the year
83.19
ACTUARYS REPORT
The report of the Appointed Actuary, as prescribed under Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (Actuarial Report & Abstract) Regulations, 2000, is attached to the
Report of the Board of Directors.
DIVIDEND
Since the Company has incurred a loss for the year, the Directors are unable to recommend
any dividend for this financial year (ie for the period August 4, 2000 to March 31, 2001)
CURRENT OPERATIONS, FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGY
As you are aware, India has a population exceeding one billion and the penetration of
insurance products in India is low compared to world standards for developing countries.
India’s 200 million middle class population is growing and with increasing aspirations the
need for risk cover will be felt acutely. Till recently, the Life Insurance Corporation of India
was the only company offering such products in India. In order to provide the Indian
market with a wide variety of insurance products and also to broad base the market,
private players are now allowed to offer insurance products in the Indian market provided
that the stipulations laid down by the IRDA are met by each participant.
The Company has conducted extensive market surveys to determine the market and the
nature of products that would be best suited to the particular requirements of the Indian
customer. Keeping this in mind, the Company has introduced a new product in the market.
The Company is currently offering an investment linked product to individual customers
which offers customers flexibilty in selecting the tenure of the product, its premium payment
terms, investment profile and receipt of benefits. The product has been branded on the
basis of the benefit options. The names of the products are as follows:
Name of product Description
Benefits
Flexi Cash Flow Money Back Plan Returns money at periodic intervals
Flexi Save Plus Endowment Plan Returns money at the end of the contract term
Flexi Life Line
Whole Life Plan Returns money at the end of the contract term
The customer also has the choice of selecting from one of three funds wherein the proposed
investment mix are outlined at the very beginning providing the customer with a sense of the
expected yields on the investments and the risks involved along with the same. The benefits

that the customer will receive will have a direct correlation with the actual yield on the assets
in each fund. The Company will internally track the yields on these assets. The funds offered
to customers have also been branded and their assets composition will be as follows:
Assets
Investment Options
Upper limit of % of assets in:
Protector
Builder
Enhancer
Govt and Govt approved securities
85%
70%
55%
Corporate Bonds
30%
30%
30%
Money Market instruments
20%
20%
20%
Infrastructure investments
25%
25%
25%
Listed equities
10%
20%
35%
Annualised Minimum Guarantee
6%
4.5%
3%
Currently, the Company has an individual field force of 213 agents in Mumbai and Delhi.
These agents have been selected through a rigorous selection process, which involved
psychometric tests and grueling interviews. The Company has also trained these agents in
excess of the requirements stipulated by the IRDA and in line with world standards. The
Company expects the recruitment and training of agents to be an ongoing process since these
agents will be the principal channel of distribution for its products as generally life insurance
is sold and not bought by customers all over the world. The Company expects to open
branches in additional cities in the current financial year to complement the additional 800
agents that it plans to recruit and train in this year. The Company is aware of the high cost of
recruitment and training of agents and has taken appropriate steps to reduce their turnover.
In addition to the agency channel, the Company is making path breaking efforts to widen its
distribution reach by tying up with Citibank NA to offer the Company’s life insurance products
to its customers. This will ensure that the Company can distribute its products to the right
segment of the market and in those cities where it does not have a physical presence. The
Company is exploring similar relationships with other banks and financial product companies.
The Company has also set up a call centre to handle customer queries and the same will
also be used as a direct marketing tool to assist the individual agency channel in its efforts.
The Company has also set up a web site to disseminate information about the Company
and its products. The web-site will be converted into a sales channel whenever the
regulations permit the same
The Company is planning to offer retirement products such as gratuity funds and
superannuation funds to certain groups of people such as employees of a company, doctors,
lawyers, etc. These products are under development and will be used to tap the vast
potential for retirement benefits in the country
The Company is also required to offer products to the rural and underprivileged population
of the Country. Adequate steps are being taken to ensure that these requirements are not
only met but surpassed since one of the Company ‘s manifold objectives is to improve the
quality of life of the people of India
In order to fulfill the targets set by the Company, significant expenditure will be incurred in
the initial years of operations. This will result in losses in these years. As per current plans
and budgets, the Company expects to break even at the end of the sixth year of its
operations and all the losses are expected to be equalised by the eighth year of operations.
The insurance business is a capital intensive business, and further capital injections will be
required over this period. However, the losses resulting from investment in the development
of the distribution network, new products and back office operations will gradually be
overtaken by positive cash flow from the business that has been sold, leading to a positive
and healthy position.
DIRECTORS
The first directors of your Company were:
Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla, Mr. S. K. Mitra, Mr. B. N. Puranmalka.
Mr. Vijay Singh, representative of Sun Life on the Board of the Company, was appointed as
an Additional Director in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 8th August, ’00 and
holds the position till the commencement of the First Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Mr. Donald Stewart and Mr. Douglas Henck also from Sun Life were appointed as Additional
Directors of the Company in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24th December, 2000
and hold the position till the commencement of the First Annual General Meeting of the Company.
All are proposed to be re-appointed as Directors under Section 256 of the Companies Act, 1956.
RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS
Mr. SK Mitra, Director of your Company is liable to retire by rotation at the forthcoming
First Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your
directors recommend his re-appointment.
AUDITORS
M/s SB Billimoria & Co, Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. Your
directors recommend their re-appointment.
AUDITORS REPORT
The report of the Auditors is attached to this report. All the Notes to Schedules and
Accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments except for the issue
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of the joint auditors. The Company will seek clarifications from the Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority and comply with any such requirement for the next financial
year.
MANAGEMENT REPORT
In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
(Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies)
Regulations, 2000, the Management Report forms a part of the financial statements.
SOLVENCY MARGIN
The Directors are pleased to report that the assets of the Company are higher than the
liabilities of the Company and are also sufficient to meet the minimum solvency margin as
specified in Section 64 VA of the Insurance Act, 1938
RURAL AND SOCIAL BUSINESS
The Company is required to transact business in the rural sectors of the Country. Similarly,
the Company is required to transact business with customers in the social sector of the
Country. Both these segments have been defined in the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority Regulations. Being the first year of operations, the Company had
sought from the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority and has been granted
an exemption from these requirements.
The Company is firming up plans to meet and exceed these requirements in the future
years as improving the quality of life of the people of India is one of the manifold
objectives of the Company
AUDIT COMMITTEE
As required by Section 292A of the Companies Act 1956, the Company has constituted an
audit committee consisting of the following directors:
Mr BN Puranmalka, Mr SK Mitra, Mr Douglas Henck, and Mr Vijay Singh
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Till March 31, 2001, employees of the Company were deputed from Birla Global
Finance Ltd, one of the promoters of the Company. These employees are now the
employees of the Company from April 1, 2001. The particulars of employees, as
required by Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act 1956 are given in a separate
Annexure to this Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors report that,
• The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and there have been no material departures from the same;
• The Company has selected accounting polices and applied them consistently and has
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and provide a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2001 and of the
loss for the period ended on March 31, 2001
• Proper and sufficient care has been taken to maintain adequate accounting records
and safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities
• The accounts of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis. Other accounting
policies are stated in the notes to the accounts which form an integral part of the
annual accounts
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGOINGS
The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and therefore there are no
particulars to be disclosed under conservation of energy and absorption of technology of the
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.
Further, the Company has had no foreign exchange earnings and outgo upto March 31, 2001.
APPRECIATION
The Board of Directors places on record the assistance of the personnel of the Aditya Birla
Group and Sun Life Financial in the start up of operations of the Company. The Company
also thanks the office bearers of the IRDA for their support during the registration process.
The Directors’ specially wish to appreciate the untiring efforts put in by the employees in
order to get the venture up and running.
Finally, the Directors wish to thank the first customers of the Company who have contributed
to increasing the confidence of the Company in its product strategies
For Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
BN Puranmalka
Place : Mumbai
S K Mitra
Date : April 16th, 2001
Director

APPOINTED ACTUARYS CERTIFICATE
I have valued the policy liabilities of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited at 31st
March, 2001, in accordance with accepted actuarial practice and in line with relevant
professional guidance, including that covering the selection of appropriate assumptions.
In my opinion, the amount of policy liabilities makes appropriate provision for all

policyholders’ obligations, and the financial statements fairly present the result of
the valuation.
PETER J. AKERS
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries
Fellow of the Actuarial Society of India

AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BIRLA SUN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of BIRLA SUN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
as at 31st March, 2001 and the Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the period from 4th
August, 2000 (the date of incorporation) to 31st March, 2001 and report that:
1. The balance sheet, revenue account and profit and loss account have been drawn up in
accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies) Regulation, 2000
read with Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.
2. (a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been maintained by
the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;
(c) The balance sheet, revenue account and profit and loss account referred to in this report
and the receipts and payments account are in agreement with the books of account;
(d) The Company’s appointed actuary has certified the actuarial valuation of liabilities.
The assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the regulations issued by
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority.
(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualifed, as on 31st
March, 2001, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section
(1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.
(f) In our opinion the balance sheet and profit and loss account referred to in this report
are in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of
the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable to the Company.
(g) In our opinion, investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938 and the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation
of Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2000.
(h) In our opinion the accounting policies selected by the Company are appropriate and are in
compliance with the applicable accounting standards and with the accounting principles,
as prescribed in the Insurance Regulatory Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2000 and orders
or directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority.

(i) We have reviewed the management report. There are no apparent mistakes or material
inconsistencies between the management report and the financial statements.
(j) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, the Company has complied with the terms and conditions of
the registration stipulated by the Insurance Regulatory Development Authority.
(k) We have verified the cash balances and securities relating to the Company’s investments.
(l) According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, the Company is not the trustee of any trust.
(m) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no part of the assets of the policyholder’s funds have been directly
or indirectly applied in contravention of the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of
1938) relating to the application and investments of the policyholders funds.
3. The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority appears to require the financial statements
of the Company to be subject to a joint audit. The Company has not appointed joint auditors, is
investigating this recent development and will comply with the requirements, if any.
4. Subject to our comments in paragraph 3 above in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts are prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of 1938), the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Act, 1999 (41 of 1999) and the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956), to the extent
applicable and in the manner so required and give a true and fair view :
(a) in case of the balance sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2001; and
(b) in the case of the revenue account of the surplus for the period from 4th August,
2000 to 31st March, 2001; and
(c) in case of the profit and loss account of the loss for the period from 4th August, 2000
to 31st March, 20001; and
(d) in case of the receipts and payments account, of the receips and payments for the
period from 4th August, 2000 to 31st March, 2001.
For S. B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
SANJIV SHAH
Mumbai, 16th April, 2001
Partner

REVENUE ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the period 4th August, 2000 to 31st March, 2001

For the period 4th August, 2000 to 31st March, 2001
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars
PREMIUMS EARNED - Net
(a) Premium
(b) Reinsurance ceded
(c) Reinsurance accepted

Schedule

Current
Year

Previous
Year

1

3,235,041
(40,604)
—

—
—
—

3,194,437

—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—

—

3,194,437

—

2

641,317

—

3

99,489,604
—
—

—
—
—

—
—

—
—

100,130,921

—

—

—

1,636,815
(4,991)
—

—
—
—

1,631,824

—

Sub—total
Income from Investments
(a) Interest, Dividends & Rent — Gross
(b) Profit on sale / redemption of investments
(c) (Loss on sale / redemption of investments)
(d) Transfer /Gain revaluation / change in Fair value
Other Income
Sub—total
Total (A)
Commission
Operating Expenses
related to Insurance Business
Other Expenses
Provisions (other than taxation)
(a) For diminution in the value
of investments (net)
(b) Others
Total (B)
Benefit Paid (net)
Interim Bonuses Paid
Change in valuation of liability
against life policies in force
(a) Gross
(b) (Amount ceded in Re-insurance)
(c) Amount accepted in Re-insurance

4

Total (C)
Transfer from Profit and Loss Account (D)
SURPLUS (A-B-C+D)
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Shareholders Account
Transfer to Other Reserves
Transfer to Funds for Future Appropriations
Total

98,854,738

—

286,430

—

—
286,430
—

—
—
—

286,430

—

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars
Balance brought forward from/transferred to the
policyholders Account(Technical Account)
INCOME FROM INVESTMENT
(a) Interest, Dividends & Rent - Gross
(b) Profit on sale / redemption of investments
(c) (Loss on sale / redemption of investments)
(d) Transfer /Gain revaluation / change in Fair value
(e) Gain/Loss on Amortisation

Current
Period
—

Previous
Year
—

9,386,657
1,155,305
—
—
5,114,358

—
—
—
—
—

OTHER INCOME

—

—

15,656,320

—

—
—
98,854,738
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

98,854,738

—

PROFIT / (LOSS) before Tax
Provision for Taxation

(83,198,418)
—

—
—

PROFIT / (LOSS) after Tax

(83,198,418)

—

—

—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

(83,198,418)

—

Total (A)
Expenses other than those directly related to the
insurance business
Transfer to Revenue Account
Provisions (other than taxation)
(a) For diminution in the value of investments (Net)
(b) Others
Total (B)

APPROPRIATIONS
(a) Brought forward Reserves / Surplus from the
Balance Sheet
(b) Interim dividends paid during the year
(c) Proposed final dividend
(d) Dividend distribution on tax
(e) Transfer to reserves / other accounts
LOSS CARRIED FORWARD TO THE BALANCE SHEET

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 16
Schedules referred to above form an integral part
of the accounts

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S B Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Sanjiv Shah
Partner

Peter Akers
Chief Financial Officer

B.N. Puranmalka
Director

S.K. Mitra
Director

Mumbai, 16th April, 2001
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BALANCE SHEET

SCHEDULE-1
PREMIUM

As at 31st March, 2001

(Amount in Rs.)

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars

Schedule

Current
Year

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Credit/(Debit) fair value change account

5
6

Sub-total
BORROWINGS

7

Current
Year

Previous
Year

First Year Premium
Renewal Premiums
Single Premiums
Reinsurance Premium

3,235,041
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

Total Premiums

3,235,041

—

Premium Income from Business written:
In India
Outside India

3,235,041
—

—
—

3,235,041

—

641,317
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

641,317

—

18,583,522
7,169,911
10,138,771
1,749,514
702,410
1,920,007
18,354,001
49,350

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

500,000

—

Previous
Year

1,190,790,400
—
—

—
—
—

1,190,790,400

—

—

—

Credit/(Debit) fair value change account
PolicyLiabilities
Insurance Reserves
Surplus in Revenue (Policyholders) Account
Provision for Linked Liabilities

—
—
—
286,430
1,631,824

—
—
—

Total Premium (Net)

—

SCHEDULE-2

Sub-total
Funds for future appropriations

1,918,254
—

—
—

1,192,708,654

—

—
—

9
10

995,978,759
286,430
1,631,824
—
137,974,971

—
—

11
12

44,462,037
36,387,652

—
—

80,849,689

—

107,211,437
—

—
—

Sub-total (B)

107,211,437

—

Net Current Assets (C) = (A - B)

(26,361,748)

—

—
83,198,418

—
—

POLICYHOLDERS FUNDS

Total
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
INVESTMENTS
Shareholders
Policyholders
Assets held to cover linked liabilities
Loans
Fixed Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances
Advances and Other Assets

8
8A

Sub-total (A)
Current Liabilities
Provisions

13
14

Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not
written off or adjusted )
Debit Balance in Profit and Loss account
(Shareholders Account )

15

Total

1,192,708,654

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
on Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an
integral part of the accounts

16

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S B Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Sanjiv Shah
Partner

Peter Akers
Chief Financial Officer

B.N. Puranmalka
Director

S.K. Mitra
Director

COMMISSION EXPENSES
Commision Paid
Direct — First year premiums
— Renewal Premiums
— Single Premiums
Add: Commission on Reinsurance Accepted
Less: Commission on Reinsurance Ceded
Others
Net commission
Total

SCHEDULE-3

OPERATING EXPENSES RELATED TO INSURANCE BUSINESS
Employee’s remuneration & welfare benefits
Travel,conveyance and vehicle running expenses
Rents,rates & taxes
Repairs and Maintainance
Printing and Stationery
Communication expenses
Legal & professional charges
Medical Fees
Auditor’s Fees,expenses,etc.
(a) as auditor
(b) as adviser or in any other capacity,in respect of
(i) Taxation Matters
(ii) Insurance Matters
(iii) Management Services; and
(c) in any other capacity
Advertisement and publicity
Interest & Bank Charges
Others: a) Agents recruitment,training,seminar
b) Hire charges,Insurance etc.
c) Recruitment Expenses
d) Training ,Seminar & conference
e) IT Expenses (incl. maintenance )
f) Water, Electricity & other Misc. Exp
Depreciation
Total

Mumbai, 16th April, 2001
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—
—
—
22,166,653
40,110
4,342,851
462,282
718,026
2,006,337
4,458,752
1,540,888
4,586,220

—
—
—

99,489,604

—

—

SCHEDULE-4

SCHEDULE-5A

BENEFITS PAID (NET)

Pattern of Shareholding
(Amount in Rs.)
Current
Year

Previous
Year

Insurance Claims
(a) Claims by death
(b) Claims by Maturity
(c) Annuities/Pensions in payment
(d) Other benefits

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

(Amount ceded in reinsurance)
(a) Claims by death
(b) Claims by Maturity
(c) Annuities/Pensions in payment
(d) Other benefits

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

(Amount accepted in reinsurance)
(a) Claims by death
(b) Claims by Maturity
(c) Annuities/Pensions in payment
(d) Other benefits

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

Total

—

—

—
—

—
—

Total

—

—

SCHEDULE-5
SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in Rs.)
1,300,000,000

—

Issued Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

1,200,000,000

—

Subscribed Capital

1,200,000,000

—

Called—up Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/— each
Less : Calls unpaid
Add : Shares forfeited
(Amount Origionally paid up )
Less : Par value of Equity Shares bought back
Less : Preliminary Expenses
Expenses including commission or
brokerage on underwriting or
subscription on shares

1,200,000,000

—

—
—

—
—

—
9,209,600

—
—

Total

Promoters
Indian
A) Indian Rayon &
Industries Ltd.
B) Others
Foreign
Others
Total

Current Year
Number of
% of
Shares
Holding

Previous Year
Number of
% of
Shares
Holdings

82,800,000
6,000,000
31,200,000
—

69
5
26
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

120,000,000

100

—

—

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Benefits paid to claimants:
In India
Outside India

Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

Shareholder

—

—

1,190,790,400

—

Peter Akers
Chief Financial Officer

B.N. Puranmalka
Director

S.K. Mitra
Director

SCHEDULE-6

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(Amount in Rs.)

Capital Reserve
Capital Redumption Reserve
Share Premium
Revaluation Reserve
General Reserve
Less : debit balance in Profit & Loss Account, If any
Less : Amount utililized for Buy-back
Catastrophe Reserve
Other Reserves
Balance of profit in Profit and Loss Account
Total

Current
Year
—
—
—
—
—

Previous
Year
—
—
—
—
—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—

SCHEDULE-7
BORROWINGS

Debenture / Bonds
Fixed Deposit
Banks
—
Financial Instiitutions
Other entities carrying on insurance business
Others
Total

—
—
—
—
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SCHEDULE-8

SCHEDULE-8A (Contd.)

INVESTMENTS  SHAREHOLDERS

INVESTMENTS - POLICYHOLDERS
(Amount in Rs.)

Long Term Investments
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills
Other Approved Securities
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual fund
(c) Debenture Instruments
(d) Debenture / Bonds
(e) Other Securities ( Commercial papers)
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties — Real Estate
Total (A)
ShortTerm Investments
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury
Bills
Other Approved Securities
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual Funds
(c) Debenture Bond
(d) Derivate Instrument
(e) Other Securities (Commercial Papers)
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties - Real Estate

Current
Year

Previous
Year

313,858,072

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
152,194,028
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

466,052,100

—

430,760,256

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—
99,166,403

—
—
—
—
—
—

—

—

529,926,659

—

Total (A+B)

995,978,759

—

INVESTMENTS
In India
Outside India

995,978,759
—

—
—

Total

995,978,759

—

SCHEDULE-8A

INVESTMENTS - POLICYHOLDERS

Investments in Infrastructure and social sector
Other than approved investments
Total (A)
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ShortTerm Investments
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury
Bills
Other Approved Securities
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual Funds
(c) Debenture Bond
(d) Derivate Instrument
(e) Other Securities ( Commercial Papers)
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties - Real Estate
Investments in Infrastructure and social sector
Other than approved investments
Total (B)
Total (A+B)

Total (B)

Long Term Investments
Government securities and Government
guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills
Other Approved Securities
Other Investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity
(bb) Preference
(b) Mutual fund
(c) Debenture Instruments
(d) Debenture / Bonds
(e) Other Securities ( Commercial papers)
(f) Subsidiaries
(g) Investment Properties - Real Estate

(Amount in Rs.)

286,430

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—

—
—

286,430

—

Current
Year

Previous
Year

—

—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—

—

—
—
—

—
—
—

286,430

—

INVESTMENTS
In India
Outside India

286,430
—

—
—

Total

286,430

—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—

—

SCHEDULE-9
LOANS

SECURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATION
Secured
(a) On mortgage of property
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India
(b) On Shares, Bonds, Goverment Securities etc.
(c) Others
Unsecured
(a) Loan against policies
(b) Others
Total
BORROWER—WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Central and State Governments
(b) Banks and Financial Institutions
(c) Subsidiaries
(d) Companies
(e) Loan against policies
(f) Others
Total
PERFORMANCE—WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Loans classified as standard :
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India
(b) Non standard Loans less provisions:
(aa) In India
(bb) Outside India
Total
MATURITY—WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Short—Term
(b) Long—Term
Total

SCHEDULE-10
FIXED ASSETS

(Amount in Rs.)
COST/GROSS BLOCK
PARTICULARS

OPENING

ADDITIONS

1. Leasehold Improvements

—

2. Furniture and Fittings

—

3. Information Technology

—

4. Vehicles

—

5. Office Equipments

DEPRECIATION

DEDUCTIONS

CLOSING

26,382,416

—

7,194,706

—

88,657,767

—

9,201,273

—

—

7,619,981

TOTAL

—

PREVIOUS YEAR’s TOTAL
Capital Work in Progress
TOTAL

NET BLOCK

OPENING

FOR THE
YEAR

26,382,416

—

1,118,718

—

1,118,718

25,263,698

—

7,194,706

—

316,677

—

316,677

6,878,029

—

88,657,767

—

2,753,772

—

2,753,772

85,903,996

—

9,201,273

—

273,490

—

273,490

8,927,783

—

—

7,619,981

—

123,564

—

123,564

7,496,417

—

139,056,143

—

139,056,143

—

4,586,220

—

4,586,220

134,469,923

—

—
—

—
3,505,048

—
—

—
3,505,048

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
3,505,048

—
—

—

142,561,191

—

142,561,191

—

4,586,220

—

4,586,220

137,974,971

—

CURRENT LIABILITIES

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Total
Balances with non-scheduled banks
included in 2 and 3 above
Cash and Bank Balances
1. In India
2. Outside India
Total

Current
Year
1,434,360

(Amount in Rs.)
Previous
Year
—

—
—
43,027,677

—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

44,462,037

—

—

—

44,462,037
—

—
—

44,462,037

—

Total (A)
Other Assets
Income accrued on Investments
Outstanding Premiums
Agents’ Balances
Foreign Agents’ Balances
Due from other Entities carrying on insurance business
Due from subsidaries/holding company
Reinsurance claims/balances recievable
Deposit with Reserve Bank of India
[persuant to section 7 of Insurance Act,1938]
Others (to be specified)

(Amount in Rs.)

Agent’s Balance
Balances due to other insurance companies
Advances from treaty companies
Deposits held on reinsurance ceded
Premiums recieved in advance
Sundry Creditors
Due to Subsidaries/holding companies
Claims outstanding
Annuities Due
Due to officers/Directors
Others
Total

Current
Year

Previous
Year

588,685
—
—
—
—
106,622,752
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

107,211,437

—

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—

—

SCHEDULE-14

SCHEDULE-12

ADVANCES AND OTHER ASSETS
Advances
Reserve deposits with ceding companies
Advances to Ceding companies
Application money for investments
Prepayments
Advances to officers/directors
Advances tax paid and taxes deducted at source.
Other advances

AS AT PREVIOUS YEAR
YEAR END

SCHEDULE-13

SCHEDULE-11

Cash (including cheques,drafts and stamps)
Bank Balances
(a) Deposit Accounts
(aa) Short-term (due within 12 months of the
date of Balance Sheet)
(bb) Others
(b) Current Accounts
(c) Others (to be specified)
Money at call and short notice
(a) With banks
(b) With other Institutions
Others

ON SALES/ AS AT 31.03.01
ADJUSTMENTS

PROVISIONS

For taxation (less payments and
taxes deduction at source)
For proposal dividends
For divident distribution tax
Bonus payable to the policyholders
Others

—
—
—
856,458
—
—
84,640

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

941,098

—

11,096,744
—
—
—
—
—
—
1,100,000

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

SCHEDULE-15

23,249,810

—

Discount allowed in issue of shares / debentures
Others

Total (B)

35,446,554

—

Total (A + B)

36,387,652

—

Total

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Total
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SCHEDULE-16

6.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS AND DISCLOSURES

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Depreciation
is provided on the basis of the estimated useful lives mentioned hereunder:

PART A
Significant Accounting Policies
1.

2.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles and provisions of the Insurance Regulatory
and Development Act, 1999 and the Regulations notified by the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority, the Insurance Act, 1938 and the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent
applicable and in the manner so required.

(a) Furniture and fittings

Revenue recognition

(c) Office equipment

Premium is recognized as income when due. For unit-linked business the due date is taken
as the date when the liability is established. Re-insurance premium ceded is accounted at
the time of recognition of the premium income in accordance with the in-principle treaty
arrangement with the re-insurers.

(d) Vehicles

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive dividend is established.

4.

Asset Type Rates as per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 (translated into useful
life) Estimated useful life considered for depreciation purposes

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Interest income is recorded on an accrual basis.
3.

(other than those mentioned in (e) below)
(b) Computer Equipment

7.

10 years
3 years

4.75% (20 years)

5 years

9.5% (10 years)

5 years

Foreign currency transactions

Claims

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction.

Maturity claims are accounted for when due for payment. Surrenders are accounted for
when notified. Death claims and all other claims are accounted for when notified.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the
closing rate as at the balance sheet date.

Claims payable include the direct costs of settlement. Re-insurance recoveries are accounted
for in the same period as the related claim.

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions are recognized as income or
expense in the period in which they arise, except those arising on repayment of liabilities
incurred for the purpose of the acquiring fixed assets, in which case, such difference is
adjusted in the carrying amount of the respective fixed assets.

Acquisition costs

In case where a forward exchange contract is entered into, the difference between the
forward rate and the exchange rate at the date of the transaction is recognized as income or
expense over the life of the contract, except in respect of liabilities incurred for the acquiring
fixed assets, in which case, such difference is adjusted in the carrying amount of the respective
fixed assets.

Investments
Debt securities and preference shares:
Debt securities, including Government securities and redeemable preference shares are
considered as ‘held to maturity’ and accordingly stated at cost, subjected to amortization of
the premium / discount over the life of the instrument on a straight line basis. Cost includes
brokerage and stamp duty, wherever applicable.
The difference between the acquisition price and the maturity value of the treasury bills and
commercial papers is treated as interest and recognized as income over the remaining term
of these instruments on a straight-line basis.

Profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward contract is recognized as income
or expense in the period in which they arise, except those arising on repayment of liabilities
incurred for the purpose of the acquiring fixed assets, in which case, the profit or loss is
adjusted in the carrying amount of the respective fixed assets.
8.

The profit or loss on sale of these securities is the difference between the sale price and the
amortised cost in the books of the Company as on the date of the sale.

Preliminary and pre-operative expenses
Preliminary expenses are adjusted against the paid-up share capital. Pre-operative expenses
(incurred upto the date of issue of Certificate of Registration i.e. January 31, 2001) are
expensed in the year in which they are incurred

Equity shares:

Taxation

Listed equity shares are stated at fair value, being the last quoted closing prices at the
balance sheet date. Unrealized gains / losses arising due to change in the fair value is
taken to the Fair Value Change Account, which is carried forward in the Balance Sheet.

9.

Profit / loss on sale of listed equity shares is determined after considering the accumulated
changes in the carrying amount of the respective security.

10. Actuarial Policies and Assumptions

Provision for income tax is made on an accrual basis under the tax payable method after
taking credit for allowances and exemptions.
The Actuarial policies and assumptions of the Company are given in point 2 of the Disclosures
forming part of financial statements

Unlisted equity shares are stated at historical cost. A provision is made for diminution in the
value of these shares.
Cost includes brokerage and stamp duty, wherever applicable.

PART B

Real estate  investment property:

Disclosures forming part of financial statements

The value of the investment property is stated at cost, subject to revaluation at least once in
three years. The change in the carrying amount of the investment property is taken to
Revaluation Reserve.

A.

Profit / loss on sale of investment property is determined after considering the accumulated
changes in the carrying amount of the respective investment property.

1.

Contingent Liabilities
Particulars

Current Year (Rs )

Previous Year (Rs)

Nil

Not Applicable

1.

Partly paid up investments

2.

Claims, other than against policies,
not acknowledged as debts by the
Company

Nil

Not Applicable

Long term and short term investments:

3.

Underwriting commitments outstanding

Nil

Not Applicable

The definition of long term and short term investments has not been provided in the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000. Therefore, the definitions
provided in the Accounting Standard 13 on accounting for investments have been adopted.
As per the standard, short term investments are those investments which by their nature are
readily realisable and which are intended to be held for not more than one year from the
date on which the investment has been made. Long term investments are those investments
which are not short term investments

4.

Guarantees given by or on behalf of the
Company

Nil

Not Applicable

5.

Statutory demands/liabilities in dispute,
not provided for

Nil

Not Applicable

6.

Reinsurance obligations

Nil

Not Applicable

7.

Others

Nil

Not Applicable

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account, except in
case of a revalued property, the impairment is treated as a revaluation decrease and if
impairment loss exceeds the corresponding revaluation reserve, such excess is recognized as
an expense in the Profit and Loss Account.
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6.33% (15 years)
16.21% (5.86 years)

(e) Leasehold Improvements and Furniture and fittings at leased premises 5 years or the
maximum renewable period of the respective leases, whichever is lower.

Acquisition costs are expensed in the period when they are incurred.
5.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Tax Provision
The tax provision as on March 31, 2001 has been computed as per the provisions of the
Income tax Act, 1961 applicable to Life Insurance Companies as on that date. These provisions
are expected to be modified. It is possible that the new provisions may be made effective for
the financial year ended March 31, 2001. In case a tax liability arises due to the modification
of the provisions applicable to Life Insurance Companies, the same will have to be provided
for in the year in which the liability can be determined
2.

3.

As on March 31, 2001, there were no encumbrances on the assets of the Company
4.

5.

The unit reserve is the value of the units representing the investments attached to policies,
subject to not being less than any minimum guaranteed value.
Non-Unit Reserve
The non-unit reserve has been valued for each policy using a cash flow Gross Premium
Method. For this purpose, the following assumptions have been made for future experience
with adequate margins for adverse deviations.

The Company has also compared the aggregate market value and the aggregate of the
amortised cost of the investments. The aggregate amortised cost of the investments is lower
than the aggregate market value of the investments and hence the same have been valued
at amortised cost in the Balance Sheet

Mortality

Expenses:
o

Per policy expenses of Rs.405/= per annum , inflating @ 3 percent per annum.

o

Rs.13.5 per thousand of the face amount in the first policy year.

o

Premium related expenses are taken as

o

Actual base commission rates to Insurance Advisors

o

Other sales and acquisition expenses in first policy year at 180 percent of the base
commission for all policies, except for single premium policies where it is 56.25 percent.

6.

7.

Tax
35 percent of the surplus.
Fund Growth Rate:
The annual fund growth rate (FGR), net of investment related expenses, of policy funds has
been assumed to be 8% for the Protector investment option in the year following the
valuation date, reducing by 0.25% every year and stabilizing at 6.75% from year six. The
FGR for the Builder investment option is 1% more than that for the Protector investment
option, and that for the Enhancer investment option is 1% more than that for Builder
investment option.
Investment Management Fee
A maximum of 0.75 percent per annum from the actual gross return on policy funds earned
in excess of the guaranteed return.
Other provisions
As a matter of prudence we have set additional reserves for the following:
o Unexpired Risk Reserve
o Pro-rata reserve on every policy based on
o the cost of insurance deducted from policyholders’ account and
o unexpired period until the following monthly processing date
o Investment Guarantee Reserve;
o Based on scenario testing this is determined as 2 percent of the total annualized
premium.
o Substandard Risk Reserve:
o Proportion of the extra risk premium for the duration until the next due date of
the premium payment has been set aside as a substandard risk reserve.

Value of contracts outstanding
There are no contracts in relation to investments where purchases have been made and
deliveries are pending. Further, there are no contracts where sales have been made and
payments are overdue

8.

Operating Expenses
Currently, the Company has only one product in the market. Since there is only one segment,
all the operating expenses relating to the insurance business have been allocated to this
segment. Further, the Company is operating only in the insurance business and therefore all
expenses of the Company are allocated to the Revenue account.

Future policy lapses have been assumed based on issue age and duration of policy varying
from 10.5 percent in the first year to 1.3 percent from sixth policy year.
6 percent per annum.

Claims outstanding
As on March 31, 2001, there were no reported claims outstanding against the Company
under its policies

Policy Lapses

Valuation discount rate

Basis of amortisation of debt securities
The investments made by the Company in Government Securities, Treasury Bills, Bonds and
Commercial Paper issued by private sector companies have been valued in the Balance
Sheet of the Company at amortised cost. This valuation basis is as per the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000. The Company has adopted the straight
line method for valuing these debt securities (ie the discount or premium on the purchase of
the security is written off as expense or recognised as income in the profit and loss account
equally over the remaining term of the security).

Unit Reserve

90% of the LIC 1994-96 (modified for the age last birth day) for Males. For females,
mortality rates are rated down by three years of age.

Commitments made and outstanding on loans, fixed assets, etc
The commitments made and outstanding for Fixed Assets by the Company as on March 31,
2001 is Rs 8.4 million. In addition, the Company is proposing to build additional functionalities
in its software systems to serve the needs of its customers. Building these requirements in
the systems will entail additional expenses. The Company is preparing detailed specifications
for these requirements and will request the systems vendor to provide an expense estimate
for the same. As a result, the amount of commitment cannot be quantified at this moment.
Other than the above, the Company had made no commitments

Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial liabilities are calculated in accordance with accepted actuarial practice as well as
the requirements of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority. The policies sold
by the Company carry two types of liabilities – unit reserve representing the fund value of
policies and non unit reserve for future expenses, meeting death claims, taxes and cost of
any guarantees.

Encumbrances

9.

Managerial Remuneration
The Company is yet to appoint a Managing Director and/or Manager and so no remuneration
was paid as managerial remuneration

10. Historical Cost of Investments
The historical cost, book value and market value of the investments of the Company are Rs
993.9 million , Rs 997.9 million and Rs 1001.8 million respectively
11. Valuation of Real Estate
The Company has not invested in real estate/properties.
12. Gratuity Fund
The employees of the Company will be on the rolls of the Company from April 1, 2001. The
Gratuity liability and fund will be provided and formed in the financial year beginning April
1, 2001
13. Transfer to Revenue Account (Policyholders Account)
The Company received the first proposal in March 2001. Prior to the receipt of the first
proposal, the Company has had to incur expenditure in market surveys, product design,
systems selection and implementation, etc. As a result, the Revenue Account (Policyholders’
Account) has a deficit. Since this account should not have a deficit, an amount of Rs 98.85
million has been transferred from the Profit and Loss Account (Shareholders’ Account) to
the Revenue Account (Policyholders’ Account).
14. Preoperative Expenses
The Company has incurred the expenses prior to January 31, 2001, being the date of grant
of Certificate of Registration by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority. These
expenses have been written off in the books of the Company as per the policy adopted and
mentioned in the note on Accounting Policies. In the Revenue Account, these amounts
appear in the heads of account for which the expenses have been incurred. Details of the
pre-operative expenses are as under:
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Pre-operative Expenses:
Sr No Particualrs of expenses

Amount (Rs)

1

Employees remuneration

2

Travel and conveyance

4,556,186

3

Rent, repairs and maintenance

8,864,663

4

Communication expenses

1,0993,482

5

Advertising and publicity

2,529,912

6

Professional fees

7

Other Administrative expenses
Total

12,826,161

1,624,787
3,091,050
34,596,241

B.
1.

Accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted by the Company have been specified in Part A of this
Schedule

2.

Departure from Accounting policies
There has been no departure from the accounting policies as laid down by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority Regulations and the Companies Act, 1956

C.
1.

Statutory Investments
As on March 31, 2001, no investments have been made in accordance with any statutory
requirement

2.

Non-performing investments
As on March 31, 2001, none of the investments have been classified as non-performing for
purposes of income recognition as per the directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority

3.

Statutory Deposits
The Insurance Act, 1938 requires that an amount of 1 percent of the total premium of the
Company be kept deposited with the Reserve Bank of India. In addition to this requirement,
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority had requested the Company to deposit
an amount of Rs 1 million prior to the commencement of business by the Company. As on
March 31, 2001, the Company had deposited an amount of Rs 1.1 million with the Reserve
Bank of India which is higher than the total of these requirements (ie Rs 1.03 million)

4.

Segment reporting
The Company is operating only in one sector (ie selling individual life insurance products to
retail customers). For the period ended March 31, 2001, all the business of the Company is
from this one segment only

5.

Summary of Financial Statements

performance of these funds to determine the benefits to the customers. Since the Company
started writing policies in March 2001, the inflow of moneys into each fund has been small
and as a result the Company has been unable to achieve the asset mix in each fund. The
asset mix will be achieved gradually as the value of each fund grows. As on March 31, 2001,
the assets in each fund were as under:
Assets

Protector
Investment
Option

Builder
Investment
Option

Enhancer
Investment
Option

11.15% Government of India - 2002

450,396

835,945

345,483

Total

450,396

835,945

345,483

As per our report of even date attached
For SB Billimoria & Co
Chartered Accountants
Sanjiv Shah
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Peter Akers
Chief Financial Officer

BN Puranmalka
Director

SK Mitra
Director

Date : April 16, 2001
Place : Mumbai
RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT (CASH FLOW STATEMENT)
FOR THE PERIOD 4 AUGUST, 2000 TO 31 MARCH, 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Premium received
Deposits taken from agents
Payments made to employees and for expenses
Deposit with Reserve Bank of India
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Deposits for office premises and staff accomodation
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Interest received
Net Cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Net cash from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of period

Amount (Rs.)
4,345,643
226,000
(59,028,140)
(1,100,000)
(55,556,497)
(83,995,350)
(22,648,680)
(1,255,411,129)
256,424,200
5,649,492
(1,099,981,467)
1,200,000,000
1,200,000,000
44,462,037

44,462,037

The Company was incorporated on August 4, 2001 and was registered by the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority on January 31, 2001. This is the first financial year
end of the Company and financial figures for the prior years are not applicable
6.

Allocation of Investments and income

As per our report of even date attached

The funds of the shareholders and the policyholders are kept separate and records are
maintained accordingly. Investments made out of the shareholders and policyholders funds
are also tracked from their inception and the income thereon is also tracked separately.
Since the actual funds, investments and income thereon are tracked separately, the allocation
of investments and income is not required

For SB Billimoria & Co
Chartered Accountants

D.

Other issues

1.

Assets in the Internal Funds
The products offerred by the Company provide customers with a choice of the funds that
they would like their benefits to be linked to. The composition of the assets of each fund
have been defined and the yield on these assets will determine the benefits that customers
will receive under their contracts with the Company. The Company will endeavour to invest
the funds of the customers in the manner stated in their contracts and will track the
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Sanjiv Shah
Partner
Date : April 16th, 2001
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Peter Akers
Chief Financial Officer

BN Puranmalka
Director

SK Mitra
Director

MANAGEMENT REPORT

of services such as custodian, etc. An Investment Committee has been set up to regulate and
monitor the investments of the Company. The Company has laid down investment policies
and procedures for selection and investment of funds in securities and investments. Apart
from short term assets held to meet expected cash flow requirements, the Company invests
with the intention of holding on to the securities for the long term. Currently, the Company
has invested in securities issued by the Government and highly rated companies. The risk of
default on the current portfolio of securities is minimal and consequently the return on
these investments is average. The Company has also implemented a methodology for
matching its assets to its liabilities. The Company has consulted experts in the investment
arena for framing its policies and procedures and also for selecting the universe of instruments
for investment. The Company believes that all these actions will minimise these risks to the
Company

In accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000, the following
Management Report is submitted by the Board of Directors:
1. Certificate of Registration
The Certificate of Registration granted by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
to enable the Company to transact life insurance business was valid on March 31, 2001 and
is in force as on the date of this Report
2.

Statutory Dues
All significant statutory dues payable by the Company have been paid

3.

Shareholding Pattern
The Company confirms that the shareholding pattern of the Company is in accordance with
the requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938 and the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority (Registration of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000 and that there have
been no transfer of shares after the issue of shares

4.

Investment of Funds
The Company has not invested the funds of the holders of the policies issued in India in any
securities outside India either directly or indirectly

5.

Solvency Margin
The Company has adequate assets to cover both its liabilities and the minimum solvency
margin as stipulated in Section 64 VA of the Insurance Act, 1938

6.

Valuation of Assets
The Company has reviewed the values of all assets as on March 31, 2001. The Company
certifies that the value of the assets as set forth in the Balance Sheet do not exceed the
market or realisable values in the aggregate

7.

Investment Pattern
The Controlled Fund of the Company have been invested as per the provisions of, inter alia,
Sections 27 and 27A and the IRDA (Investment) Regulations, 2000 except as stated
below :
o

As at March 31, 2001 investments in infrastructure and social sector constituted
less than 15 percent of the controlled fund as against the requirement of investing
not less than 15% primarily because of lack of availability of above investment
grade securities in this sector. However, the investments in the infrastructure and
the social sector as a percentage of the total investments exceed 15 percent

o

Limit as stated in sub-section 4 of section 27A of the Insurance Act, 1938 has
been exceeded in the case of investments in commercial paper of Larsen &
Toubro Limited and Dabur India Limited and bonds of Indian Railway Finance
Corporation, Infrastructure Development Finance Corporation and Power Finance
Corporation Limited. Since the Company started writing life insurance policies on
March 19, 2001, the policy liabilities at March 31, 2001 are quite small resulting
in our exceeding the limit as set out in this sub-section.
Both of the above have been communicated to the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority
8.

Risk Minimisation Strategies
The Company is exposed to several risks in its business. The risks on the liabilities side may
arise due to an unusually higher number of claims and other risks concern the possibility of
fluctuations in the values of the assets of the Company. The Company is also subject to the
risk of excess expenses, since until new business volumes grow significantly, the actual
expenses of the Company will exceed the expenses loaded into the products during new
product pricing. The Company has implemented adequate safeguards to mitigate these
risks. A strong underwriting team along with comprehensive manuals and procedures and
assisted by experts is in place to review all proposals from clients. The objective of the
Underwriting team is to minimise the risks of mortality and morbidity on the Company by
acquiring adequate information and determining whether to accept the risk and the price at
which the same should be accepted in order to compensate the Company for any additional
risks. Further, the financial effect of adverse mortality experience has been reduced by
reinsuring with RGA (an international reinsurer). This limits our exposure on every life to a
maximum of Rs. 5 lakhs. The Company has also set up systems to continuously monitor the
company’s experience in regard to other parameters that affect the value of benefits offered
in the products. Such parameters include policy lapses, maintenance expenses and investment
returns. The product offered by the Company also has a investment guarantee. While this
guarantee is not expected to result in significant financial strain, as a matter of prudence
the Company has set aside additional reserves based on a broad-brushed scenario testing.
On the assets side, the objective of the Company is to protect the principal value of its assets
and earn a reasonable return on its funds. To this effect, the Company has rigorously
implemented strict criteria for selecting the securities, issuers, advisors, brokers and suppliers

9.

Country Risk
The Company is operating in India only and hence has no exposure to either country risk or
currency fluctuation risks

10. Ageing of Claims
The Company has just commenced operations and so far has not received any claims
11. Valuation of Investment
The invesments made by the Company in Government Securities, Treasury Bills and bonds
and Commercial Paper issued by private sector companies have been valued in the balance
sheet of the Company at amortised cost. This valuation basis is as per the Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors Report of
Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000. The Company has adopted the straight line method
for valuing these debt securities (ie the discount or premium on the purchase of the security
is written off or recognised as income in the profit and loss account equally over the
remaining term of the security).
The market value of these securities is the price of these securities prevailing on the
National Stock Exchange as on March 31, 2001, or where such price is not available the last
traded price of the security on the National Stock Exchange
12. Review of Asset Quality
The Company has recently commenced operations. The majority of the investments are held
in the Shareholders’ Fund and investment commenced in February 2001. As on March 31,
2001, the Company had invested 70 percent of its investments in Government securities
(including Treasury Bills). Around 15 percent of the total investments have been invested in
infrastructure sector securities. The balance 15 percent of the investments has been made in
highly rated commercial paper of top corporates and in fixed and current deposits with
banks. The Company has been prudent in its investment and expects that its portfolio value
will remain stable and will fluctuate in accordance with the conditions in the debt and
money markets, except for reductions to meet future cash flow requirements.
The Company has not invested in real estate and has also not advanced any loans to any
party barring the investments in the bonds of the infrastructure companies and the commercial
paper instruments of two companies
13. Directors Responsibility Statement
The Board of Directors of the Company also state that:
• The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards, the regulations stipulated by the IRDA and the provisions of the Insurance
Act, 1938
• The Company has selected accounting polices which are prudent and has made
judgements and estimates that will provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as on March 31, 2001 and of the loss for the period ended on March
31, 2001
• Proper and sufficient care has been taken to maintain adequate accounting records
and safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing the and detecting
fraud and other irregularities
• The accounts of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis and the Directors
do not foresee any event/activity that contradicts this assumption. Other accounting
policies are stated in the notes to the accounts which form an integral part of the
annual accounts
• The Company has appointed an accounting firm to conduct the internal audit of the
Company. The scope of work of the firm is commensurate with the size and nature of
the Company’s business. The internal audit activity will commence from April 1, 2001
For Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
BN Puranmalka
Director

SK Mitra
Director

Date: April 16th, 2001
Place: Mumbai
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LAXMINARAYAN INVESTMENT LIMITED
DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventh Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2001.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Current Year
ended 31.3.2001
(Rupees)

Profit/(Loss) before Tax
Less: Provision for Tax
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax
Balance brought forward from earlier year
Profit available for appropriation
Appropriations made are as under:
Interim Divided on Preference Shares
Corporate Tax on Dividend
Special Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance carried forward to next year

68,21,242
24,10,000

Previous Year
ended 31.3.2000
(Rupees)
89,61,874
33,50,000

66,97,325

56,11,874
23,18,441

1,11,08,567

79,30,315

44,11,242

1,02,25,567

9,000
990
11,23,000
1,00,000
66,97,325

1,11,08,567

79,30,315

NIL
NIL
8,83,000
NIL

OPERATIONS

The Company has earned profit before tax of Rs. 68.21 Lacs during the year under review
from its investments and rental income from its properties.
DIVIDENDS

With a view to conserve the resources, your Directors do not consider it appropriate to
recommend dividend on Equity Shares.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year. Hence, no information is
required to be appended to this report in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies(Reserve
Bank) Directions, 1998.
PARTICULARS AS PER SECTION 217 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

The Company has no employees in the category specified under section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Directors’ Responsibility Statement, required under section 217
(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, is set out in a separate statement attached to this report
and forms part of it.
AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have examined the attached Balance Sheet of LAXMINARAYAN INVESTMENT LIMITED as
at 31st March 2001 and also the Profit and Loss Account annexed thereto for the year ended
on that date, which are in agreement with the Company’s books of account.
As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 1988,
issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956,
in our opinion and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course
of the audit, we state on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order, to the
extent applicable, as under:
1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assets. The Fixed Assets were physically verified by the
management of reasonable intervals. No discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.
2) None of the Fixed Assets have been revalued during the year.
3) The Company has not taken or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, from or to
Companies, firms or other parties listed in the Register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Section 370(6) of the Companies Act, 1956 provisions
of the said section are not applicable to a company on or after 31st October 1998.
4) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loan given by the Company, the parties
have repaid the principal amounts where stipulated and have also been regular in the
payment of interest, where applicable.
5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
6) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of business.
7) No undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Wealth-tax, Sales-tax, Customs
duty and Excise duty were outstanding as at 31st March, 2001 for period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.
8) No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account.
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Shri C.P. Mathur and Shri V.G. Somani have resigned as Directors of the Company with effect from
18th October, 2000. Shri Ashok Malu has resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from
20th April, 2001. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by
Shri C.P. Mathur, Shri V.G. Somani and Shri Ashok Malu during their tenure as Directors of the
Company.
Shri K.K.Maheshwari has been appointed as a Director to fill up the casual vacancy caused
by resignation of Shri Ashok Malu.
Shri Manoj Kedia retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
AUDITORS

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not
call for any further comments under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.
The members are requested to appoint Auditors for the current year and fix their remuneration.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There are no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. In view of
the nature of our operation, we have nothing to report on the above matter.
ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors
Mumbai 20th April, 2001
ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS REPORT
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 217(2AA) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956

We, directors of Laxminaryan Investment Limited would like to state that
• In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2001, the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures.
• We have selected such accounting policies and applied them constantly and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2001 and of the profit of the Company for that period.
• We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
• We have prepared the Annual Accounts on going concern basis.
9) The Company has maintained adequate documents and records for loans and advances
granted on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
10) As informed to us, the provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund, nidhi,
mutual benefit society are not applicable to the company.
11) The Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other
investments, hence the question of maintaining proper records of transactions and
contracts and making timely entries therein, does not arise. The investments have been
held by the Company in its own name.
Further to the above, we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books.
In our opinion, the Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet comply with the accounting
standards as referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
On the basis of confirmation received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the Director is disqualified as on date from being appointed as a Director
under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the said accounts read with the notes thereon give the information required by the
Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and the Balance Sheet and the Profit and
Loss Account give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at the close of
the year and of the Profit for the year, respectively.
For and on behalf of
KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001
Partner

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March, 2001

Schedule

(RUPEES)

As at 31st
March, 2000
(RUPEES)

1
2

110,930,000
13,001,567

110,930,000
8,590,325

123,931,567

119,520,325

134,861,000
6,594,702

134,861,000
4,396,468

128,266,298
2,500,000

130,464,532
2,500,000

729,971

1,901,783

31,448
2,541,101

31,967
3,165,856

3,302,520

5,099,606

864,929
6,804,900
57,422

6,704,125
6,036,300
2,452,398

7,727,251

15,192,823

2,410,000
—

3,350,000
990

As at 31st
March, 2001

For the year ended on 31st March, 2001

(RUPEES)

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2000
(RUPEES)

78,382

17,556,225

9,433,200
—
—
—
571,428
168,806
—

10,031,000
33,446
172,366
38,282
167,161
—
(14,850)

10,251,816

27,983,630

26,293
79,264
49,331
1,067,477

16,881
540,314
54,980
16,001,400

5,400
4,575
2,198,234
—

5,400
4,200
2,198,234
200,347

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2001

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholder’s Funds:
Reserves & Surplus
Total Funds Employed

INCOME

Income from Collateral Finance
Rent (Tax deducted at source Rs 20,33,053/Previous year Rs 18,14,858)
Sale of Securites
Profit on sale of Long term Investments
Profit on sale of Current Investments
Dividend
Miscellaneous Income
Increase/ (Decrease) in Stock

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less : Depreciation
Net Block
Investments
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured, Considered Good
below Six Months)
Cash & Bank Balances
Advance Payment of taxes

4

5

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions
Current Liabilities
Due to Holding Company
Security Deposit against premises
Other liabilities

EXPENDITURE

Repairs & Maintenance
Rates & Taxes
General Charges
Interest paid on other than on fixed loan
Payment to Auditors
For Audit Fees
For Tax Audit Fees
Depreciation
Preliminary Expenses written off
Total

Provisions
Provision for Taxation
Corporate Tax on dividend

10,137,251
(6,834,731)

Net Current Assets

Total Funds Utilised
Significant Accounting policies &
Notes forming part of Accounts.

Total

3

6

18,543,813
(13,444,207)

123,931,567

119,520,325

123,931,567

119,520,325

3,430,574

19,021,756

Profit before Tax
Provision for Tax

6,821,242
2,410,000

8,961,874
3,350,000

Profit after Tax
Balance brought forward

4,411,242
6,697,325

5,611,874
2,318,441

11,108,567

7,930,315

—
—
883,000
—
10,225,567

9,000
990
1,123,000
100,000
6,697,325

11,108,567

7,930,315

Profit available for appropriation
Appropriations
Interim Dividend on Pref.Shares
Corporate Tax on Dividend
Special Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Surplus carried to Balance sheet
Total
Significant Accounting policies &
Notes forming part of Accounts.

6

As per our Report attached
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(SHIVJI K VIKAMSEY)

Partner
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors
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Numbers

(RUPEES)

As at 31st
March, 2000
(RUPEES)

12490000

124,900,000

124,900,000

SCHEDULE-1
SHARE

As at 31st

C A P I TAL

March,

2001

Authorised:

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 100 each

1000

Total

100,000

100,000

125,000,000

125,000,000

110,930,000

110,930,000

110,930,000

110,930,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Fully paid up

11093000

Total

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up Capital of the Company is held by the Holding
Company, Indian Rayon And Industries Ltd.

SCHEDULE-2

R E S E R V E S & S U R P LU S

SPECIAL RESERVE
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
SURPLUS AS PER P & A/C
Total
SCHEDULE-3

FIXED ASSETS

BALANCE

ADDITIONS

S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S A N D N OT E S O N A C C O U N T S F O R T H E Y E A R
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2001.

(A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention an accrual
basis and in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.
(2) Fixed Assets are stated at cost.
(3) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight line Method at the rates and in
manner specified in schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.
(4) Long term Investments are Stated at Cost after deducting provision, if any, made for
permanent dimunition in the value.
(B) NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
(1) Information Pursuant to the provisions of Paragraphs ”3” of Part II of the Companies
Act, 1956.
Particulars Year Ended Opening Stock
31st March Numbers Amount
Shares
2001
—
—
2000
500 14850

NOTE:

1.

SCHEDULE-6

BALANCE

(2)

A S AT

DURING

A S AT

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 0

THE YEAR

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 1

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

(3)

1,793,000
100,000
6,697,325

883,000
—
3,528,242

2,676,000
100,000
10,225,567

(4)

8,590,325

4,411,242

13,001,567

(5)

BALANCE

ADDITIONS

BALANCE

A S AT

DURING

A S AT

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 0

THE YEAR

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 1

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

Buildings
Gross Block
Depreciation

134,861,000
4,396,468

—
2,198,234

134,861,000
6,594,702

Net Block

130,464,532

2,198,234

128,266,298

Purchases
Numbers Amount
—
—
—
—

Sales
Numbers Amount
—
—
500 33446

Closing Stock
Numbers Amount
—
—
—
—

There is no other additional information pursuant to para 3, 4C, 4D, of part II of
Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.
Building includes cost of Debentures and Shares of a Company which entitles to an
exclusive right of occupying and using certain office premises.
Additional information required under Part IV of Schedule VI of the Companies Act,
1956, is as per Annexure I.
“Special Reserve” has been created in terms of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.
Figures of previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our Report attached
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors

(SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY)

Partner
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001

ANNEXURE I
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART-IV OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956

SCHEDULE-4

INVESTMENTS

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
(Unquoted fully paid up)
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rajnidhi
Finance Ltd. of Rs. 10/- each
Total

AS AT
31st Mar.,2001
(RUPEES)

AS AT
31st Mar.,2000
(RUPEES)

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company s General Business Profile

I.

Registration Details
Registration No. : 04-22685 of 1994-95
State Code: 04
Balance Sheet Date
31st March 2001

II.

Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

III.

Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue : Nil
Bonus Issue : Nil
2,500,000
2,500,000

2,500,000

SCHEDULE-5
CASH & BANK BALANCES

24,360

78

7,088

31,889

Total

31,448

31,967

Nil

Total Liabilities 123931.57 Total Assets: 123931.57
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital : 110930.00
Reserves & Surplus: 13001.57
Secured Loans: Nil
Unsecured Loans: Nil
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets: 128266.30
Investments: 2500.00
Net Current Assets: (6834.73)
Misc. Expenditure: Nil
Accumulated Losses: Nil

2,500,000

Cash & Cheque in hand
Balance with Schedule Banks
in Current Account

Right Issue : Nil
Private Placement :

IV.

Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover/Gross Income: 10251.82
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax: 6821.24
EPS (in Rs.): 0.40
V.

Total Expenditure: 3430.57
Profit/(Loss) After Tax: 4411.24
Dividend rate %: Nil

Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)

Item Code No.: N.A.
Product Description: Investment, Finance and Property Rental Activities
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
(SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY)

Partner
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001
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ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors

STAT E M E N T P U R S U A N T TO S E C T I O N 2 1 2 O F T H E C O M PA N I E S A C T, 1 9 5 6 , R E L AT I N G TO S U B S I D I A R Y C O M PA N I E S

Ra j n i d h i F i n a n c e L i m i t e d

1

The period of the Subsidiary Company

2

Extent of interest in Subsidiary Company

3

Net aggregate amount of the profits/(losses) of the Subsidiary Company for
the period, so far as it concerns members of Laxminarayan Investment
Limited.

1st April, 2000
to 31st March, 2001
86.21% Equity Capital of
Rs. 29 lacs.

Rs. in lacs
a)

b)

4

not dealt with in the Accounts of the Company
(i) For the financial year of the subsidiary
(ii) For the previous financial years since it became the
subsidiary of the Company
dealt with in the Accounts of the subsidiary Company
(i) For the financial year of the subsidiary
(ii) For the previous financial years since it became the
subsidiary of the Company

1.07
2.43

Nil
Nil

As the financial year of the above subsidiary companies coincide with the financial year
of the Holding Company, Section 212(5) of the Companies Act, 1956 is not applicable.

Mumbai, 20th April, 2001.

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors
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RAJNIDHI FINANCE LIMITED
DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventh Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2001.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Current Year
ended 31-3-2001
(Rupees)

Profit before Tax
Less : (i) Provision for Tax
(ii) Provision for Tax (earlier years)
Net Profit after Tax
Balance brought forward from earlier year
Profit available for appropriation
Appropriations made are as under:
Interim Dividend on Preference Shares
Corporate Tax on Dividend
Special Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance carried forward to next year

1,39,226

14,870

Previous Year
ended 31-3-2000
(Rupees)
4,61,725
1,70,000
—

2,41,423

2,91,725
1,18,688

3,65,779

4,10,413

1,24,356

3,39,779

9000
990
59,000
1,00,000
2,41,423

3,65,779

4,10,413



26,000


The members are requested to appoint Auditors for the current year and fix their remuneration.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO
There are no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. In view of the
nature of our operation, we have nothing to report on the above matter.
ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001
Directors
ANNEXURES TO DIRECTORS REPORT
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 217(2AA) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

We, directors of Rajnidhi Finance Limited would like to state that
• In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2001, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.
• We have selected such accounting policies and applied them constantly and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2001 and of the
profit of the Company for that period.
• We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
• We have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

OPERATIONS

The Company has earned profit before tax of Rs. 1.39 lacs during the year under review from its investments.
DIVIDENDS

With a view to conserve the resources, your Directors do not consider it appropriate to recommend
dividend on Equity Shares.
DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year. Hence, no information is required
to be appended to this report in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 1998.
PARTICULARS AS PER SECTION 217 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

The Company has no employees in the category specified under section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Directors’ Responsibility Statement, required under section 217 (2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, is set out in a separate statement attached to this report and forms part of
it. Copy of the Secretarial Compliance Certificate as defined u/s 383A of the Companies Act, 1956
is attached as a part of this Report.
DIRECTORS

Shri C.P. Mathur and Shri V.G. Somani have resigned as Directors of the Company with effect from
18th October, 2000. Shri Ashok Malu has resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from 20th
April, 2001. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Shri
C.P. Mathur, Shri V.G. Somani and Shri Ashok Malu during their tenure as Directors of the Company.
Shri K.K.Maheshwari has been appointed as a Director to fill up the casual vacancy caused by
resignation of Shri Ashok Malu.
Shri Manoj Kedia retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
AUDITORS

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for
any further comments under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act, 1956.

AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have examined the attached Balance Sheet of RAJNIDHI FINANCE LIMITED as at 31st March,
2001 and also the Profit and Loss Account annexed thereto for the year ended on that date, which
are in agreement with the Company’s books of account.
As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 1988, issued by
the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, in our opinion
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of the audit, we state
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order, to the extent applicable, as under :
1. The Company has not taken or granted any loans, secured or unsecured from or to companies,
firms or other parties listed in the Register maintained under section 301 of Companies Act,
1956. In terms of section 370(6) of the Companies Act, 1956 provisions of the said section
are not applicable to a company on or after 31st October 1998.
2. In respect of the loans and advances, in the nature of loans given by the Company, the
parties have repaid the principal amount where stipulated and have also been regular in the
payment of interest, where applicable.
3. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
4. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Wealth-tax, Sales-tax, Customs
duty and Excise duty were outstanding as at 31st March, 2001 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.
5. No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account.
6. The Company has maintained adequate documents and records for loans and advances
granted on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures & other securities.
7. As informed to us, the provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund, nidhi, mutual
benefit society are not applicable to the company.

123
80

I have examined registers, records, books of Rajnidhi Finance Ltd. as required to be maintained under Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder and provisions of Memorandum of Articles of Association for Financial
Year ended 31-03-2001. In my opinion and according to explanation given by the Company I certify as under:
1. Company has kept all registers as required and entries have been made.
2. Company has filed all forms and returns as required by Law with R.O.C.
3. Board Meetings have been held regularly and notices were given for each Board Meeting, Minute books were
properly written and signed
4. A.G.M. was held in time, notice was given to all members and minutes of A.G.M. were written and signed in time.
5. Section 295 and 297 are not applicable to the Company.
6. Proper entries in Register under Section 301 were made.
7. Section 314 is not applicable.
8. There is no issue of any Shares or Debentures.
9. Section 217 is not applicable.
10. Board of Directors is duly constituted and there is no M.D., W.T.D.
11. There is no sole selling Agent.
12. Directors have disclosed their interest as per Section 299.
13. Section 58 A is not applicable to the Company.
14. Company has not bought back any Shares.
15. Company has not borrowed any amount from Banks, F.I. and others.
16. Company has not altered any provision of Memorandum and Articles.
17. Company has not received any show cause notice from R.O.C. or other authority.
18. Provident Fund Act is not applicable.
C.R.Damani
Company Secretary
Ahmedabad, 19th .April, 2001
C.P.No.445

8. The Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments,
hence the question of maintaining proper records of transactions and contracts and making timely
entries therein, does not arise. The investments have been held by the Company in its own name.
Further to the above, we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.
In our opinion, the profit and loss account and Balance Sheet comply with the accounting standards
as referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
On the basis of confirmation received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the Director is disqualified as on date from being appointed as a Director
under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said accounts, with the notes thereon give the information required by the Companies Act,
1956 in the manner so required and the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account give a
true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at the close of the year and of the
Profit for the year, respectively.
For and on behalf of
KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Mumbai, 20th April, 2001

SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY
Partner

BALANCE SHEET

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

As at 31st March, 2001

As at 31st
Schedule

March, 2001
( Ru p e e s )

As at 31st
March, 2000
(Rupees)

SOURCES OF FUNDS

1
2

Total Funds Employed

2,900,000
563,779

2,900,000
439,423

3,463,779

3,339,423

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

3

5,861,677

—

Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
4
Collateral Finance
Advance Payment of Taxes (Net of Provision)

—
8,550
—
1,500

1,234
4,289
3,339,683
168,482

10,050

3,513,688

2,403,014
4,934

125
3,150

—
—

170,000
990

Investments
Current Assets, Loans & Advances:

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions
Current Liabilities
Due to Holding company
Other liabilities
Provisions
Provision for Taxaton
Corporate Tax on dividend

Net Current Assets
Total Funds Utilised

Significant Accounting policies &
Notes forming part of Accounts.

( Ru p e e s )

For the Year
ended 31st
March, 2000
(Rupees)

68,854

7,22,343

—

5,970

422,978

62,664

3,677

44,687

For the Year
ended 31st
March,

2001

INCOME

Shareholders Funds:

Share Capital
Reserves & Surplus

For the year ended on 31st March, 2001

5

2,407,948

174,265

(2,397,898)

3,339,423

3,463,779

3,339,423

Income from Collateral Finance
Income from Long Term Investments
Interest
(Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil/previous year Rs. 1,313/-)
Dividend
(Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil/previous year Rs. 5,106/-)
Profit on Redemption of Investments
(Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil/previous year Rs. 15,105/-)
Miscellaneous Income

19,166

69

514,675

835,733

36,330
260
328,009

15,305
—
350,074

3,300
4,050
3,500
—

3,300
—
—
5,329

375,449

374,008

Profit before Tax
Less Provision for Income Tax of Current Year
Provision for Income Tax of Earlier years

139,226
—
14,870

461,725
170,000
—

PROFIT AFTER TAX
Balance brought forward

124,356
241,423

291,725
118,688

Profit Available for Appropriation

365,779

410,413

APPROPRIATIONS:
Interim Dividend on Pref. Shares
Corporate Tax on Dividend
Special Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet

—
—
26,000
—
339,779

9,000
990
59,000
1,00,000
241,423

365,779

410,413

Total
EXPENDITURE

General Charges
Printing & Stationery
Interest paid on other than on fixed loan
Payment to Auditors
For Audit Fees
For Certification Work
For Taxation Matters
Preliminary Expenses Written Off
Total

Total
Significant Accounting policies &
Notes forming part of Accounts.

5

As per our Report attached
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(SHIVJI K. VIKAMSEY)

Partner

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA

Mumbai, 20th April, 2001

Directors
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SCHEDULE-1
SHARE

As at 31st

C A P I TAL

March,

2001

As at 31st
March,

2000

Numbers

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

290,000

2,900,000

2,900,000

SCHEDULE-6
S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S A N D N OT E S O N A C C O U N T S F O R T H E Y E A R
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2001.

Authorised:

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 100 each

1000

100,000

100,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

2,900,000

2,900,000

2,900,000

2,900,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Fully paid up

290,000

NOTE:

1. Out of subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company 2,50,000 Equity Shares are held by the
Holding Company, Laxminarayan Investment Ltd. and 40,000 Equity Shares are held by Indian
Rayon and Industries Ltd., the ultimate Holding Company.

SCHEDULE-2

BALANCE

ADDITIONS

BALANCE

A S AT

DURING

A S AT

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 0

THE YEAR

3 1 s t M a r. , 2 0 0 1

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

98,000
100,000
241,423

26,000
—
98,356

124,000
100,000
339,779

439,423

124,356

563,779

R E S E R V E S & S U R P LU S

SPECIAL RESERVE
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
SURPLUS AS PER P & L A/C

(A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) The financial statement are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis and in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.
(2) Long term Investments were stated at cost after deducting provision, if any, made for
permanent dimunition in the value. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and
market/fair value.
(B) NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
(1) There is no additional information pursuant to para 3, 4C, 4D, of part II of Schedule VI of
the Companies Act, 1956.
(2) Additional information under part IV schedule VI of the Companies Act,1956 is as per
Annexure I
(3) “Special Reserve” has been created in terms of Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.
(4) Figures of previous year have been regrouped\rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our Report attached
For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA

(SHIVJI K VIKAMSEY)

Partner
Mumbai, 20th April, 2001

Directors

ANNEXURE I
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISION OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Balance Sheet Abstract and Companys General Business Profile :
I.

REGISTRATION DETAILS

Registration No.: 04-22691 of 1994-95 State Code : 04
Balance Sheet Date : 31st March, 2001
II.

CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue: NIL
Bonus Issue : NIL
SCHEDULE-3
INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

As at

As at

3 1 s t M a r, 2 0 0 1

3 1 s t M a r, 2 0 0 0

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

2,400,000

—

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities : 3463.78
Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital : 2900.00
Secured Loans : NIL
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets : NIL
Net Current Assets : (2397.90)
Accumulated Losses : NIL

Fully paid-up (UNQUOTED)

2,40,000 Equity Shares of Crafted Clothing Pvt. Ltd.
of Rs.10/- Each
CURRENT INVESTMENTS

1,92,654.148 units of Birla Income Plus (Plan B) of
Birla Mutual Fund of Rs.10/- Each.

3,461,677

—

5,861,677

—

Right Issue : NIL
Private Placement : NIL
Total Assets : 3463.78
Reserves & Surplus : 563.78
Unsecured Loans : NIL
Investments : 5861.68
Misc. Expenditure : NIL

IV. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover/Gross Income : 514.68
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax : 139.23
Earning per share (in Rs.) : 0.43
V.

Total Expenditure : 375.45
Profit/(Loss) After Tax : 124.36
Dividend rate % : NIL

GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS/SERVICES OF COMPANY (as per
monetary terms)

Item Code No. (ITC Code ) : N.A.
Product Description : Investment and Finance Activities
As per our Audit attached

SCHEDULE-4
CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand
Balance with Schedule Banks
In Current Account
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82

82

For KHIMJI KUNVERJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(SHIVJI K VIKAMSEY)

8,468

4,207

Partner

8,550

4,289

Mumbai, 20th April,2001

ADESH GUPTA
MANOJ KEDIA
Directors

Shareholder Information
1.

2.

3.
4.
5.

Annual General Meeting
- Date and Time
- Venue

: 23rd June, 2001 at 11.00 a.m.
: Registered Office
Junagadh – Veraval Road
Veraval 362 266
Gujarat, India

Financial Calendar
- Financial reporting for the quarter ending June 30, 2001
:
- Financial reporting for the half year ending September 30, 2001 :
- Financial reporting for the quarter ending December 31, 2001 :
- Financial reporting for the year ending March 31, 2002
:
- Annual General Meeting for the year ended March 31, 2002
:
Dates of Book Closure
:
Dividend Payment Date
:
Registered office :

End July 2001
End October 2001
End January 2002
End April 2002
End July 2002
4th June, 2001 to 23rd June, 2001 (Both days inclusive)
End June, 2001
Junagadh-Veraval Road
Veraval - 362266
Gujarat, India
Tel: (02876) 45711
Fax: (02876) 43220
E-mail: irilsecretarial@adityabirla.com
Web Site: http://www.indianrayon.com
http://www.adityabirla.com

6(a) Listing Details
Sl. No.

Type of Security

1.

Equity Shares

2.

Global Depository Receipts(GDRs)

3.

Non-Convertible Debentures
(Series 19th to 22nd)

Listing Details

The Stock Exchange, Ahmedabad, Kamdhenu Complex, Panjara Pole,
Near Polytechnic, Ahmedabad 380 015; The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Association Limited, 7 Lyons Range, Calcutta 700 001; The Stock
Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400 023; National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Trade
World, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013; The
Delhi Stock Exchange Association Limited, DSE House, 3/1, Asaf Ali
Road, New Delhi 110 002.
Societe de la Bourse de Luxembourg, Societe Anonyme,
R.C. B 6222, B P 165, L-2011, Luxembourg
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, (Wholesale Debt
Market Segment), Trade World, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400 013

Listing fees for the year 2001-02 has been paid to the respective Indian Stock Exchange. Listing fees for the GDRs has been paid to Societe
de la Bourse de Luxembourg for the calendar year 2001.
6(b) Overseas Depository for GDRs
Citibank N.A
Depository Receipts
111, Wall Street, 21st Floor, NEW YORK, NY – 10043
Ph: 212/657-8782 Fax: 212/825-5398
6(c) Domestic Custodian of GDRs
ICICI Limited
Custodial Services Division
ICICI Towers South Block (East Wing), 2nd Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, MUMBAI – 400 051
Ph: (+91-22) 653 1414 Fax: (+91-22) 653 1122
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7.

Stock Code:
Bombay Stock Exchange
National Stock Exchange
Global Depository Receipts (GDRs)

8.

9.

Bloomberg
INRY IN
NINRY IN
IRDS LI

Stock Price Data
Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE)
Low
Close Av.Volume
(In Rs.)
(In Nos.)

Month

High

Apr-00
May-00
Jun-00
Jul-00
Aug-00
Sep-00
Oct-00
Nov-00
Dec-00
Jan-01
Feb-01
Mar-01

60.80
61.50
65.25
60.00
64.50
72.95
69.00
82.45
93.50
96.00
106.95
85.00

44.80
45.00
56.00
49.05
51.00
56.00
56.00
67.65
80.00
82.00
81.20
58.50

46.75
58.10
59.65
53.25
58.00
63.05
68.65
80.95
84.00
83.50
85.00
80.35

56,335
61,069
92,247
18,487
35,356
43,987
17,578
68,200
60,795
69,211
199,420
71,786

High
61.80
60.60
64.50
60.00
65.00
72.60
69.90
82.20
93.80
97.80
106.70
86.00

National
Stock Exchange
Low
Close Av.Volume
(In Rs.)
(In Nos.)

Luxembourg
Stock Exchange
High
Low Close
(GDRs in US$)

46.90
45.00
55.10
48.00
48.85
55.60
55.40
68.00
79.30
82.50
81.05
61.00

1.85
1.58
1.52
1.55
1.60
1.48
1.54
1.52
1.75
1.90
1.93
1.75

47.80
57.50
59.80
52.60
57.80
62.70
69.35
81.10
84.50
83.15
85.20
80.35

21,201
15,759
17,190
7,357
20,670
18,413
18,221
44,822
35,410
37,438
131,829
52,965

Stock Performance
Stock Performance (Indexed)
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Reuters
IRYN.BO
IRYN.NS
IRYNq.L

Nifty

Indian Rayon

1.55
1.35
1.45
1.43
1.25
1.37
1.32
1.35
1.55
1.75
1.75
1.40

1.55
1.52
1.52
1.43
1.48
1.37
1.54
1.52
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.50

Relative Performance: Indian Rayon vs. Sensex
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10. Stock Performance over the past few years:
(In Percentage)
INDIAN RAYON

BSE Sensex
NSE Nifty
11. Registrar and Transfer Agents
(For share transfers and other
communication relating to share
certificates, dividend and
change of address)

12. Share Transfer System

1 Year

3 Years

5 Years

35.4

(-) 1.0

(-) 40.3

(-) 28.7
(-) 25.2

(-) 9.2
(-) 0.2

5.7
15.4

:

In-house Share Transfer
Registered with SEBI as Category II - Share Transfer
Agent (vide Registration No. INR 000001815)

:

Share Department Registered Office Junagadh – Veraval Road Veraval 362 266 Gujarat, India
Tel: (02876) 45711; Fax: (02876) 43220 E-mail: irilsecretarial@adityabirla.com
Share transfers in physical form are registered and returned within 15 days in most cases and in
any case within 30 days from the date of receipt, if documents are clear in all respects.
Share Transfer Committee of the Board meets at regular intervals to approve transfers above
5,000 shares and debentures each under one-transfer deed. Officers of the Company have been
authorised to approve transfers up to 5,000 shares and debentures each under one-transfer deed.
The total number of physical shares transferred during the year was 2,87,343 (previous year
14,55,949). Over 98% of transfers carried during the year were completed within 15 days from the
date of receipt.

:

Transfers in physical segment were significantly lower during the year since trading in the Company’s
shares are permitted only in the dematerialised segment w.e.f. 5th April 1999

85

2000 – 2001
Transfer
period
(in days)
1-10
11-15
16-20
21-30
30 and above
TOTAL

1999 – 2000

No. of
transfers

No. of
shares

%

Cumulative
total

No. of
transfers

No. of
shares

%

Cumulative
total

4,888
80
53

2,76,116
5,605
1,977

96.09
1.95
0.69

96.09
98.04
98.73

20,463
4,093
1,799

8,85,584
4,00,084
77,988

60.83
27.48
5.35

60.83
88.31
93.66

58
-

3,645
-

1.27
-

100.00
-

1,466
-

92,293
-

6.34
-

100.00
-

5,079

2,87,343

100.00

-

27,821

14,55,949

100.00

-

Number of pending Share Transfers as on 31.03.2001 is NIL.
13. Investor Services :
-

The Share Department of the Company has been accredited with ISO 9002: 1994, Certification for providing Investor and Secretarial
Services by KPMG, Quality Registrar, Mumbai on 21st February, 2001.

-

Complaints received during the year
Nature of complaints
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

-

2000 – 2001

1999 – 2000

Received

Cleared

Received

Cleared

Relating to Transfer, Transmission etc.
Dividend, Interest, Redemption etc.
Change of address
Demat – Remat
Others

7
53
1
7
-

7
53
1
7
-

9
42
35
35

9
42
35
35

Total

68

68

121

121

Legal proceedings on share transfer issues, if any

:

There are no major legal proceedings relating to transfer of shares.

14. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March:
No. of equity
shares held
1-100
101-200
201 – 500
501-1000
1001-5000
5001-10000
10001 and above
Total :
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No. of share
holders

% of share
holders

2001
No of shares
held

% share
holding

No. of share
holders

2000
% of share No. of shares
holders
held

82,611
23,300
14,866
4,055
2,183
128
114

64.91
18.31
11.68
3.19
1.72
0.10
0.09

29,50,166
32,59,609
45,67,387
28,64,189
39,63,032
8,80,714
4,13,91,645

4.93
5.44
7.63
4.78
6.62
1.47
69.13

87,086
24,554
15,405
4,236
2,248
147
129

65.08
18.35
11.51
3.17
1.68
0.11
0.10

31,06,220
34,31,346
47,27,891
29,85,406
40,37,977
10,14,038
4,05,73,864

5.19
5.73
7.90
4.99
6.74
1.69
67.76

1,27,257

100.00

5,98,76,742

100.00

1,33,805

100.00

5,98,76,742

100.00

%
share
holding

15. Categories of Shareholding as on 31st March:
Category
Promoters
UTI
Other Mutual Funds
Banks and Financial
Institutions
FIIs
NRIs/OCBs
GDRs
Other Corporates
Individuals
Total

No. of share % of shate
holders
holders

2001
No of share
held

% share
holding

2000
No. of share % of share No. of shares
holders
holders
held

32
1
27

0.03
0.00
0.02

1,59,73,187
40,85,560
1,85,075

26.68
6.82
0.31

32
1
25

0.02
0.00
0.02

1,46,36,892
44,75,368
1,13,846

%
share
holding
24.45
7.47
0.19

53
10
3,004
1
1,320
1,22,809
1,27,257

0.04
0.01
2.36
0.00
1.04
96.50
100.00

1,00,53,323
10,25,711
10,59,750
40,15,022
51,48,066
1,83,31,048
5,98,76,742

16.79
1.71
1.77
6.71
8.60
30.61
100.00

52
13
3,130
1
1,400
1,29,151
1,33,805

0.04
0.01
2.34
0.00
1.05
96.52
100.00

99,15,190
10,30,730
11,20,542
41,47,512
51,14,681
1,93,21,981
5,98,76,742

16.56
1.72
1.87
6.93
8.54
32.27
100.00

16. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

: Over 60.85% of outstanding equity (including 4.75% of outstanding capital in the form
of Global Depository Receipts) have been dematerialised up to 31st March, 2001.
Trading in Equity Shares of the Company on any Stock Exchange is permitted only in
the dematerialised form.

17. Details on use of public funds obtained in the last : No funds have been raised from the public in last 3 years. The
three years
Company bought-back 76,06,419 equity shares of Rs.10 each (being 11.27% of
paid -up equity capital ) in October, 1999 at a price of Rs.85 per share.
18. Outstanding GDR/Warrants and Convertible Bonds, : Outstanding GDRs as on 31st March, 2001 is 40,15,022 Nos. Each GDR
Conversion date and likely impact on Equity.
representing one underlying equity Share.
19.

Plant locations:
Rayon and Caustic Soda Plants:

Carbon Black Plants:

Insulator Plants:

Rayon Division
Veraval 362266 Gujarat
Tel: (02876) 45711
Fax. (02876) 43220
E-mail: irilveraval@adityabirla.com

Hi-Tech Carbon
Murdhwa Industrial Area
P.O. Renukoot 231 217
Dist. Sonbhadra, Uttar Pradesh
Tel: (05446) 52387 to 389
Fax No. (05446) 52502/52858
E-mail: hitechr@adityabirla.com
htcrkt@nde.vsnl.net.in

Jaya Shree Insulators
P.O. Prabhasnagar 712249
Dist. Hooghly, West Bengal
Tel: (033) 6723535
Fax: (033) 6722705
E-mail: jsir@cal.vsnl.net.in

Garments Division

Madura Garments
110, K.H. Road
Post Box No.2736
Bangalore 560 027
Tel: (080) 2270711/5731120
Fax: (080) 2272515/5731846
Email:madurag@adityabirla.com

Hi-Tech Carbon
K-16, Phase II, SIPCOT Industrial Complex
Gummidipoondi – 601 201
Dist. Tiruvallur – Tamil Nadu
Tel: (04119) 23233 to 36
Fax: (04119) 23129/23116
E-mail: htcgmpd@vsnl.com
gmpd@hitechcarbon.com

Jaya Shree Insulators
Meghasar, Halol 389330
Dist. Panchmahal, Gujarat – 389 330
Tel: (02676) 21002/20958/20959/20510
Fax: (02676) 23359/23374/23375
E-mail: jsinsulators@satyam.net.in

87

Textile Plants

Rajashree Syntex

Jaya Shree Textiles
P.O. Prabhasnagar – 712 249
Dist Hooghly, West Bengal
Tel: (033) 6721146
Fax: (033) 6721683
E-mail: jayasri@giascl01.vsnl.net.in

Tantigaria, Midnapur 721102,
West Bengal
Tel: (03222) 62273/62820
Fax No. (03222) 62528
E-mail: rajsyntex@adityabirla.com
Other Divisions :

Global Exports & Marketing
Industry House, 19th Floor & 16th Floor
10 Camac Street
Calcutta 700 017
Tel: (033) 282 5122/5212/9286
Fax: (033) 282 9288/4998
E-mail: gemcal@satyam.net.in

Rajashree Gases

IGCL ComplexP.O. Jagdishpur Industrial Area,
Jagdishpur 227 817, Uttar Pradesh
Tel: (05361) 70032 to 38
Fax: (05361) 70165
E-mail: igclfert@adityabirla.com
20.

:
Share Transfers/ De-materialisation
or other queries relating to
Shares and debentures of the Company

Investor Correspondence

The Company Secretary
Indian Rayon And Industries Limited
Registered Office :
Junagadh – Veraval Road, Veraval – 362266
Gujarat, India
Tel: (02876) 45711, Fax: (02876) 43220
E-mail: irilsecretarial@adityabirla.com
Chief Financial Officer
Indian Rayon And Industries Limited
Corporate Finance Division
91, Sakhar Bhawan, 9th Floor
230, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
Tel: (022) 2045004, Fax: (022) 2043686
E-Mail: irilcfo@adityabirla.com

For queries of Analysts, Institutions,
Banks and Others

21.

Per Share Data:

Net Earnings (Rs Crores)
Cash Earnings (Rs Crores)
EPS (Rs)
CEPS (Rs)
Dividend Per Share (Rs)
Dividend Payout (%)
Book Value Per Share (Rs)
Price to Earnings (x) *
Price to Cash Earnings (x) *
Price to Book Value (x) *
* Stock price as on 31st March

123
88

2000-2001
68.50
141.60
11.44
23.65
3.00@
28.89
191
7.02
3.40
0.42

1999-2000
57.59**
130.09**
9.62**
21.73**
1.00
11.35
182.70
5.72
2.53
0.30

1998-99
106.04
196.74
15.71
29.15
4.00
28.25
209.43
5.19
2.80
0.39

** Before exceptional items of Rs.298.82 Crores

1997-98
212.51
299.73
31.49
44.42
5.00
17.46
233.77
5.68
4.03
0.77

1996-97
214.77
284.65
47.74
63.26
6.75
15.55
311.63
4.09
3.09
0.63
@ Proposed

